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Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF Varroc Engineering Limited (formerly Varroc Engineering Private 
Limited) 

Report on the Standalone Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements 

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Varroc Engineering Limited 
(formerlyVarroc Engineering Private Limited) ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as 
at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow 
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements to give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), cash 
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified in '' the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone IndAS financial statements based on our audit. 

4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including the accounting 
and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. 

5. We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

6. An audit involves pelforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in 
the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial 
control relevant to the Company's preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true 
and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstanc~s. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
To the Members ofVarroc Engineering Limited (formerly Varroc Engineering Private Limited) 
Report on the Financial Statements 
Page 2 of3 

7· We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

Opinion 

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its total comprehensive income (comprising of profit 
and other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

9· As required by the Companies (Auditor's Repo1t) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (n) of section 143 of the Act ("the Order"), and on the basis of such checks of the books 
and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

10. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Cash 
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 
the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (~~) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure A. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief 
and according to the information and explanations given to us: 

1. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31, 2018 on its financial 
position in its standalone Ind AS financial statements- Refer Note so; 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
To the Members ofVarroc Engineering Limited (formerly Yarroc Engineering Private Limitr.rl) 
Report on the Financial Statements 
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u. The Uomp.my huu 1uuul! iJl'UVilliuu UH ul Murch ~1, :!0101 as required under lhe avvlh.:aLle law ut· 
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts, including derivative 
contracts- Refer Note 27. 

m. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2018. 

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company for the 
year ended March 31, 2018. 

Place: P..--..... 
Date: .::T.........c- ' )..... I~ I 

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009 
Chartered Accountants 

Amit Borkar 
Partner 
Membership Number: 109846 
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors' Report 

Referred to in paragraph 10 (f) of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members ofVarroc 
Engineering Limited (formerlyVarroc Engineering Private Limited) on the standalone financial statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2018 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

1. We have audited the internal financial contr'ols with reference to financial statements of Varroc 
Engineering Limited (formerly Varroc Engineering Private Limited) ("the Company") as of March 31, 
2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the 
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and 
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

4· Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

s. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system vvith reference to financial 
statements. 

Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP, 7th Floor, Tower A­
Yerwada, Pune - 411 oo6 
T: +91 (20) 41004444, F: +91 (20) 41006161 

Price Waterhouse & Co. (a Partnership Firm) converted into Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP identity no: 
LLPIN MC-4362) with effect from July 7, 2014. Post its conversion to Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP, its ICAI registration number is 
304026EIE-300009 (ICAI registration number before conversion was 304026E) 
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Referred to in paragraph 10 (f) of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members ofVarroc 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, usc, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

7· Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference to financial statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place: \'~ 
Date: ~...-f...(. 'l-o! ~ 

I 

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009 
Chartered Accountants 

Amit Borkar 
Partner 
Membership Number: 109846 
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors' Report 
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Engineering Limited (formerly VmToc F.11gi11~1~rillg Privall~ T.imited) on the standalone Ind AS financial 
ntntr.mr.ntn no of ond for the year end d March 31, .1018 

i. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and aituation, of fbccd aoocto. 

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme 
designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, 
a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management during the year and no 
material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. 

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 3 and 4 on fixed assets to the financial 
statements, are held in the name of the Company. 

u. The physical verification of inventory excluding stocks with third parties have been conducted at 
reasonable intervals by the Management during the year. In respect of inventory lying with third 
parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on physical 
verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material. 

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the 
Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)( a), (iii)(b) and (iii)( c) of the said Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

iv. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the 
loans and investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 
75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. 

vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain 
cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly 
reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records 
have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records 
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in 
respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance and income tax, though there has been a slight 
delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including profession tax, 
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess· goods and service tax 
with effect from July 1, 2017 and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate 

-authorities. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, the particulars of dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax and duty of excise at March 31, 
2018 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows: 

Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP, 7th Floor, Tower A - Wi 
Yerwada, Pune - 411 oo6 
T: +91 (20) 41004444, F: +91 (2o) 41006161 

Price Waterhouse & Co. (a Partnership Firm) converted into Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP (a Limited Liability Partn·ers ip"VIitfi identity no: 
LLPIN AAC-4362) with effect from July 7, 2014. Post its conversion to Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP, its ICAI registration number is 
304026EIE-300009 (ICAI registration number before conversion was 304026E) 
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Nameofthe Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where the 
statute dues In Million the amount dispute is pending 

(Rs.) relates 
Income Tax Income Tax 79.26 2012-13 Income Tax Appellate 
Act.1961 Tribunal 
The Central Excise Service Tax 118.66 2011-12 to 2015-16 Commissioner, Central 
Act, 1944 and The and Excise Excise, Customs and 
Finance Act, 1994 Duty Service Tax 
The Central Excise Service Tax 5-48 2011-12 to 2016-17 Assistant Commissioner , 
Act, 1944 and The and Excise Central Excise and 
Finance Act, 1994 Duty Service Tax 
The Finance Act, Service Tax 0.07 2015-16 to 2016-17 Superintendent (Adj), 
1994 Central Excise and 

Service Tax 
Maharashtra Value Value Added 4·13 2013-14 to 2014-15 Deputy Commissioner of 
Added Tax Act, Tax and Sales Tax 
2002 Central 

Sales Tax 
Delhi Value Added Central 0.11 2013-14 VAT Officer, Department 
Tax Act, 2004 Sales Tax of Trade and taxes VATO, 

New Delhi 

viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given 
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment ofloans or borrowings to any financial institution 
or bank or Government or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date. 

ix. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the moneys raised by 
way of term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. The Company 
has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt 
instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

x. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the 
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor 
have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 

xi. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the 
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions 
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed 
in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party 
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. 
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x1v. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 
partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 
3(xiv) ofthe Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xv. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected 
with them. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

Place: P v-v-~-
Date: 3"' ~ f.. 

1 
~ l8" 

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009 
Chartered Accountants 

Amit Borkar 
Partner 
Membership Number: 109846 



Varroc Engineering Limited 
Standalone Balance Sheet 

As at As at 
Notes March March 

31, 2018 31, 2017 

(Rs. ln Million) (Rs. ln Million) 
ASSETS 

Non current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 3 7,632.20 7,595.67 
Capital work-in-progress 3 217.13 253.13 
Investment properties 4 286.42 296.38 
Intangible assets 5 91.05 46.84 
Intangible assets under development 5 5.97 0.21 
Financial assets 

Investments 6 (a) 4,647.21 4,647.21 
Loans 6(b) 17.45 10.13 
Other financial assets 7 0.39 0.41 

Income tax assets (Net) 8 24.04 23.78 
Other non-current assets 9 328.51 87.88 

Total non-current assets 13,250.37 12,961.64 

Current assets 
Inventories 10 1,946.90 1,731.48 
Financial assets 

Investments 11 0.10 
Trade receivables 12 3,888.43 2,517.42 
Cash and cash equivalents 13 (a) 84.03 29.44 
Other bank balances 13 (b) 1.83 1.86 
Loans 14 18,71 25.46 
Other financial assets 15 175.32 45.75 

Other current assets 16 234.58 275.67 
Total current assets 6,349.90 4,627.08 
Total Assets 19,600.27 17,588.72 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 

Equity share capital 17 134.81 143.33 
Other equity 

Reserves and surplus 18 9,982.93 9,338.04 
Other reserves 19 (2.27) (8.95) 

Total equity 10,115.47 9,472.42 

LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 20 2,204.61 3,014.69 
Other financial liabilities 21 5.64 5.16 

Provisions 22 53.05 54.70 
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 23 135.22 4.88 
Other non-current liabilities 24 172.66 . 

Total non-current liabilities 2,571.18 3,079.43 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 25 1,724.32 1,248.57 
Trade payables 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 26 8.75 13.59 
Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 26 3,234.54 2,206.05 

Acceptances 184.12 296.18 
Other financial liabilities 27 1,331.00 893.93 

Provisions 28 194.07 180.07 
Other current liabilities 29 236.82 198.48 

Total current liabilities 6,913.62 5,036.87 
Total equity and liabilities 19,600.27 17,588.72 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2 

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements - ---t and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
As per our report of even date 

I ..... ;;;;; ~ ~M{~., For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 
Chartered Accountants Manoglng Director~ Director 
Fi rm Registration No: 304026E/E-300009 

~~ 
·' M,W .. OMr-,W-~ r ~~- lmeOiretto 

/ 
AMITBORKAR 

THARUVAI R. S~ASAN RAKESH M.DAKJI 
-"' 

Partner 
Membership No : 109846 GroupCFO Company Secretary 

Place: P~ Place: Mumbai 

Date: .::J ~ ' ::4> ~ ~ Date : May 31, 2018 



Varroc Engineering Limited 

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 

Notes Far the year For the year 

ended ended 

March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 

(Rs. In M illion) (Rs. In Mill ion) 

Revenue 

Revenue from operations 30 20,954.75 18,120.53 

Other Income 31 287.71 324.51 

Total income 21,242.46 18,445.04 

Expenses 

Cost of materials consumed 32 12,535.77 10,126.56 

Purchases of stock-in-trade 509.59 657.59 

Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods 33 (10.54) (67.21) 

Excise duty (Refer note 30 I 485.83 1,360.43 

Employee benefits expense 34 1,753.76 1,431.76 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 35 1,016.11 962.82 

Other expenses 36 3,498.84 3,004.45 

Finance costs 

(i) Finance costs other than covered under (ill below 37 401.50 426.90 

(ii)lmputed interest and changes in cash flow estimates on liability portion of CCPS (Refer 41.60 

Note 17 (c)) 
Total expenses 20,190.86 17,944.90 

Profit before tax 1,051.60 500.14 

Income tax expense 39 
Current tax 232.97 107.68 

Short/( excess) provision in respect of earlier years - 3.31 

Net current tax 232.97 110.99 

Deferred Tax 120.33 (30.89) 

Total tax expense 353.30 80.10 

Profit for the year 698.30 420.04 

Other comprehensive income 

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 

Deferred hedging gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges (net of tax) 6.68 0.33 

Items that will nat be reclassified to profit or loss 

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (net of tax) 10.82 (8.04) 

Other comprehensive income far the year (net of tax) 17.50 (7.71 

Total comprehensive income far the year 715.80 412.33 

Earnings per equity share 49 

Basic 4.96 3.57 

Diluted 4.96 3.57 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2 
The notes are an integral part of these fi nancial statements For and on be:alf of the Board of r ectors 

~.=::'1 As per our report of even date l/ 
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP ' .~~ TARANGJAIN 

Chartered Accountants Managing Director 

~ 
Director 

Firm Registration No: 304026E/E-300009 

\~~ 
ASHWANI MrWARI r ~d Whol 1meDirector 

/ ' AMITBORKAR =-
Partner THARUVAI l!?s'RINIVASAN RAKESH M.DARJI 

Membertlp No : 109846 Group CFO Company Secretary 

Place: ~ Place : Mumbai 

Date : :TL .......r_ r., k:,ig Date : May 31 , 2018 



Balance at the bcalnnlnl of the ye.u 

leu:- CtpHal rcdutllon I Ref~:r Noh! 17(0) 
1\dd: Conversion or series ~n~ CCPS Preference shores Into 852,359 equity shares. !Refer note 17 

ldll 
len: Conversion of 852,349 serle5 .D .. CCPS Preh:rence shlre5lnta equity 5htres. !Refer nota 17 

(d)) 

Add:· Issue of 0,0001% Series "8" CCPS 

Add:· Issue of 0.0001% Series "C• CCPS 

DiillaiKe at the t nd oJ I he ve01r 

B Other Equity for the: ye01r e:nded Marth 11, 2018 

Balance at Aprlll, 1017 
Ptofit for the year 

Reme.u urtment of defined benefit obligation (nl!l of tax) 

~ln/(lon) on chilnces In fair va lue of hedcing instruments (net of tax) 
Traru.ac.t/OI\$ with owners In their capacity of owners: 

Capit.al reduction (Refer Note 17 (f1) 
Dividend ~aid ((Rs.O.SQ per Equity share) (Dividend 01-.trlbutlon Tax Rs.ll .19 million)) 

Bal•n~e at March 31 2018 

Other Equity for the year ended March 11, 2017 

Balan~e at Aprill. 2016 

Profitfortheyear 

Reme;nurcmll!nl of defined benefit oblig.ation (net of talC) 

Transfer to deb enture redemption reserve 

Gain/{lou] on chansts In fair v1lue of hede:ing instruments (net of t~x ) 

Tr:ms.acUons with owr.crs in their capacity of owners: 

On conversion of Series "A• CCPS 
luue of CCPS Series ''B" and "C" 
Olvldend paid Hlh0.3.5 &Kr EauilV $hill t C!I (Dividend OlstrjbulJon Tu Rs.4 .61 rnl l lonH 

Balanc·cat March 31 l017 

The notes are :!In lntccral part of these fin1ncialstatements 

As per our report of even date 

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants llP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 304026[/£·300009 

AMlTBORKAR 

Partner 

Membership No: 109846 
Place: P~ 
O.ate: 

Not at 

17 

17 

17 

17 

17 

Notes 

19 

18 

Notes 

18 

19 

17 

17 

18 

Varroc En&lneerlnJ Limited 

Statement of Chanaaa In Equity 

Msrch 

ll, 2018 

141,33 
(8.52) 

8.52 

(8.52) 

134.8~ 

Retained e3mlnas 

1,182.23 
698.30 

10.82 

(72.75) 

1818.60 

Rc=tiil i nedearnln.e;s 

1,015.09 
420.04 

(8.04) 
(200.00) 

_j44 .86 

1182.23 

Uh. ln Million 

M1r'h 
ll 2017 

Ul.ll 

8.52 
11.68 

10.11 

(As. In Million 

Al!:u!rvts a nd Sur~us Other Res.ci'VH 
General C3pltal Securities Debenture Cash flow hedae Equity 

reserve premium redemption component of 

rcurve CCPS 

1,474.38 6,481.43 200.00 (8.95) 

6.68 

8 .52 

1474.38 8.52 6 481 .4] 200.00 2 .27 

Rcsc=rves •nd Surplus. Other Acservn: 

General Ciilpltal Securities Debenture Cash Rowhcdc;e Equity 

reserve premium redemption reserve component of 

tiClerve CCPS 

1,474.38 3,366.25 (9.28) 885.66 

1 474.38 

3,135.43 
(20.25) 

6481.43 

200.00 

200.00 

0.33 

(885 .66) 

8.95 

Tot• I 

9,329.09 
698.30 

10.82 
6.68 

8.52 
(72 .75) 

9 980,,6 

6,732.10 

420.04 
(8.04) 

0.33 

2,249.77 
(20.25) 

(44.J!6 

9329.09 

Fo' ~nd on beh alf o f the Bo1rd of Director ~ 

-----""• - C\ n _/>. -~ GA~A L 
ManagingDirector ./ ~ Dorector / 

ASHWANI ~x:~~RI {) n 
~ CEOandWho/ im•Director /~;..;_:;:_ ::::==-

THARUVAI R. S~ 
GrcupCFO 

Place:Mumbai 

Oate: M4J l1. 2018 

RAKESH M.DARJI 
Company Secretary 



Sr. 

No 

A 

B 

c 

Particulars 

Cash flow from operating activities 
Net Profit before tax 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipment I lntanRible assets 
Provision for doubtful debts I advances 

Varroc Engineering limited 

Cash Flow Statement 

Imputed Interest and changes In cash flow estimates on liability portion of CCPS. 

Finance cost (other than above) 

Rent Income from Investment Property 

Provision for guarantees for loan taken by subsidiary 

Profit on sale of current Investments 
Dividend income 
Interest income 
Government grant 
Operating profits before working capital changes 

Adjustments for changes in: 

Trade receivables 
Trade payable 
Inventories 
Other financial assets 
Other current and non current asset 
Provision 
Other financial liabilities 
Other current and non current liabilities 
Cash generated from operations 
Taxes paid 
Net cash flow from operating activities 

Ca•h flow from inve5ting activitie5 
Dividend received 
Interest received 
(Purchase of)/ proceed• from sale of current investments 
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment 

Rent received on Investment Property 

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment 

Fixed deposits (placed)/ redeemed (net) 
Payment for non current investments 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flow from financing activities 
Increase/( Decrease) in long term borrowings 
lncrease/(Oecrease) in short term borrowings 
Dividend paid on equity shares and preference shares 
Interest paid 
Net cash flow from financing activities 

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

Opening Cash and cash equivalents 
Closing Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consists of 

Cash in Hand 
Current Accounts I Deposit w ith maturity of less than 3 months 
Bank overdraft (Refer note 25 ) 

Notes: 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31,2018 March 31,2017 

IRs. in Mill ion) ( Rs. In M illion) 

1,051.60 500.14 

1,016.11 962.82 
S.36 4.85 
6.81 1.24 

- 41.60 

401.50 426.90 

(46.72) (44.78) 

21.47 (11.09) 

(0.58) (9.42) 
(6.62) (17.63) 
(2.33) (6.51) 

(105.24) 1,289.76 (74.13) 1 273.85 
2,341.36 1,773.99 

(1,370.92) (209.42) 
911.59 95.99 

(215.42) (92.97) 
(131.02) (30.80) 
136.97 15.57 

7.51 3.23 
42.89 18.16 
75.59 (542.81} 30.56 1169.68 

1,798.55 1,604.31 
(233.33} 190.72) 

1,565.22 1,513.59 

6.62 17.63 
3.23 6.51 
0.48 128.82 

116.11 37.24 

46.72 44.78 

(1,139.76) (1,122.73) 

0.03 78.59 
0.10 

(266 - ~7] 1809.061 

(541.27) 286.10 
552.03 (574.33) 
(72.75) (44.86) 

(405.79) (431.96) 
(467.78) (765.05) 

1~Q- !17 160.521 

(99.48} . {38 .96 
31.39 (99.48) 

0.79 0.63 
83.24 28.81 

(52.64} . (128.92 
~1.32 199.481 

1) The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in lnd AS 7 on "Statement of Cash flows" . 

2) Figures in brackets represent outflow of Cash and cash equivalents. 

The notes are integral part of these financial statements -.:::t"·" "' •. ,~,, "' "'~'"" As per our report of even date .... 
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP I ,_,,.~ ..Gt~nt.\y Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 304026E/E-300009 Managing Director ~b Director 

.. u 

,fi~ 
ASHWA1'HESHWARI 

~odW>'•••~ 
rr _:s- 1 AMITBORKAR 

Partner THARUVAI R. SRINIVASAN RAKESH M .DARJI 

Membership No : 109846 Group CFO Company Secretary 

Place : P <---L- Place : Mumbai 

Date : ;J~' 'lclit 
J 

Date : May 31, 2018 



Varroc Englnoorlng Llmltod 
Nota• to tho •tandalono flnanclnlstutomonts 

1 Gonoral Information 
V;uroc Engineering Limited (the "Comp01nyM J I§ eng.:.ged In the business of mOJnufacturlng of Automobile components . The Comp;any h.n 12 m01nufacturing plants, 3 reso.:.rch o1nd 
development centres, 3 wind power and 1 sol.:.r power projects In lndl;a .:.nd c.llors to customers both In the domestic 01nd lntcrn;~Uonal markets. The Company and Its subsidiaries 
operate from manufacturing plant§ and technical development centers across 1\ continents and 12 countries sprc;ad across the globe. 

2 Summary of slgn!f1cant accounting pollclos 

This note provides a list of the slgnlncilnt accounting policies adopted In the prep01r01tlon of these financial statements. These policies h01vc been consistently ;applied to o1llthe years 
presented, unless otherwise stated, 

Boals of Preparation 

(I) Compliance with lnd AS 
These financial statements compty In all miltcrl<~l aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) notified under Section Ul of the CompOJnlcs Act. 2013 (the Act) (Companies 
(Indian Accounting St:Jndards) Rules, 2015] :Jnd other rclevilnt provisions of the Act. 

The preparation of the Financial Statements requires the usc of certain critical accounting estimates and judsemcnts. It also requires the Manasement to exercise judsemcnt In the 
process of 01pplylng the accounting policies. The o1reas Involving o1 higher degree of judgement orcomple)(lty, or areo1s where assumptions 01nd estimates are slgnlfic;:~nt to the financial 
statements are disclosed In Note 2A. 

All amounts Included In these Financial S tatemcnts :Jrc reported In Million of lndl01n rupees (Rs. In Million) except earnlns per sh;:~re dato1 o1nd unless stated otherwise . 
AU amounts In the financialstatemenu have been rounded off to the f)Carest million or decimal thereof. 

1!!1 Historical cost convention 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
• certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value; and 
• defined benefit plans, plan assets measured at fair value: 

ill!l Current- Non-current classification: 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the company's opera tins cycle and other criteriil set out In the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act. 2013. 
Based on the nature of products and the lime between the :Jcqulsltlon of assets for proccsslng and their realisation In cash 01nd cash equlvOJients, the Company has ascertained Its 
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current-non current classification of assets and liabilities . 

.lli!l Amended standards adopted by tho Company 

The amendments to lnd AS 7 require disclosure of changes In liabilities arising from financing activities , Refer note 25 

A) Property plant and equipment 
Tangible assets 
Freehold land Is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost Includes eJCpcndlturc th01t Is 
dlrectty attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is de recognised 
when replaced . All other repairs .and maintenance .are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

Dap~iation mathods estimated usafulli,...e& and residual ,...aluo 
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives or, in the case of certain leased furniture, 
fittings and equipment, the shorter lease term as follows: 

• leasehold land 
• Buildings 
• Plant and Machinery 

• General Plant and Machinery 
•Moulds 

• Computers 
• Vehicles 
• Furniture and Fixtures 
• Other Assets 

Amortised over the period of lease 
30- SO years 

8·20 years 
4-7years 
3·7 years 
4-7 years 
5·10 years 
4·10 years 

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset's useful life or over the shorter of the asset's useful life .and lease term if there is no 
reasonable certainty that the company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term. 
The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's eJCpert which are different than those specified by Schedule II to the Companies Act; 
2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The res idual values are not more than S% of the original cost of the 01sset. The asset's residual values and useful lives .are 
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. 
The asset's carrying amount is written down immediately lo its recoverable amount if I he asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are Included In profit or loss within other gains/ (losses). 

Investment properties 

Property that Is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the company, is classified as investment property. Investment property is 
measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the eJCpenditure will flow to the com,pany and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs .and 
maintenance costs are eJCpensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the repl~ced part is derecognised. 

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Investment properties generally have a useful life of 30-50 years . The useful life 
has been determined based on technical evaluation performed by the management's expert. 



Varroo Englnoorlng Llmltod 
Notoa to tho atandalono financial atatomonta 

lntanglblo aaaota 
(I) Computor aoflwara 
CoHs ;nsocl::.tod with malnt;alnlng sortwHo programmes iHc recogn ised ;u :~n o~Cpcnso as Incurred. Dovolopmont costs that arc directly anrlbuto1blc to the design and testing of 
ldentlrtablc o1nd unlquo sortwuo products controlled by the compilny arc rocosnlud u lnto1ngi1Jio ilSScts when the following criteria .uc met: 
• ills technically fooslblo to complclo the software so that it will be avol/oblo for usa 
~ monogomont lntonds to complete tho sottwnro and use or sell it 
• thara Is on ability to use or solllho sortworo 
• It con bo damon~troted how tho :~.onwur~ wiil gene rote probable future cco"omlc banc~ls 
• odcquato technical, financial nnd other resources to complete tho development and to use or sell the software oro avolloble, and 
• the expenditure eltributobla to the sonwure during its development can be rei obty measured. 
Directly a tlllbtJtilblc cost~ th~l arc C il p l t.:~ ~s cd o~s pout or the sohware In clude il!'mployc l:l co~ I~ and an approprl.:.tc ponlon of relevant overheads. 
Ca pltil lls cd dt!vt:! lopm cn t costs oHC' recorde d as lnt.a nQjbiC' a ss ets ;md ~monlsed from the polnl3t which the 3ssct Is 3Vallable rar usc. 

(II) Tochnlcal know how 
Elcpcndlture on acquiring Technical Knaw·haw (Including Income Tax and R & 0 Cess) Is being amar11scd aver 3 period of six years from the date put to usc 

(Ill) Resoan:h and dovelopmont 
Research expenditure and development expenditure ttlat do not meet ttle criteria In II) above arc recognised as .1n expense as Incurred. Development costs previously recognised as 
<In expense arc nat recognised as an asset In a subsequent period. 

Amortisation methods and periods 
Ttlc company amanlses with a finite useful life using ttle straigtlt ·line me ttl ad over ttle following periods: 
Software and ERP Systems arc being amor11zed avera period ofttlrcc years . 

Bl Leases 
Ttle determination of whether an arrangemcnt is lor contains) a lease is based on ttle substance of the arrangement at the Inception of ttle lease. The arrangement is , or contains, a 
lease if fuiOiment of ttle arrangement Is dependent on ttle use of a spec:lflc asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even If that rlgtlt Is nat 
explicitly speclfled In an arrangement. 

As a lessee 
Leases where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownerstlip arc classtned as finance leases . Finance leases arc capitalized at the lease's 
Inception at the fa ir value of the leased property or, if klwer, the present va lue o( the minimum le;asc payments . The corres ponding rental obliga tions , net of nnance ch;uges, <He 
Included In borrowings or other fl nilnc ialll;abilities as appropri;ate. Each lease payment is allocated between ttle liability and finance cost. Ttle finance cost is charged to the proflt or 
loss over ttle lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of Interest on the remaining balance of ttle liability for each period. Contingent rentals are recognized as expenses 
In the periods In wtlich they arc incurred. 
Leases In whictl a sfenlncant portion of the risks and rewards of ownerstlip are not transfe rred to the company as lessee are classified as operating leas es. Payments made under 
operating leases (net of any Incentives received from ttle lessor) are charged to profit or lass on a stralgtlt·Hne basis aver the period of ttle lea s e unless ttle payments are structured 
to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected innationary cost increases. 

As a lessor 
Leases In wtlich ttle Company does nat transfer substantially all ttle risks and rewards of ownership of an asset arc classiOed as operating leases . Rental income from operating lease 
Is recognized on a stn•lsht~llnr basis over lhc term or lhc relevant lease un les s the payments are structured to incre ;u. o In line with e:Mpected genara l lnflaticn to compensa te for ttle 
lessor'$ e:Mpec led lnfla tion~ry cost Increases . lnitl; l direct costs Incurred in negotl.1ting and arranging an opera ting &e ase .1 re added to the carrving amount of the leased .1s set and 
recog nized over ttla laaose te rm on the! same b;s ls ;,s renta l income . Con tingent rents ; rc recognized as revenue in the period in whicn ttlev are ea rned . 
l eases arc chu s lfkd as t.-,ance Je ases wtle n s ubu amially all of the ris ks and rewuds of ownerstllp transfer rrom lhe Company to the lessee . Amou nts duo from lessees under 
rM"' anc~ lc.1ses He recorded u rccolvable$ ~ ~ Ch c Company'$ net inYC!5olment in the leases . Finance lease income is ;;.!louted to accounting periods so CIS to roRec~ il constant 
periodic rate of retum on the net investme nt oulslindlng In res pec t of the kl ase_ 

C) Impairment of assets 
Ttle Company assesses, at eacn reporting date, wtlether there is an ind ication ttlat an asset may be impa ired . If any indication exists , ar when annual impairment te sting for .1n asset 
is required, ttle Company estimiltes ttle asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is ttle tlighe r of an asse t's or castl ·generating un it's (CG U) fair value less costs of 
disposal and its value in use . Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely Independent of ttlose from 
ottler assets or group of assets. When tne carrying amount of an asset or CG U exceeds its recoverable amount, ttle asset is considered Impaired and is written dawn to its 
recoverable amount. . 

In assessing value In use, ttle estimated future casn flows are discounted to ttlelr present value using a pre·tax discount rate that reflects current m'arket assessments of ttle time 
value of money and the risks specific to ttle asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. Jf no sucn transactions can be 
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by v;luation multiples , quoted snare prices for publicly traded companies orottler available fa ir 
value indicators , 
Ttle Company bases Its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations , wtlich are prepared separately for each of the Company's CG Us to wtlich ttle Individual 
assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of fiVe years. For Ianger periods, a long-term growtn rate is calculated and applied to project 
future casn flows after ttle fifth year. To estimate casn flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates casn flow projec tions 
In the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent ye ars, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, ttlis grawttl rate does nat exceed ttle long·term 
average growtn rate for ttle products, industries. or country or countries in which ttle entity operates, or for the market in whictl the asset is used . 

Impairment losses of continuing operations. including impairment an inven tories, are recogn ized in the statement of profit or loss . 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested far impairment annually as at the year end at the CG U level, as appropriate, and wtlen circumstanCes indicate that tne carrying 
va lue may be impa ired . 

0) Borrowing costs 

General and specific borrowing costs that are direc tly attributab le to the acqu is ition, construction or production of a qua lifying asset are capitalised during ttle period of time ttlat is 
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale . Qualifying assets are assets ttlat necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for ttleir intended 
use or sale. 

Investment Income earned on ttle temporary investment of specific borrowings pending ttleir expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 
capitalisation. 

Ottler borrowing casts are expensed in the period in wtlich they are incurred. 

E} Inventories 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value . 
Cos ts incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted fa r as fallows : 

a) Raw materials : cast includes cost of purctlase and ottler casts incurred in bringing ttle inventories to ttleir present location and condition. Cast is determined on weighted average 
basis. 

b} Fin istled goods and work in progress : cost includes cost of direct ma terials and labour and a proportion of manufactu ring avertleads based on the normal oper;ting capacity, but 
excluding borrowing costs . Cast is determined on weigtlted average basis . 

c) Traded goods: cast includes cost of purchase and other casts incurred in bringing the inventories to ttleir present location and condition. Cos t is determined an weighted average 
bas is. 

d) Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in ttle ordinary course of business, less estimated cas ts of completion and tne estimated casts necessary to make the sale. 

e) Duties and ottler taxes (ottler than those subsequently recovera ble by ttle entity from ttle taxing authouties) are included in the value of inventory. 
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F) Govornmont qr4nt• 
Gr.:~nt' from tho government ;,re recognised Dl tholr f:.lr v;,lua whcnc thoro Is .J ro:uon.:.blo .Jnur.:.nce that the grilnt will be received 11nd the compilnY wlll comply wlth :all iltlachod 
conditions. 
Government grants rci:Hing to Income iHC deferred .:.nd rocognlsod In the profit or loss over tho period necessary to miltch them with the costs thilt thoy OHO Intended to componuto 
01nd presented within other Income. 
Government grants rel;atlns to purchase of property, plant <~nd equipment <He Included In current ;nd non-current UabiUUes iiS deferred Income 01nd -.ro credited to profit or lou on 
str.1tght·ltno bOIS IS OVIH lho expected lfvu of the rei:~ ted ousets ;,nd presented within other Income. 

G) Rovonuo Rocognltlon 

Revenue Is recognized to the extent that It Is prob;!~le that the economic benents will flow to the Company and the revenue can be rellilbly meo.sured, regardless of when the 

payment is being made. Revenue Is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking Into account contractually defined terms of payment <Jnd excludlna 

taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Comp.1ny has concluded that It Is the principal In 0111 of its revenue arrangements since It Is the primary obligor In all the 

revenue .1rr.1ngements as It hilS pricing latitude .1nd Is also exposed to Inventory and credit risks . 

!lased on the Educational MiHerial on lnd AS 18 issued by the ICAI, the Compilny has assumed that recovery of excise duty flows to the company on Its own account. This is for the 

reason that It IS a llabllhy of the manufacturer which forms part of the cost of production, Irrespective of whether the goods arc sold or not. Since the recovery of excise duty flows to 

the company on its own account, revenue Includes excise duty. 

However, sales tax/value added tax (VAT), seJVIce tax and Goods and seJVIce tilX (GST) Is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, It is tax collected on value 

added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, It Is excluded from revenue. 

The specific recognition criteria ducribed below must also be met before revenue Is recognized. 
Sale of goods 

Revenue from the sale of goods Is recognized when the slgnlflcilnt risks .1nd rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue 
from the sale of goods Is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates . The Company 
provides normal warranty provisions on some of 1ts products sold, In line with the Industry practice . A liability Is recognized at the time the product Is sold. The Company does not 
provide any extended warranties. 

Salo of services 

Income from seJVIces is recognised on the basis of time ,Work completed as per contract with the customers. The Company collects service tax and goods and service tax (G S T) on 
behalf of the government ilnd, therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the Company. Hence, It Is excluded from revenue. 

Wind/solar power generation 

Income from the wind /solar power generation Is recognised when earned on the basis of contractual arrangements with the buyers. 

Dutv Drawback 
Income from duty drawback and export incentives is recognised on an accruill basis. 

H) Othor Income 

Interest: Interest Income Is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable. 
Rent income Is recognised on accrual basis when earned in accord;nce with the agreement 
Dividend: income Is recognized when the company's right to receive the payment Is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend. 

Foreign currencv translation 

The company financial statements are presented In INR, which Is also the functional currency. 
Transactions and balances 
Transactions In foreign currencies are initially recorded by the company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies iHe translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains 
and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses). 

Exchance differences arisinc on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss with the exception of the following: 
Exchange differences arising on monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the company's net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognized In CCI until 
the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss. 
Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in CCI. 

Non-monetary items that are measured In terms of historical cost in ;a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary 
items measured at fair value in a foreicn currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arisinG on translation of non­
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair 
value gain or loss is recognized In CCI or profit or loss are also recognized in CCI or profit or loss, respectively). 

J) Employee benefits 

(i) Short-tenn obligations 
liabilities for wages and salalies, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render 
the related seJVice are recognized in respect of employees' seJVices up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities 
are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet. 

(il) Other long-term employee benefit obligations 
The liabilities for earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are 
therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of seJVices provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the 
projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related 
obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes In actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss . 
The obligations are presented as current liabilities In the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur. 

(iii) Post-employment obligations 
The company operates the following post-employment schemes: 
(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity and 
(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund 
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Grotulty obligations 
The nablt'ly or assct rc:cognked In the bo~ l3nco ~ h!:!el ln respect o f defined bene fit and gr;alultv pJans Is the presen t voa luc or tha d11rlned btUicfll obiJg;Hion at the end of tho reporting 
period les s the fa ir v<~lue of plan a~sc t li. fhe daUn.,d benefit obllfptllon it coakulatcd :~nnua lly by :~ctu ;ulc~ uslno the prOjC!cted unit c redit method. 
The presen t value of th a dc nnad benefll obfif_ta tfo n dcnomln;'ltrd In IN" J~ dvtarmlncd by dlscounUng the estlm.:Hed fu ture c:uh outfJow1 by refe rence to mt~rkct yields .o~tthe and of tha 
rcportln(l. period on govetnmcnt Uonds that have term ~ o~ppro)llrnallns to the torms of tho reliJ tcd obligation. The ben cOts which arc dcnomln~tcd In currency other than IN I\, tho cash 
flows. ;are discounted us ing markr.t yle ld\ de termined by roforonce to hlJih·qu.:.llty corporate bonds 1ho1t IIIH! danomln~ tC!d In the curn!m::v in which the benefits will be pnld, and that 
h<~vc- terms ilpproKltniltlnfl to tho tc:!mU or the reiD tad obiiiJ.l llon. 

The net Interest cost Is C.llcul;lted by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the der'rned benefit obllgiltlon 11nd the fair Villue of plan o1sseh . This cost Is Included In employee 
benefit expense In the statement of profit;~nd loss. 
Rcmeasurcmcnt gains and losses ;~rising from experience adjustments ilnd changes In ;actuilriOJI oasumptlons ;ue recognised In the period In which they occur, directly In other 
comprehensive Income. They OJre Included In ret.:~lncd c.:~rnlngs In the sliltement of changes In equity mnd In the b.:~l.:~nce sheet. 
Ch'olngcs In the present v<~luc o( the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curt.:~llments 01re recognised lmmedliltely In profit or loss <IS p01st servlco cost. 

Doflnod contribution plans 
The company makes contributions to funds for certain employees to the regulatory authorities. The company has no funher p.:~yment obllg.1Uons once the contributions have been 
p;ald, The contributions arc iiCCounted for iiS defined contribution plans and the contributions 01rc recognised :.s employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions 
.ue recognised as an asset to the extent th.:~t a cash refund or a reduction In the future payments Is available . 

(lv) Bonus plans 
The company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses . The company recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there Is a past practice that h.:~s created .:1 

constructive obligation. 

(v) Termination benefits 
Termk'I:Hion bencfrts arc pay;able when employm~nt Is tcrminil tCd by the comp11ny be fore the normal retirement date, or when .:~n employee accepts voluntary redundancy In 
exch.ango for these benefits. The Comp.any recognises termin.atlon benefits ~~the urlier of the following dates: (a) when the company can no longer withdraw the offer of those 
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognis es coS IS for a rcstructurklg th.at ls within tha scope! or lnd AS 37 and involves the payment of terminations benefits. In the c.ase of .an offer 
made to oncouroige volt.Jnt.3ry redundancy, the terminaliofl benefits :Jre measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benents falllng due more th.an 12 
months after the end of lhe reporting period are discounted to present value. 

K) Income tax 

Current Income tax assets and liabilities arc measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorllles . 

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss Is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or In equity). Current tax Items ue 
recognized in correlation to the underlying tr41nsactlon either in OC I or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken In the tax returns with respect to situations 
In which applicable tax res:ulations are subject to interpretation and establishes ·provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabllttles and their carrylns: amounts for financial reporting purposes 
at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax lia billUes are recognized for all tax01b le temporary dlrferences, C!Xcept: 
·In respect or l.auble IC!mpor.uy differences <~uoclatcd with lnvcs lments ln subsldliuies, associates and Interests In joint ventures, when the liming of the reversal of the tcmpor.:~ry 
differences can be con tro~ed and it is probable that tho temporary differences wjll not re verse in the foreseeable future 
Deferred tax assets al'e recognb:ed for~ ~ deductible temporary differences, the c.arry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets including MAT 
credit are recog n i:~:cd to the extent that It Is prob<1b le that t<1uble profi t wil be i~Vil ilable against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and unused U1x losses can be utilized. except: 
·In respect of deductible temporary differences associ;~ ted with investments In subsidiaries, associmtes and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the 
extent lhat it is probabk!' that th e temporary differences win reve rse In l.hc foreseeoil ble future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be 
utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to 
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re·assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that It has become 
probable that future taxable profits wm allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at theta)( rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax 
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Oeferred ta)l rela tinB to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either In other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are 
recog niLed jn correlation to the underlying tr<~nsaction either in 0 C I or directly in equity. 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the dderred ta)(es relate to 
the same tilx abl@ entity and the same taxation authority. 

L) Provisions 

General 
Provistons are recognized when the Company has a prese nt obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economk benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a rer.able (!Stimate can be made of the amount of the oblig~tion. When the Company expects some or all of 01 provision 
to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract. the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually cenil in. The expense 
relating to <1 provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre·tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When 
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage oftime is recognized as a finance cost. 

Warranty provisions 
Provisions forwarranty·reiated costs are recognized when the product is sold or service provided to the customer. Initial recognition Is based on historical experience. 

Sales/ value added taxes paid on acqulsitjon of assets or on incurring expenses 
Expenses and asse ts are recc;~sni.zed net of the amount of sales/value added taxes paid, except: 
-When thi! tax incu rred on a purchi st of assets or seNices is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, theta)( paid is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of 
the asse t or u part of the t!!xpense Item. as applic able 
·When receivables and payables are stated wilh tl'le amount of tax included 

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheer. 
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M) Egrolnqt par Shpro 
(I) Bulc aomlngo par ohon> 
Oulc: e.unlngs per shil n! l1 c:iJlcubtcd bydlv kUng: 
• lhe proft t nll ribut.nbla to owners or \ht1 comptmy 
• by the wetuhted .JVttt:lftC! numbe r of equity '5hares ou1Sto1ndlng during the reporting porlod. The weighted aver.Jge number of equity sh;m:s outst;)ndlng during the peflod ;and for ~II 

periods preHntcd Is ad;_.sted for event~. iUCh ;u bonus shares, other than tho conversion of polcntlal equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outst.Jndlng, 
without ;a corro1pondlng ch.'l ng co In u:source1o . 

(II) Ollulod aornlngs par shoro 
Diluted e.lmln&s pN share :adjusts the figures used In the detcrmlna llon of bo1s lc c.;~rn lngs per s hare to toakc Into .Jccount: 
• the allor Income tnx effect of intorost and other financing costs assoclated with diluUve potcnUBI equity shores, nnd 
• the wt.~ighlod overage number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the converskm ol all dilutive potential equity shares. 
Dlh.Jtf..,l! pote ntl:~ l ~qulty shar~s arc der:!med converted as at the beglnnlne of the period. unlcH Issued at a liiltC!r dilte . Dllutlve potential equity shu res arc determined Independently for 
eilch period presented_ 
The number of equity shares .1nd potentially dllutlll'e equity sh.1res 01re adjusted retrospectively for all period presented for any share splits and bonus shares Issues Including for 
changes effect~d prior to the authoriZCJtlon for Issue of the flnilnCICJI stiltements by the DOiHd or Directors. 

N) Cash and Cash Egulvalonts 
C;uh o1nd cash equivalent In thC! balance sheet comprise cash at banks ilnd on hand and short·term deposits with an orfglnill maturity of three months or less. which are subject to 01n 
lnsignirlcant risk of change1 In value . 

For the purpose of the statement or cash flows, cash and c01sh equlv<Jients consist of cash and short·term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrilfts <IS they are 
considered <In integral part of the Company's cash m<lnagement. Bank overdrilft are shown within borcowings In current liabilities in the Balance sheet. 

0) Trade receivables 
Tr<lde receivables arc recognised Initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method, less provision for impairment. 

P) Contributed equity 

Et~uity Instrument Including its component parts are classified In accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability and <In equity 
Instrument 

Q) Dividends 

Provision is made for the amount of iiRY dividend declared, being appropriately iluthorised and no longer at the discretion or the entity, on or before the end of the reponing period but 
not distributed at the end of the reporting period. 

R) Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported In a m01nner consistent with the Internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. 

S) Financiallnstruments 
Financial liabilities 

lnit_lal recognition and measurement 

F ina nclalliabilltles are classified, at Initial recognition, as financialliabllities at fa lr value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging 
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate . 

All financial liabilities are recognized Initially at fair value and, in the case of loans ilnd borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs . 

The Company's financial liabilities Include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial 
instruments. 

Subsequent measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

·Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or lass in c lud~ financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as ilt fa ir value through profit or 
loss. Financial liabilities are cl;assified as he&d for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Thi$ category als o includes derivative financial 
instruments entered into by the company that ate not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relations hips as defined by lnd·AS 109. S eparat~d embedded derivatives are also 
classified as held for trading unless they are des.lgnated a~ effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recogniZed In the profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair ~alue: through profit or loss ~re desig nated at the initial date of recognition , and only if the criteria in lnd-AS 109 are 
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value galnsjlosses anributabl!!- to chane,es in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These g01insjlosses are not subsequently 
transferred to P&l. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss. The company has not designated any financial liablllty .as at fairvalut: th rcush p roflt and loss. 

Loans and borrowings 
This is the category most r~levant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest rate ( EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. TheE IR amortization is included as 
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. This category generally applies to interest bearing loans and borrowings. 

Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor 
fa ils to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms. of the debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per 
the Impairment requirements of lnd-AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative arnortization. 

Oorecognition 
A flnancialliability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires when an existing financial liability is replaced by anotMer from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the de recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Embedded DerivatiVes 
If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of fnd·AS 109, the company does not separate embedded derivatives . Rather, it applies the 
classification requirements contained in lnd·AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract 
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Emboddod rorolgn currency dorlvatlvoa 
Embedded foreign currency dorlvattvos arc not sopor.:~ ted from tho host contract if thoy .1ro closely rol;ued. Such ombeddod dorlv.1Uvos aro closely rolatod to the host contrilcl, If tho 
host contract is notlcverascd, docs notcontilln any option future ilnd roqulros p;aymcnts In one of tho following currencies: 

·tho functlono1l currency of 01ny subst:~ntlal po1rty to tholt contr.lct, 

-the currency In which the price of the rclo:~tcd good or service that Is ,;acquired or dollvorod Is routinely dcnomin<~tcd In commcrcl:~ltranuctlons around the world, 

·a currency that h, commonly used In contracts to purchase or soli non-nnOJntlillltoms In tho economic environment In which the tro1ns;~ctlon takes pl;~ce (I.e. relatively liquid o1nd stablo 
currency) 
Foreign currency embedded derivatives. whlth do not meet the above criteria iHC separated and the derivative Is accounted for at f.:~lr v.:~lue through proOt and loss. The company 
currently docs not have ilny such derivatives which He not closely relatod. 

Fair valuo moasuromont 
The Company measures financiill Instruments, such o1s, derivatives at f.:~ir v.:~lue .u each b.:~lilnce sheet date. 

Fillr villue is the price that would be received to sell an a:oset or paid to transfer.:~ liability In an orderly transaction between market partlclp<~nts ill the me.:~surement dille. The fillr 
villue meilsurcment Is based on the presumption thilt the tr<JnsacUon to sell the asset or ttilnder the lio1blllty takes place either: 

· In the prlnclp:.l market for the asset or liability, or 
·In the absence of a principal market. In the most advantageous muket for the iiSSet or liablllty 

The principal or the most adv.:~ntageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability Is measured using the assumptions !hilt m<Jrket 
p:.rtlclp<Jnts would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming th<Jt market p<~rtlclpilnts <Jct In their economic best Interest 

A fair value measurement of a non·financlal <IS Set takes into account a m.:~rket participant's ability to generate economic benefits by us ins the asset In its highest and best usc or by 
selling It to another market participant th<Jt would usc the asset In Its highest ~nd best use . 

The Comp:.ny uses va lu:.tion technlqu~s that ;~ reapprop riate in the circumstances and for wh ich suffaclcnt data are av;aiiOJble to measure fair value, ma~~:lmlzlng the use of relevant 
observable lnpulS and mlnlmiZinK the use or unobservable input5 . All assets and liabilitie s rcr which fa ir v;:~ lu e Is me-asu re d or disclosed In the financial st.ltements <He categorized 
within the f.1 lr va lue hier01n:: hy, described as follows, based on the lowest level Input that is significant to the flJir va lue mcuurement as a whole: 
Level1 -Quoted (unadjusted) mar1<el prices in active mari<els for identical assets or ~abilities 

l evel 2- Valuation techniques for v..hlch the lowest level input tt'lat is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
Level 3- VatuaUon techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the faU" value measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized In the financial statements on a recurring basis , the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the 
htcrarchy by re·assesslng categorisation (based on the lowest lcvelln,put that Is significant to the fair value measurement as <1 whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and rlsk'i of the asset or liability and 
the level of the fa ir value hierarchy as explained above. 

This note summarizes o~ecounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes . 
Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (Note 43) 
Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 43) 
Financial instruments (Including those carried at amortized cost) (Note 44, 45 and 46) 

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 

Initial recogn ition and subsequent measurement 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risks and Interest rate risks, 
respectively, Such derivative financial Instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re·measured at 
fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

Any gains or losse'i arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, e~~:cept for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognized in 
OC I and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the 
recognition of a non·financial asset or non·financialliability. 

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as: 
1) Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized firm commitment 

2) Cash Row hedges when hedging the e~tposure to variability in cash nows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a 11ighly 
probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognized firm commitment 

3) Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation 

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the ht!dge relitlonship to whic.h the Compa ny wishes to apply hedge accounting and the 
risk managemant obiectliro'e and slr'iltegy for underukll"'g the hedse . The documentadon i'ldudes lhe Compiny's risk ma nagement objective and str.ategy for undertaking hedge, the 
hadgins/ economic relitlonshlp, the hedg@d item or transac tion, the nature of the risk be ins hedgl!td, hedge ratio and how the entity wil assess the effectivl!ness of change:; in the 
hedging ins trument's fair valua in offsenlng the expos ure to chanses in the hed.ged Item's fair value or cash flows attributable to the nedcfld rid. S ur;h hedges ;;ue expected to be 
hlehly QHective In ach ievinc offst!:rWIS changes in fair va lue or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoi1g basis to detetmlnl! thai they ittua lly have been highly effective throughout 
the financia l reponing periods for wh ich they were designa ted. 

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below: 
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Cash flow hedgos 

The effective portion of the g11ln or loss on the hedging Instrument Is recognized In OC I In the cash flow hedge reserve, while ilny lnoffoc:t!ve portion Is recognlled Immediately In tho 
st:ucmel'lt of profit or loss . 

The Company uses derivative contr:~cts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk In fo recast trotnuctlons a~nd firm commltmel'lts . The lner(ecUve portion relating to fore ign 
currency contracts Is recognized In finance costs and tho lneHccllve ponlon re liltlng to commodity contracts Is recognized In other Income or expenses. 

Amounts recognized as OC I are transferred to profU or lou when the hedged trans:~ction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged flnancl01llncome or OnOJnciOJI expense Is 
recognized or when a forecast s01le occurs . When the hedged Item Is the cost of a non-flnanclai<Jssct or non-On<~nclillll ilbillty, the amounts recognized as OC I are transferred to tho 
In itial carrying amount of the non-On<~nclal asset or Uablllty. 

If the hedging Instrument expires or Is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or If Its designation as a hedge Is revoked, or 
when the hedge no longer meets tl'le criteria for hedge accounting, .any cumul;~tlve gain or ross prev iously recogn ized In OC I remains sep;~rately In equity until the fore cut tranuctlon 
occurs or the foreign currency Orm commitment Is met. 

Financial Assots 
Initial Recognition and measurement 
All financial assets are recognized Initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value tl'lrough profit and loss, transactions costs that arc attrlbut::.blc to 
the acqui'5ition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial J'5Sets carried at fa ir vah.Je through profit or loss are expensed In profit or loss . 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 
-Debt instruments at amortized cost 

-Debt lnstrumerats at fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVTOC I) 
-Debt Instruments, derivatives and equ ity Instruments at f01ir value through profit or loss (F VT P l) 
·Equity Instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Debt instrum.ents at amortized cost 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met: 

(a) The asset Is held with in a business model whose objective Is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 

(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to casn flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (S P PI) on the princ ipal amount outstanding. 

T his category is the most rele ~Jilnt to the company. After lniUal measurement such financial assets are subsequently measured at 01mortlzed cost using the effective Interest rate 
(EIR} method . Amortized cost is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of E IR. TheE IR amortization Is 
included In lina ncl!' cons Ancome In the Statement of Profit or Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized In the profit or loss . This category generally applies to trade 

and other rece l'Jables. 

Debt instruments at FVTOCI 

A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTO C I if both of the following criteria are met: 

(a} The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets , and 

(b) The asset's contractual cash flows representS P Pl. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured Initially as well as at each reporting date at f01ir value. Fair value mo'Jements are recognized In the other 
comprehensive income {OCI) . However. the company reco8,nizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and fore ign exchange gain or Joss in the P&L. On de-recognition 
of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOC I debt Instrument is reported as Interest 
income under E IR method . 

Debt instruments at FVTPL 

FVTP L is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorilatlon as at amortized cost or as FVTO C I is classified as FVTP L. 

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOC I criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if 

do ing so reduces or eliminates .il measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). The Company has not des ignated any debt instruments as at 
FVTPL. 
Debt instruments included within tl'le FVTP L category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in P&L. 

Equity investments 

All equity investments In scope of lnd-AS 109 are measured at fa ir value. Equity instruments wh ich are held for trad ing 01nd contingent cons ide rattan recognlzed by an acquirer in a 
business combination to which Jnd-AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in otl'ler 
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such an election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. This classification is made on initial 

recognitton and is irrevocable . 

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument at FVTOC 1. then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the DC I. There is no recycling 
of the amounts from oc 1 toP &l, even on the sale of the investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

Equity instruments included with in the FVTP L category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized In P&L . 

Oerecognition 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financi<~l asset or part of a company of similar financial assets) is primarily de recognized (i.e. removed from the company balance 

sheet} when: 

·The rights to rece ive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
-The company has transferred Its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party 
under a •pas$·through• arr.lngement; and eitl'ler {a } the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transf~;med nor 
retained substan tia lly aU the risks 01n d rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the company ha$ transferred its rights to receive cash flows fro m an asset o r has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it e'Ja luates if and to what extent it has retained the 
risks and rewards of ownersh ip. Whe n it has neither traMferred nor te ta ined substa ntia try all of the risks and rewards of the asse t, nor transferred control of the asset, the company 
continues to recogniz e the cr;nsferred u ut to the extent of the compa ny continuing invotvement. In that case, the compa ny als o recognizes an associated liability. The transferred 
asset and the associa ted liability are meas untd on a basis that renects the rights and obligations that the company has re toil ined. 
Continuln£ involvement tha t t:akes the form of a guarantee over the transferred as: sat is measured at the lower of the original ca rrying amount of tl'le etsset and the maximum amount 

or conside ra tion th.ilt the: company could be required to rep ay. 



Varroc Englnoorlng Llmltod 
Notoa to tho atandalono nnanclal atatomonta 

lmpa!rmont of finqnclgl anotp 
In <~ccordance with lnd·/\S 10!), the camp:any 01pplles expected credit Ia's (ECL) model for me<~suroment and recognition of Impairment loss on the follawlns fln~ncl.1l assets ilnd 
credit risk exposure:· 
(o) Fln;,nclill:assots th;:at arc deln Instruments, o1nd arc measured at 01mort.lzod cost e.s.loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables ilnd bank b<~l:ance 
(b) Ffnilntliii.Hsets th:at .;uo debt lnurumonl1 and arc measured at FVTOCI 
(c) lease receivables under lnd-1\S 17 
(d) Tro.do recolv<~bles or .1ny contrHtuo.l fiJlht to receive co.sh or another llnanci<~ I .Hset th:at result from trans.1ctlons that arc within the scope of lnd /\5 18 
(c) Lo.1n commitments which aro not measured H <~I FVTPL 
(f) Fln<~nCiillguilrilnteo contracts which arc not measured as at FVTPl 

The compiln\1 follows 'simplified ~pproilch' for reeosnltlon of lmpillrmcnt loss Jllowancc an: 
·Trade receivables 
·/\II !usc rccclnbles rcsu\Ong from tranuctlons within the scope of lnd AS 17 

The Olppllciltlon of simplified approilch docs not require the company to tro1ck changes In credit risk. Rt~thcr, It recognizes Impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECls <~I each 
reponing date, right from its Initial recognition. 

For recog nition of Impairment loss on other flnJnc!al .1ssets 01nd clsk CKposure, the compOJny determines that whether there has been a significant Increase In the credit risk since 
initia l rccog nhion. If crcdil risk has not Increased significantly, 12·month EClls used to provide for Impairment loss. However, If credit risk has Increased significantly, lifetime ECL Is 
used. If. In .a subseq"ent period, credit qu<~llty of the Instrument Improves ~uch thoH there Is no longer a slgnlflcant Increase In credit risk since initial recognition, then the -entity reverts 
to recogniz ing lmp.l lrmont loss t~llowance based on 12·month E Cl. 

lifetime ECL arc the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial Instrument. The 12·month ECL Is .1 portion of the Hfetlmc 
EC l which results from default events on 01 financial Instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reponing date. 

E C l Is the diffcrci'Jce between :all contractuoal ush Rows that arc due to the company Is In accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (I.e. all 
cash shortfalls}, discounted at the original E IR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity Is required to consider: 

·All contractual terms of the financial Instrument (including prepayment, extension, C.illl and slmil<~r options) over the expected life of the financl;~l instrument. However, In rare cases 
whe"n the expected life of the financial Instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity Is required to usc the remaining contractual term oftke financial instrument. 

·Cash Oows from the sale of the collaterJI held or other credit enhancements that arc lntegrnlto the cantrOJctual terms . 

As a practical expedient, the company uses a provision matrlll to determine Impairment loss allowance on portfollo of Its trade receivables.. The provision matrix Is based on Its 
hh.torlcally obseNed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the l'llstorlcal obscNed default 
rates arc updated and changes In the forward-looking estimates are ilnalyz.cd. 

E C L impairment foss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as lnc.ome/expcnsc in the statement of profit and loss {P&L}. This amount is reflected under 
the head 'other expenses'ln the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below: 

Financial assets measured at amortized cost, contract assets and lease roceivablos: 
ECL Is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an Integral p~rt. of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carryrng amount. Until the asset 
meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce Impairment allowiillnce from the gf"OsS carrying amount. 

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet i.e. as a liability. 

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: S lnce financial assets are already reflected at fair v:.lue, impairment allowance Is not further reduced from its value. Rather, E C L amount Is 
presented as 'accumulated Impairment amount' In the OC I. 

For assessing increase In credit risk and Impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of 
facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis . 
The company does nat have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (P 0 C I) financial as sets, I.e., financial assets which are credit imp a ired on purchase/origlna lion. 

Reclassification of financia l assets and liabilities 

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition . After Initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity 
instruments and financial liabilities. 

For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only If there is a change In the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model 
are expected to be infrequent. 

The company senior management determines cl'langes in the business model as result of external or Internal changes which are significant to the company operations . Such changes 
are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that Is significant to the operations . 

If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period 
following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any prev iously recognized gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 

The fallowing table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for: 

Original 
Classification 

Amortitcd cost 

FVTPL 

Amonlzed cost 

FVTOCI 

FVTPL 

FVTOCI 

Revised 
Classification 

FVTPL 

Amortized cost 

;vToc 1 

Amortize d cost 

FVTOCI 

FVTP l 

Accounting Treatment 

Fair value Is measured at reclassification date , Difference between prev ious amortized c:ost and fa ir 
va lue Is recognized in P&L. 

Fair value at reclassification date becomes Its new gross carrying amount. E IR is calculated based 
on the new gross carrying amount. 

Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous amortized cost and fa ir 
value is recpgnited in OCI. No change in EIR due to reclassification. 

Fair value <Ill reclassification date becomes its new amortized cost carrying amount. However. 
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against f.a lr value. Consequently, the asset is measured 
as ir it had always been measured at amortized cost. 

Fair value at reclassification date becomes Its new carrying amount. No other adjustment is 
required. 

Assets continue 10 be measured at ft~ ir value. Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized ln OC I 
;s reclassified to P&L <!It the reclassification date. 



Varroc Englnoerlng Limited 
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Nota 2A: Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires momagement to make judsments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets., 

liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. 
These judgments, estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors, Including expectations of future events that may have a flmmclal Impact on the company 

and that are believed to be reasonable under the c:lrcumstances. 

This note provides an overview of the areas that Involve a higher degree of judgments or complexities and of Items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and 

assumptions to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed Information about each of these judgments, estimates and assumptions Is mentioned below. These Judgments, estimates 

and assumptions are continually evaluated. 

Significant estimates and judgements 

1 Impairment of financial assets 

The Impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates . The company uses judgement In ma king these assumptions and 

selecting the Inputs to the Impairment calculation, based on the company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each "'Porting period. 

2 Fair valuation of financial Instruments 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities cannot be measured based on quoted prices In active markets, their fair value Is measured using valuation techniques Including 

the discounted cash flow model (DCF). The Inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this Is not feasible, a degree of judgement Is required In 

establlshing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair 

value of financial instruments. 

3 Defined benefit plans 

The liability or asset recognised In the balance sheet In respect of gratuity plans Is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of 

plan assets. The defined benefit obligation Is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method . 

An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that niay differ from actual developments in the future. These Include the determination of the discount rate, future salary 

increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities Involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation Is highly sensitive to changes In these assumptions. All 

assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 
The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated In INR Is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the 

report ing period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. 

The mortality rate Is based on Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006·08) Ultimate. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. 

Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future Inflation rates. 

Further details about gratuity obligation are given In Note 42. 

4 Deferred tax 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the realization of future tax benefits Is sufficiently probable to recognize deferred tax assets. This assessment requires the use of 

significant estimates w ith respect to assessment of future taxable income. The recorded amount of total deferred tax assets could change If estimates of projected future taxable Income or If 
changes In current tax regulations are enacted. 

5 Customer Claims 

The company has made accruals in respect of unsettled prices for some of its raw materials purchase contracts and finished goods sales contracts. These accruals are made considering the 

past settlement formula I communications with the vendors and customers respectively. The management has assessed and believes that the timing of cash outflow perta ining to these 

accruals are uncertain and hence considered the same as payable I receivable on demand and classified under current liabilities I assets respe~ti vely. 

Note 28: Standards issued but not yet effective 
1 lnd AS 115 • Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified lnd AS 11S, 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' , on 28 March 2018, which is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 

April2018. 

The new revenue standard is based on a transfer of control model, which fundamentally changes the basis of revenue recognition, presentation and disclosures. The core principle is described 

in a five·step model framework. 

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact on the financial statements in terms of the amount and timing of revenue recognition under the new standard. 

lnd AS 21-The Effects of Changes In Foreign Exchange Rates 

Appendix B to lnd AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: On March 28, 2018, MCA has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 

2018 containing Appendix B to lnd AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate 

to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. This amendment will come into force 

from April!, 2018. The company has evaluated the effect of this on the standalone financial statements and the impact is not material. 

lnd AS 40- Investment property 

Amendment to lnd AS 40 regarding transfers of investment property: On March 28, 2018 MCA has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 which 

clarifies that to transfer to, or from, investment properties there must be change in use . A change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment 

property and there is evidence of the change in use. A change in intention, in isolation, is not enough to support a transfer.The amendment has also re·characterised the list of evidence of 

change in use as a non-exhaustive list of examples and scope of theses examples have been expanded to include assets under construction and development and not only transffirs of 

completed properties. The company has decided to apply the amendment prospectively to change in use that occur after the date of initial application (i.e. April 1, 2018). Management has 

assessed the effect of the amendment on classification of existing property at April 1, 2018 and concluded that no reclassifications required . 

4 Amendments to lnd AS 12 Income taxes regarding recognltion of deferred tax assets on unrealised lasses 

The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred taxes where an asset is measured at fair va lue and that fair value is below the asset's tax base. They also clarify certain other aspects of 

accounting for deferred tax assets set out below: 

-A temporary difference exists whenever the carrying amount of an asset is less than its tax base at the end of the reporting period. 

-The estimate of future taxable profit may include the recovery of some of an entity's assets for more than its carrying amount if it is probable that the entity will achieve this. For example, 

when a fixed-rate debt instrument Is measured at fair value, however, the entity expects to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and it is probable that the asset will be recovered for 

more than Its carrying amount. ~ 

-Where the tax law restricts the source of taxable profits against which particular types of deferred tax assets can be recovered, the recoverability oft e-r-1.;~~ ~ftl¥FJst;~?-on ~ 

assessed in combination with other deferred tax assets of the same type. &=, ~ l .... 1 r~~ ~~lttbfu'<>s'eassetv~ ·Ho 
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Note l ·Property Pl1nt and Equipment 

Anot Clan 

Freehold land 

lC!nlehold l;,nd 

F.nf tmy buildings 

Office buildings 

J'l .~n t '"" muhtnu·1 
rattnry I!QUipmeniS 

E l ~ctrlcallnstallatlons 

Computers 
Mould and dies 

Electrical fittings 

VC!hlcles 

fu rnit ure and fixtures 
OWce equlpments 

Tools 31\d Instruments 

iot.al 

Caplt.al work-ln-proaress as at March 31, 2018 
Open In£ capH.ill work-in-progress. 

Add/Uon during the year 

Cap lt:.llsed during the ye:.r 

Closln& capital work·ln -pro&ress 

AUC!tCius 

Ftcr:=hold land 
leasehold land 

Factory buildings 
Office buildings 

Plant and machinery 
Factory equipments 

ElectrkallnstalliJtlons 

Computtts 

Mould and dies 

Electrical fittings 

vehicle-~ 

Furniture and fixtures 

Office equipments 

Tools and Instruments 

Total 

capital work-ln-pro&ress iJS at Marth 31,1017 

Opening capital work-in-progress 

Addition during the year 

Capitalised during the vear 

dosing capital work-in ·progress 

(i) leased asseiS 
Leue h.,.d land und~r flnance- luse 

leasehold land 

CoH 

Acc:umulated depreciation 

Net CarrvfnJ amount 

(ill Property, plant and equipment pledged a5 security 

Aut 

April 

1 1017 
(i9,11 

360.90 
1,343.05 

71.132 

~.•I.U.H!'t 

47-1.75 
19o1 .9G 

75.92 

279.69 
40.77 

16.05 
115.11 

52.03 

106.25 

9,275.76 

A sat 
April 

1, 2016 

68 .11 
360.90 

1,253.71 
624.10 

4,495.11 

393.38 

147.99 

56.22 
249.34 

38.64 

20.09 
106.87 

38.52 
77.99 

7.910.97 

As at March 

31,2018 

389.17 

14.17 

375.00 

Gross carryln1amount 

Additions 

29,27 

17.41 
127.44 
h~lll 

82.10 

10.87 

13.03 
77.32 

0.28 

29.55 
45.99 

11.93 

47.98 
1,145.34 

253 .13 

1,109.34 
(1,145.34) 

217.13 

Dlapouh 

ll6.00 
~7.28 

12.93 

0.11 

14.75 

0.05 

3.92 

0.30 

3.37 
168.71 

Gross carrvlnJ amount 

Additions 

89.34 

90.22 
950,56 

84.88 

47 .26 

19.74 

61.60 
2.13 

1.89 
8.25 

13.53 

28.53 
1.397.93 

444.02 

1,207.04 
(1,397.93) 

253.13 

(Rs in Mlllton I 
AsatMiilrch 

31,1017 

360.90 

9.38 
351.52 

Olspouls 

11.82 
3.51 

0.29 
0.04 

31.25 

5.93 
0.01 

0.02 
0.27 

53.14 

Refer to note 52 for information on property, plant and equipment pledged as security by the company 

(iii) Contractual obligations 

Refer to note 48 for disclosure of eontraetual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment. 

At at March 31, 
2018 

68.11 

389.17 
1,360,..,6 

755.76 

G,Ol!:J.74 

543.92 

205 .83 
88.84 

342.26 
4100 

41 .68 
161.10 

63 .66 

150.86 

10.252.39 

As at March 31, 

2017 

68.11 
360.90 

1,343.05 

714.32 
5,433.85 

474.75 

194.96 

75.92 
279,69 

40,77 

16.05 

115.11 

52.03 
106.25 

9~275 . 76 

Aut 

April 

1 2017 

~ .38 

1tlt1.45 

22.75 

1,078.00 

125.76 

57.65 
39.39 

89.62 
11.66 

10.61 

26.10 

21 .62 

45.10 

1.680.09 

A sat 
April 

1, 2016 

4.71 

71.52 
10.76 

466.12 

60.03 

27.29 

20.13 
45 .21 

6 ,31 

8.28 
12.85 

10.79 

18.28 

762.28 

(iv) Office Building includes premises on ownership basis In a Co-Operative Society Rs . 6.3 Million, including cost of shares therein of Rs.125/· per share. 

Accumulated depreciation 

Deprecl•tlon 
Dlspos•l• 

char1o 

.., ,79 

65.78 
!J,!JH 3.31 

6Sl.56 J.! .91 

69.25 4.36 

23 .72 

17.46 0.11 

58.30 1.15 
5.50 0.03 

6.14 3.78 
17.89 

12.21 0 .25 

32.09 0.66 

976.67 36.57 

Accumulated depreciation 

Depreciation 

ehar&e 

4.67 

72.93 
11.99 

613.84 

66.97 

30.65 

19.30 
46 ,36 

5.35 

5.68 
13.25 

10.85 

27.01 

928 .85 

Disposals 

3.96 

1.24 
0.29 

0.04 

1.95 

3.35 

0 .02 

0.19 

11.04 

(As. In Million) 

Not t~~rrvln1 
•mount 

At at M1rt.h ll, As at March 

2018 ll, 2018 

68.11 
1..,,17 375.00 

210.23 1,150.23 

?9 41 7?fil"'l 

1,1n665 4,lll.D9 
190.65 353.27 

81.37 124.46 
56.74 32.10 

146.77 195,A9 

17. 13 13.67 

12.97 28.11 
43.99 117.11 
33.58 30,08 

76.53 71\.ll 

2,621J.19 7.(,32 .20 

(Ill. In Milllo_n} 

Net carrylna 
.amount 

As at M;~rch 31, At at March 31, 

2017 2017 

68 .11 

9 .38 351.52 
144.45 1,198.60 

22.75 691.57 

1,076.00 4,357.85 
125.76 348.99 

57.65 137.31 
39.39 36.53 
89 ,62 190.07 

11.66 19.11 
10.61 5.44 

26.10 89 .01 

21.62 30.41 
45 .10 61.15 

1,680.09 7,595.67 



Nota 4 • Investment Proportios 

Asset class 

LoMe hold land 
Factory bulldlnr,s 

Total 

Capital work-In-progress as at March 31, 2018 
Opening capital work-In-progress 

Addition during the year 
Capitalised during the year 
Closing capital work-In -progress 

Asset Class 

l easehold land 
Factory buildings 

Total 

Varroc Engineering limited 
Notes to tho standalone financial statements 

Gross carrying amount 

As at April1, 
2017 

33.30 
285.70 

319.00 

1.36 

1.36 

Additions 

1.36 
1.36 

As at March 31, 
2018 

33.30 
287.06 

320.36 

Gross carrying amount 

AsatAprll1, Additions As at March 31, 
2016 2017 

33.30 33.30 

285.70 285.70 
319.00 319.00 

(i) A . d I S mount recogmse n tatemento f p ,. d l f . ro •tan oss or Investment propert•es 

Rental income 

Profit from investment properties before depredatJon 

Depreciation 

Profit from investment properties 

(II) Leasing arrangements 

(Rs In Million) 

Accumulated depreciation Not currying 
amount 

As at Aprll1, 2017 Depreciation As at March 31, A sat 

charge 2018 March 
31, 2018 

0.80 0.40 1.20 32.10 

21.82 10.92 32.74 254.32 

22.62 11.32 33.94 286.42 

(Rs In Million) 

Accumulated depreciation Net carrying 
amount 

As at April1, 2016 Depreciation As at March As at March 
charge 31, 2017 31,2017 

0.40 0.40 0.80 32.50 

10.91 10.91 21.82 263.88 
11.31 11.31 22.62 296.38 

(Rs . Milil I .m on 

For the year For the year ended 

ended March 
March 31, 2017 

31 2018 
46.72 44.78 
46.72 44.78 
11.32 11.31 
35.40 33.47 

Certain Investment properties are leased to tenants under long-term cancellable operating leases with rentals payable monthly. There is escalation of 10% in lease rentals during the lease terms. 

(Iii) Fair value 

Fair value of the investment property as on March 31, 2017 was Rs. 364.79 million. There is no sigificant change in the fair value of investment property after March 31, 2017. 

Estimation of fair value 

The company obtains valuations for its investment properties internally. The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an acti ve ma rket for similar properties 

(iv) Leased assets 

Leasehold land under finance lease (Rs In Million) 

As at March As at March 
31,2018 31,2017 

Leasehold land 

Cost 33.30 33.30 
Accumulated depreciation 1.20 0.80 
Net Carrying amount 3Z.10 32.50 
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Note 5 ·Intangible Assets 

Gross carrying amount 

Asset class As at April 
1, 2017 

Software 87.57 
Technkal Knowhow 8.94 
Total 96.51 

Intangible assets under development as at March 31,2018 
Opening balance 
Addition during the year 
Capitalised during the year 
Closing balance 

Additions 

53.21 
19.12 
72 .33 

0.21 
78.09 

(72.33) 
5.97 

Gross carrying amount 

Asset class As at April 
1, 2016 

Software 59.36 
Technical Knowhow 8.94 
Total ' 68.30 

Intangible assets under development as at March 31,2017 
Opening balance 
Addition during the year 
Capitalised during the year 
Closing balance 

Additions 

28.21 

28.21 

6.32 
22.10 

(28.21) 
0.21 

As at March 31, As at April 
2018 1, 2017 

140.78 47.81 
28.06 1.86 

168.84 49.67 

As at March 31, As at April 
2017 1, 2016 

87.57 26.64 
8.94 0.37 

96.51 27.01 

(Rs. In Million) 
Amortisation Net carrying 

amount 

Amortisation As at March 31, As at March 31, 
charge 2018 2018 

25.02 72.R~ 67.95 
3.10 4.96 23.10 

28.12 77.79 91.05 

(Rs In Million) 
Amortisation Net carrying 

~mount 

Amortisation As at March 31, As at March 31, 
charge 2017 2017 

21.17 47.81 39.76 
1.49 1.86 7.08 

22 .66 49.67 46.84 
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6(a) Non-current Investments 

Fuco valuo Number of Sh.ores 

6(b) 

Investment In subsidiaries· equity Instruments at cost fully puld up (unquoted) per shDrc 

OuroviJives lndlil Private Limited uo.oo 
Varroc Lighting Systems (India) Private Limited uo.oo 
V<Jrroc Polymers Private Limited uo.oo 
Varroc European Holding B.V. ( 100.00 

Aries Mentor Holding B.V. ( 100.00 

Varroc Corp Holdlnc B.V. ( 100.00 

Varroc Japan Co. Ltd no.oo 
Totai(A) 

Investment carried at FVPl 

Investment In equity Instruments at FVPL (unquoted) 
The Saraswat Co·Opcratfvt Bank Limited uo.oo 

Investment In Government securities at amortised cost tunquoted) 

National saving certificates 

Total( Bl 

Total Non-current Investments (A+B) 

Less :Provision for other than temporary diminution In equity Instruments of subsidiaries Investments (C) 

Total non c.urrent Investment {A+B·C) 

Non current • Loans 

Security deposits 

Total Non Current· Loans 

Non current. Other financial assets 
Other assets 

Total non current other financial assets 

Income taK assets (net) 

Income tax assets {net) 

Other non current assets 
Capital advances 

Provision for capital advances 

Net capital advances 

Amount paid under protest 

Vat recoverable 

Government grant receivable 

Total Other non current assets 

10 Inventories 
Raw materials (Includes material in transit of Rs. 28.19 Million {March 31, 2017 Rs. 69.84 Million) 
Work-in-progress 

Finls.h(!d goods! Includes fin ished goods in transit of Rs.. 274.02 Million {M01rch 31, 2017 Rs. :235.84 Million) 

Stock fn tradt! (lndude s stock in t rade In transit of Rs. Nll{Marcn 31,2017 Rs.12.87 Million) 

Stores and spare -parts (Includes stores-spiires In ttansit of Rs. 1.14 Million (March 31$ 2011 Rs. 0.11 Million) 

l oose tools (lndudes. loose tools in transft of Rs . 2.8lmflllon I March 3 1, 2017 Rs. 0.06 Million) 

Packing m;Jterial [Incl udes Packing material In tto:msit of Rs. NIL {March 31, 2017 Rs. 0.06 Million) 

Renewa ble energy certificates 

Total 

11 Current investment 

Investment in mutual funds (unquoted) 

31.777 units of 'LIC MF liquid Fund {previous year Nil units) 

Aggregate amount of fair value of unquoted investment 

As at As at 
March March 

31, 2018 31,2017 

3,144,730 3,144,730 

439,997 439,997 

529,100 519,100 

207,670 207,670 

102,475 102,475 

370,712 370,712 

10,000 10,000 

6,000 6,000 

(Rs.ln Million) 

As It As at 

March M;mh 

31,2018 31,2017 

324.78 314.78 

445.09 445.09 

500.00 500.00 

1,300.42 1,300.42 

738.34 738.34 

2,871.08 2,871.08 

0.10 0.10 

6,179.81 6,179.81 

0.06 0.06 

0.06 0.06 

0.12 0.12 

6,179.93 6,179.93 

(1,532.72) (1,532.72) 

• 647.21 4 647. 21 

17.45 lO.ll 

17.45 10.13 

0.39 0.41 
0.39 0.41 

24.04 23.78 

152.25 50.56 

(1.57) (4.69 

150.68 45.87 

1.73 1.16 
5.45 4.73 

170.65 36.12 
32&.51 87.88 

689.70 472.20 

715.14 667.19 

274.02 252.56 
22.00 80.87 

99.59 109.43 

129.51 129.81 

16.19 13.88 

0.75 5,54 

1,946.90 1,731.48 

0.10 

0.10 
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(Rs. In Million) 

As at Af.:tt 

March M.uch 

ll, 2018 31,2017 

12 Trado recolvablcs 
Tr&:~de rccelvoblcs 3,788.17 2,461.55 
Receivable from rel;:ltcd parties (refer note 117) 106.05 68.52 
less: Allowance for doubtful debts (5.79) (12.651 
Total 3 888.43 2 517.42 

Brellk·up of trmde receivables 
Unsecured, considered good 3,888.43 2,511.42 

Unsecured, considered Doubtful 5.79 12.65 

Total 3,894.22 2,530.07 
Allowance for doubtful debts (5.79) (ll.65 
Total 3,888.43 2,517.42 

Non·Current Portion 

Current Portion 3,888.43 2,517.42 

Transferred Receivables 

The carrvlng amounts of troade receivables include receivable which are subject to a factoring arrangement. Under the arrangement, the company has transferred the relevant receivables to the Jaclor 
In exchange for cash and Is prevented from selling or pledging the receivables. However, company has retained credit risk and late payment risk. nu: Company therefore continues to recognise the 

transferred assets In IU balance sheet. The amount repayable under the factoring agreement fs presented as unsecured borrowing. 

The relevant carrying amounts are as follows: 
Total tr.:msferred receivables 1,018.91 
Associated unsecured borrowing (refer note 25) 

13 (a) cash and cash equivalents 

Cash on hand (refer note 40 (a) I 0.79 0.63 
Sank balomces 

In current accounts 83.24 28.60 
Deposit with maturity of less than 3 months 0.21 
Total Cash and cash equivalents 84.03 29.44 

(b) Other bank balances 
long term deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months 1.83 1,86 

Total other bank balances 1.83 1.86 

There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior period. 

14 Current~ loans 

Loans to related parties ( Refer note 47 J 
Interest receivable, Unsecured, considered doubtful 
tess : Provision for doubtful debts 

Unsecured, considered goad 

Security deposits 
loans to employees 

Total Current loans 

78.40 67.25 
(78.40) (67.25 

17.64 24.42 
1.07 1.04 

18.71 25.46 

15 Other financial assets 

16 

Derivative financial assets at FVPL 
Derivative contracts 

Non·derivatlve financial osset at amortfsed cost 
Accrued interest 
Initial Public Offer expenses receivable• 

Others 

Total other current financial assets 

38.26 

0,08 

136.98 

175.]2 

39.17 

0.98 

5.60 

45.75 

• tnitlal Public Offer ~.xpenses receivable comprise share issue expenses incurred in connection with tile proposed Initial Public offer (I PO) by way ~f offer fo r sale by existing shareholders of the 
Company. These receivables include fees pakl to stock exchanges, SEBI,Iawyers, auditors et~, in connection with the IPO of the Company. A$ per lM offer agreement between the Company and the 
selling shareholders, upon successful completion of the Offer, these expenses wnl bf!: reimbursed by the selling shareholders in proportion to their respective Offered Shares sold pursuant to tl'le Offer. 

Accordingly, the Company has classified these expenses a-s: receivable from selling shareholders under Other Financial Assets. lnihal Public Offer llx~nses includes receivable from related parties refer 
note 47. 

Other current assets 
Advance to suppliers 35.42 64.70 
Prepaid eli:penses 51.22 39.26 

1.03 157.94 
107.19 

39.72 13.71 
234.SB 275.67 
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17 Equity and Preference share capital 
Movement In Authorised capital 

Opening Balance as on April 01,2017 

Add:- Increase during the ye&Jr (Refer Note 17 (g)) 

Closing Balance as on March 31, 2018 

Authorized: 

Equity shares of Re .l each {previous year Rs .lO each) 

Preference shares of Re 1 each (previous year Rs.lO each) 

Issued, subscribed and paid· up: 

Equity sha~es of Re . 1 each (previous year Rs. 10 each) fully paid up 

0.0001% Series "B" compulsorily convertible preference shares 

("Series B CCPS") of Re, 1 each { previous year Rs. 10 each) fully paid up 

0.0001% Series "C" compulsorily convertible preference shares 

("Series C CCPS") of Rc.1 each (previous year Rs. 10 each) fully paid up 

(a) Movement In share capital 

Equity shares 

Outstanding at the begin ning of the year 

0.001% series A CCPS converted Into equity shares 

Less· Capital reduction (Refer Note 17 {f)) 

Add:· 0.0001% series B CCPS 8,52,3S9 shares converted into equity shares 

Outstanding number of shares before cons idering the Impact of sub division of equity shares 

Adjusted closing number of shares on account of sub-division of equity shares (Refer Note 17 (g)) 

Outstanding at the end of the year 

Preference shares 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 

Add/(Less):- 0.001% Series A CCPS (converted)into equity shares during the year 

Add/(less) :-0.0001% Series B CCPS issued during the year 

Add:· 0.0001% Series C CCPS issued during the year 

Less;. 0.0001% series B CCPS 8,52,359 shares converted into equity shares 

Outstand ing number of shares before considering the impact of sub division of preference shares 

Adjusted number of shares on account of sub-division of prefe rence shares {Refer Note 17 {g)) 

Outstanding at the end of the year 

(b) Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Equity Shares 

Number of Shares 
Equity Praforonco sharo 

share Capital Capital 
16,500,000 33,500,000 

233,500,000 216,500,000 

250,000,000 250,000,000 

Number of Sh1re.s 

As at March A' at 
31, 2018 M01rch 

31 2017 

250,000,000 16,500,000 

250,000,000 33,500,000 

123,127,760 12,312,766 

852,359 

11,683,770 1,168,377 

Nos 

As at March 
31,2018 

12,312,766 

1852,349) 

852;359 

12 312,776 

123,127,760 

123,127,760 

2,020,736 

1852,359) 

11&8,377 

11,683,770 

11,683,710 

Rs. In Million 
As at March 

31,2018 

12l.ll 

18.52) 
8.52 

123.ll 

123.13 

123.13 

20.20 

18.52 

11.68 

11.68 

11.68 

As ll 

March 
ll, 2018 

250.00 

250.00 
500.00 

123.13 

11.68 

ll4.81 

Nos 
As at 

March 
31, 2017 

10,465,851 

1,846,915 

12,312,766 

16,623,365 

(16,623,365) 

852,359 

1,168,377 

2,020.736 

IRs. In Million) 

As. at 

M.uch 

31, 2017 

165.00 

335.00 
500.00 

123.13 

8.52 

11.68 

143.33 

Rs. lnMillron 

/\sat 
March 

31, 2017 
104.66 

18.47 

123.13 

166.23 

(166.23) 

8.52 

11.68 

20.20 

Equity shares: The Company hils equity shares having a par value of Re:. 1 per share (previous year Rs.lO/- per share). In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the 

remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 

shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. except in case of Interim dividend . 

Pursuant to the agreements, the Company had Issued and allotted 2 equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 990 per equ ity share to OMEGA TC Holdings PTE limited and 

TAT A Capital Financial Services Limited (collectively referred to as "PE Investors .. ). 

(c) Co11versJon of Series A CcP5: 

During the year 2013-14, pursuant to the agreement with the Private Equity Investors, the Company had issued and allotted 29,999,980 number of 0.001% Series A CCPS having face va lue of Rs . 10 

each at a premium of Rs. 90 pe r share. The said Series A CCPS are cumolative, mandatorily and fully convertible prefe rence shares. 

Prior to conversion of Series A CCPS: 

{i) The said PE Investors are entitled to vote at each meeting of the holders of equity shares of the Company to the extent of 9% of the Equity Share Capital on a fully diluted basis. The remaining 91% 

voting rights are with other equity shareholders of the Company in proportion to the number of shares held by them. 

(il) The holders of each Series A CCPS are entitled to preferential dividend at the rate of 0.001% per year. The amount of dividend accrued en each Series A CCPS during a financial year is required to be 

distributed by the Company to the Investors by way of preferential dividend on April 1st of the subsequent financial year. 

(iii) Series A CCPS were class ified as compound financial instrument and were accounted based on the terms of the agreement, provisions of IND AS 109 and section G8 (2) (c) of the Compa ni es Act, 

2013. During previous year, Series A CCPS were converted into 1,846,91S equity shares of Rs.lO/- each ranking pari passu with the existing equity shares of the Company as per the Amendment And 

Suppl~men~u l Agreement dated March 9, 2017 to original Share Subscription Agreement dated January 24, 2014 entered into between the Company, Promoters and PE investors and have been 

a~countc:d for accordingly, 
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(Rs. In Million) 

Asat A1 nt 
March Mnrch 

31,2018 31 ,201/ 

{d) Bonus Issue of Series B CCPS 

Dur lnR the year ended Mil rch J l, 2017, the Comp3ny Issued and aUottcd 852,359 Series 0 CCPS or Rs .lO/- eilch fully paid .()~ bonus to eligible equity shJ r~holdcrs of the Company In tho rotlo or Gl 
fully pnld Series n CCPS for every GB8 equity sht~rc~s of the Company held IJy them. Tho Sarlos 0 CCPS arc non-cumulative, non-participating preference shares, mandatorily l)nd fully convcr tlblc 

Into equity shares on occurrence of tho trigger event , The hold or of each Series B CCPS wore entitled lo profcrcntlal dividend,, , tho rotc of 0.0001% per year on the race vo luc . rhc Sorlos ll CCPS 
did not hilvo any entitlement to p;Htlclpatc In any dividend distribution to the holders or Equity Sharas. Under lnd 1\S, Series 0 CCPS were been cl;,sslfled as iln equity Instrument based on the 

terms of the iJgrccment and trigger event, which Is corllar of : 

(j) the diJtc on which tho Eqully Shvrcs o f the Company held by Varroc Polymers Prlv:J tc Limited (VPPl) st:Jnd extinguished pursuiJ nl to the Capltil l Reduction Scheme becoming effective after beln11 

du ly ilpprovcd bv the N01tlonal Compilny law Tribunal; or 
(II) the date th3t the Company flies :. red herring prospectus with the SEBI for undertilkfng an I PO. 

During lht.> ve<~r ended M<~rch 31, 2018, tho series 0 CCPS were been converted Into equity shares pursuant to the iJpproval o f the Cupltal reduction scheme of VPPL bv the NCLT (refer note f 
below). These shares were Issued o1nd o1llotted through a speclill resolution p:Jssed In t he! Board Meeting held on January Hi, 2018. 

(e) Bonus Issue of series C CCPS 

During the year ended Milrch 31, 2017, the Company Issued and allotted 1,168,377 Series C CCPS of Rs.10/· each fu lly paid t~s bonus to eligible equity shareholders of the Company In the ratio o f 

S7 fully paid up Series C CCPS for every 469 equity shares of the Company held by them. The Series C CCPS are non-cumulative, participat ing preference shares, mandatorily and fu lly conver tible 

Into equity shares on occurrence of the trigger event . The holder of each Series C CCPS ~ re entitled 1o preferential dividend at the rate o f 0.0001% per year on the face value. The Series C CCPS 11fC 

en tit iOO to pnrtlclpatc, on a pari passu basis with Equity Shares, In any dividend distribution to tJ1e holders of Equity Shares 011 an 'as if converted' basis. Fot 1he purpose of dividend distribution, 

the Series C CCPS prior Ia their conversion shall constitute 1.3% o f the Equity Share Capital on a fully diluted basis. Under lnd AS, Series C CCPS have been classified as an equity Instrument biJSCd 

on the terms o f t he agreement and trigger event, which Is earlier o f; 

(I) I he d:Jte on which the Company f lies a red herring prospectus with l hc SEBI for undertaking an iPO or 

(li) 11'0 Veto Dole; 

{Ill) the Conversion Deadline, JS defined fn the terms of the agreement. leach such event being the "Series C Trigger Event")," 

Stlbscquent to l he year end, in the Board Meeting held on May 31, 2018, these Series C CCPS were converted In the ratio of l: llnto 11,683,770 equity shares of '- 1 each, ranking pari-passu with 

the existing equity shares of the CompJny. 

(I) Capital reduction 

The Company, pursuant to the provisions of Section G6 or the Companies Act, 2013 and th!! rules made thereunder, had filed a petition for reduction or 852,349 equity shares of Rs. 10 each held by 

wholty owned subsidiary Varroc Polymers Private Limited (VPPL) without any consideration. This scheme was approved by the National Company law Tribunal (NCLT) and wt~s flied with the 

Registrar of Companies (ROC) on December 18, 2017. The ROC registered the order on January lS, 2018 and the Company took on record this transaction tt t th!! Board Meeting on Janu11ry 16, 

2018. Pursuant to th~ transaction, share capital of Rs. 8.52 million has been transferred to Capital Reserve as at March 31, 2018. 

(g) During the year, face v:~ lue pe r Equity Share and Preference Share have been sub divided from R.s. lO to Rs. 1. Furthe- r authorised share capital of the Company was reclass ified from Rs. SOD M !Uion 

consisting of Rs. 165 Million (165,000,000 Equity Shares of R.s. l / · each) and R.s. 335 Million (335,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs .l/· each) toRs. 250 M ill ion (250,000,000 Equity Shares of R.s. l/· 
each) and R.s . 250 M illion (Consisting of 250,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs.l/· each). 

(h) Details of shares held by shareholde rs holding more than 5% of the aggregate sha res In the Company 

As at March 31_, 2018 As at March 31 2017 

Name of t he Shareholder Numbers of Numbers of shares 

shares %of %of 

Face value shareholdlng Face value shareholding 

Rs.l Rs . 10 
Equity Sha res 
M r. Tarang Jain 50,798,590 41.26% 3,529,025 28.66"-' 
TJ Holdings Trust 33,850,000 27.49% 3,385,000 27.49% 

Omega TC Holdings PTE LTD 16,917,130 13.74% 1,691,713 13 .74% 
Naresh Chandra Holdings Trust 10,000,000 8.12% 1,000,000 8.12% 

Suman Jain Holdings Trust 10,000,000 8.12% 1,000,000 8.12% 
M/s Varroc Polymers Private Limited 852,349 6.92% 

Prefere:nce Shares 

Mr. Tarang Jain 11,683,770 100.00% 1,453,523 71.93% 
Mr. Naresh Chandra 0.00% 324,504 16.06% 

Mrs. Suman Jain 0.00% 242,709 12.01% 

(1) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued during the five years immediately preceding March 31, 2018 

0.0001% Series B CCPS and Series C CCPS allotted as fully paid up bonus shares by capitalisation of profits from securities premium during the year ended No of Shares 

March 31, 2017. 
20,20,736 

The Company during the preceding 5 years: 

i. Has not allotted shares pursuant to contracts without payment received in cash. 

ii. Has not issued shares by way of bonus shares except as above. 

iii. Has not bought back any shares. 

UJ Varroc Polymers Private Limited, a wholly owned subsid iary of the Company, holds Nil (Previous year 852,349) shares of the Company. 
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Reserves 01nd surplus 

Retained Cilrnlngs 
Gcncr<~l reserve 
Capital reserve 

Debenture redemption reserve 
Securities premium reserve 

Retained c01rnlngs 
B<:~lance ill the beginning of the year 
Add:- ProrJt for the year 

Add:· Items of other comprehensive Income recognised directly In retained earning 
Remeasurcment of post-employment benefit obligation (Net of tax) 

Less:- Interim dividend of Rs.O.SO per equity share of Rc. 1 e<~ch (previous year: Rs. 3.5 per equity share of Rs.lO each) ((Including dividend 
distribution tax Rs.l1.19 Mllllon) (Previous yeor Rs.4.61 Mll11on)] (refer note 17(g)J 

Less:· Transfer to debenture redemption reserve (25% of face value) 
Balance at the end of the year 

General reserve 
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 

capital reserve 
Balance .,, the beginning of the year 

Add:·On account of Capital reduction ( Refer Note 17(()) 
Balance at the end of the year 

Debenture: redempt1on reserve 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add:· Transfer from retained earnings 
Balance at the end of the year 

Securities premium reserve 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add:- Conversion of 0.001% Series "A" CCPS into equity shares (Refer Note 17) 
Less:· Issue of 0.0001% Series "8" CCPS and Series "C" CCPS (Refer Note 17) 
Balance at the end of the year 

Total Reserves and surplus 

Other reserves 
cash flow hedge 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Gain/ (loss) on changes in fair value of hedging instruments 
Income tax relating to gains/loss reclassified to profit and loss 
Reclassification to Statement of Profit and Loss 
Balance at the end of the year 

Equity component of CCPS (Refer Note17(c)) 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Transfer during the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

Total other reserve 

Nature and purpose of reserves 

General reserve 

General reserve is the reta ined earning of the company which is kept aside out of the company's profits to meet future (known or unknown) obligations. 

Debenture redemption reserve 

A sot 
Morch 

31,2018 

1,818.60 
1,474.38 

8.52 

200.00 
6 481.43 
9,982.93 

1,182.23 

698.30 

10.82 
(72.75) 

1,818.60 

1,474.38 

8.52 
8.52 

200.00 

200.00 

6,481.43 

6,481.43 

9,982.93 

(8.95) 
12.02 
(4.20) 
{1.14) 
{2.27) 

-
(2.27) 

The company is required to create a debenture redemption reserve out of the profits which is available for payment of dividend for the purpose of redemption of debentures . 

Capital reserve 
Capital reserve is not available for distribution as div idend. 

securities premium reserve 

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Cash flow hedging reserve 

IRs. In M11llon) 

Ast~t 

Milrch 
31,2017 

1,182.23 
1,474.38 

200.00 
6,481.43 
9,338.04 

1,015.09 
420.04 

(8.04) 

(44.8G) 

(200.001 
1,182.23 

1,474.38 

200.00 
200.00 

3,366.25 

3,135.43 

{20.25 
G,481.43 

9,338.04 

(9.28) 
(21.84) 

7.56 
14.61 
{8.95) 

885.66 
{885.66 

{8.95) 

The company uses hedging Instruments to hedge its exposure to movements in foreign exchange rates and interest rates, which are designated as cash flow hedges. To the extent these heds.cs 
are effective, the change in fa ir value of the hedging instrument is recognised in th~ cash flow hedge reserve. Amounts recognised in cash flow hedge reserve are reclassified to profit or loss when 
the hedged item affects profit or loss. 
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(Rs. In Million) 

As at As,lt 

March M.uch 

31,2018 31 ,2017 

20 Non· current· Bortowlnss 

Secured 
Debenturl!s 
800 8 . 10~ Non convert ible debentures of Rs.l,OOO,OOO each 800.00 800.00 

Term loans 

From banks 

Rupee loans 388.89 379.99 

Foreiftn currency lo;,ns 608.26 1,074.49 

From flnancl:~llnstltuUons 202.38 327.21 

1,199.53 1,781.69 

Buyers credit (capital nature) 122.41 305.26 

Unsecured 

Deferred sales tax loan 82.67 127.74 

Total non current borrowlns 2,204.61 3,0 14.69 

Maturllil!_roflle of non current borrowinss 

Effective Interest 
Current Non Current 

Particulars (refer note 
Rate 

27) 2019·20 20211-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 Total 

Term Loans 8.55% to 11.% 704.34 638.38 382.25 123,34 55.56 1,199.53 

Debentures 8.10% 800.00 800.00 

Buyers Credit 0.25% to 2.33% 87.26 71 .61 50.80 122.41 

Deferred Sales Tax loi.ln 45.05 35.09 25.29 16.09 6.20 82.67 

836.65 1,545.08 458.34 139.43 61.76 2,204.61 

1) Rupee term loaM, fore ign currency loan (ECB) and letter of Credit from Bank are secured by: 

a) ECB loan from ICICI Bank secured by First pari-passu charge by way of Joint Mortgage of immovable properties of the Company located at E-4, 

l-6/2, and l-4 MIOC ,Waluj, Aurangabad-431136. 

b) lette r of credit (Buyers Credit) secured by First pari-passu charge on current asset of the company 

2) a) Foreign currency loan (FCNR loan USC 7.27 Million) from Citi Bank N.A. Is secured by first pari-passu charge on movable fixed assets of Crankshaft unit both present and future located at M· 

191/3, MIDC, Waluj, Aurangabad · 431136. 

b) Foreign currency loan (FCNR loan USO 2.25 Million) from Citi Bank N.A. Is secured by first pari-passu ch3rge on movable fixed o1ssets of solar unit both prese nt and future located at Sakri, Dhule. 

3) Rupee Term Loans from Financial Institution, From Banks and Non Convertible debentures are secured by: 

a) Rupee Term loan of Rs. SOO Million "'vailed from BajaJ Finance Limited is secured by first pari-passu charge on movable fhced assets both present and future of crankshaft unit located at M·l91/3 

MIDC, Waluj, Aurangabad • 431136. 

b) Rupee Term Loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited is secured by way of first pari passu charge on movable fixed assets both present and future of unit V located at L-6/2, MIOC, Waluj, 

Aurangabad ·431136. 

c) 8.10% Non convertible debentures of Rs. BOD Million is secured by way of first pari passu charge on movable fixed assets both present and future of unit Ill located at 8 ·24 & 25, MIDC, Chakan, Pune 

· 410501 and unit VII (Valves and Forging) located at L-4, MIDC, Waluj, Aurangabad. 431136. 

4) The carrying amounts of fina ncial and non financial assets pledged as security for current <~nd non-current bo rrowings are disclosed in Note 52. 

21 ·Non· current· Other financial liabilities 

Security deposits 5.64 5.16 

Total other Financial liabilities 5.64 5 .16 

22 Non -current· Provisions 

Compensated absences 29.95 

23.10 

33.09 

21.61 Provision for coupon scheme ( Refer note 28) 

Total non current provisions 53.05 54.70 
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23 Deferred tax llabllllfes (not) 

The balance comprl~es temporary differences attributable to : 

Deferred tax llablllrles 

Depreciation ilnd amortization 

Others 

Deferred tax assets 
Expenses allowable on payment 

Provision for doubtful debts and advances 

Unabsorbed tax depreciation and losses 

Others 

MAT Credit Entitlement 

Total 

Movement In deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) 

Opening deferred tax (assets) /liabilities 

Charsed to profit or loss 
Expenses allowable on payment 

Provision for doubtful debts and advances 

Unabsorbed tax depreciation and losses 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Others 

Charsed to other comprehensive Income 

Cash flow hedge rl!serve 

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 

(Increase) I Decrease of MAT credit 

Closing deferred tax liability after set off 

Note: Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as they relate to the same governing taxation laws_ 

As at 
Match 

31, 2018 

572.38 

13.37 

585.75 

18.24 

2.02 

24.62 

405.65 

450.53 

135.22 

4.88 

25.63 

27.25 

102.50 

2.72 

(19.81) 

138.29 

4.20 

5.81 

10.01 

(17.96) 

135.22 

(Rs.ln Million) 

Aloll 

March 

31,2017 

569.GG 

8 .56 

S78.n 

53.88 

29.27 

102.50 

387.69 

573.34 

4.88 

47.76 

17.28 

2.25 

2.63 

46.36 

8.11 

76.63 

(7.56) 

(4,43 

(11.99) 

(107.52) 

4.88 

24 Other non -current liabilities 

Deferred government grant 

Total other non current liabilities 

25 Current borrowings 

Secured 

Cash Credit 

Unsecured 

Working capital facilities 

Factored Receivables/Bill Discounting 

From banks (Pre-shipment credit (PCRE)) 

From financial institutions 

Commercial Papers 

Total current borrowings 

Maturity Date Terms of 

Repayment 

On Demand On Demand 

Various 45 days 

Various 6 Month 

Various 41 to 42 days 

Interest rate 

9.15% to 11.80% 

8.25% to 8.50% 

5.15% 

8.45% 

172.66 

172.66 

52.64 

1,018.91 

47.77 

605.00 

1,724.32 

128.92 

380.00 

739.65 

1,248.57 

Working capital facilities availed from Corporation Bank, Standard Chartered Bank, HOFC Bank limited, CITI Bank N.A, ICICI Bank limited, lOBI Bank Um1ted and Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited are 

secured by first pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of stocks of raw materials, work in progress, finished goods, consumable, stores and spares, packing materials and receivables of the 

Company both present and future. 

The carrying amounts of financial3nd non financial assets pledged as security for current and non·current borrowings are disclosed in Note 52 

Net Debt Reconciliation 

Cash and Cash equivalents includlng cash credit (refer note 13 (a) 

Current borrowings 

Non-current borrowings includes Current maturities of non-current borrowings (refer note 20 and 27) 

Interest accrued but not due (refer note 27) 

Net debt 

Recondliation of Net Debt 

Particulars 

Cash and cash equivalent 

liquid Investment 

Current borowings 

Non-current borrowings 

Interest accrued but not due 

As on April!, 

2017 

(99.48) 

1,119.65 

3,581.39 

32.33 

Cashflows Interest 

Expensf!s 

130.87 

0.48 

552.03 

(541.27) 

401.50 

Interest Paid cash flow hedge Gain/loss on 

Reserve sale of 

investments 

0.58 

1.14 

405 .79 

March 31,2018 

31.39 

(1,671.68) 

(3,041.26) 

(28.04) 

4 709.59 

As on March 

31,2018 

31.39 

0.10 

1,671.68 

3,041.26 

28.04 

March 31,2017 

(99.48) 

(1,119.65) 

(3,581.39) 

(32.33 

(4,832.85 
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As at 

March 
31,2018 

IRs. In Million) 

Alolt 
Mouch 

31,2017 

26 Trado payables 
Totnl outstanding dues of micro enterprises ond small enterprises (refer note 41) 
Totnl outstanding dues other than micro enterprises. and smilll enterprises Jnd rc:lilted pllrtlcs 

Tr;,dc pay<lbles to Related Parties (refer note 47) 

Total trade payables 

8.75 

3,085.24 

149.30 

3,243.29 

13.59 

2,145.25 
60.80 

2,219.64 

27 Current· Other financial liabilities 

Current maturities of non-current borrowings {refer note 20) 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 

Capital creditors 

Customer security deposits 

Employee benefits payable 

Derivative liabilities pending settlement 

Total other flnandll l liabilities 

836.65 

28.04 

274.78 

36.75 

106.19 

48.59 

1,331.00 

566.70 

32.33 

133.76 

29.51 

71.02 

60.61 

893.93 

28 Current· Provisions 

29 

Provision for Employee benefits 
Gr.;atuity (refer note 42) 

Compensated .;absences 

Others 

Provision for loan taken by subsidiary 

Provision for warranties• 

Provision for coupon scheme•• 

Total current provision 

Balanc.e as at the beginning of the year 

Additions durins the year 

Utilization/Reversed during the year 

Balance as at the end of the year 

Current Portion 

Non-Current Portion 
Total 

Warranties 

March 31,2018 March 31,2017 

16.91 14.57 

24.32 20.00 

117.91) 117.66) 

23.32 16.91 

23.32 16.91 

23.32 16.91 

Provision for loan taken by 

subsidiary 

March 

31 2018 

129.30 

21.47 

150.77 

150.77 

150.77 

March 31,2017 

140.39 

(11.09) 

129.30 

129.30 

129.30 

14.98 

4.58 .-1 ,48 

150.77 129.30 

23.32 16.91 

15.40 14AO 

194.07 180.07 

Provision for coupon scheme 

March 
March 31,2017 

31 2018 

36.01 27.68 

12.91 12.38 

(10.42) (4.05) 

38.50 36.01 

15.40 14.40 

23.10 21.61 

38.50 36.01 

• Provision for warranties :- The Company provides warranties on applicable products, for their satisfactory performance during the warranty period as per the contracts with buyers. Provision for 

warranty claims arising out of such obligation is made based on such warranty period. 

•• Provision for Coupon Scheme:· Provision Is made for estimated cost of coupons redemption. These coupons are excpected to be redeemed with in 2·3 years. Management estimates the provision 

based on historical claims Information and any recent trands. The impact on discounting of the provision is not material. 

Other current liabilitie5 

Advance received from customers 57.43 39.89 

Statutory Dues Payable 98.15 56.93 

Other payables 46.71 40.55 

Deferred government grant 34.53 G1 .11 

Total Other current liabilities 236.82 198.48 
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(Rs In Mil lion) 

For the year For the ye~r 

ended ended 

March M~rch 

31,2018 31,2017 

30 Revenue from operations 

S~le of products • 

Finished goods 19,917.59 16,965.98 

Traded goods 686.58 807.68 

Other operating revenue 

Wind power generation 51.26 56.85 
Solar power generation 44.42 51.24 
Job work receipts 4.40 1.80 
Scrap sales 82.65 51.31 
Management fees 73.43 88.77 

Export Incentives lili.fil ~R 'l7 

Others 27.81 57.93 
Total revenue from operations 20,954.75 18,120.53 

• Note: Revenue from Operations for the year ended March 31, 2017 includes excise duty which is discontinued w.e.f. Ju ly 1, 2017 upon implementation 

of Goods and Services Tax (GST) In India. In accordance with lnd AS 18, Revenue, GST Is not Included in Revenue from Operations. In view of the 

aforesaid restructuring of Indirect taxes, Revenue from Operations for the year ended March 31, 2018 is not comparable with that of the previous year. 

Revenue from operations net of Excise duty 20,468.92 16,760.10 

31 Other income 

Rent income from Investment properties 46.72 44.78 

Dividend Income from equity investments carried at cost 6.62 17.63 

Interest Income 

from financial assets measured at amortised cost 0.23 1.96 
Others 0.61 4.10 

Unwinding of discount on security deposit 1.49 0.45 

Net gain on sale of investments 0.58 9.42 
Government grants 105.24 74.13 

Net foreign exchange gain 69.53 122.31 

Commission on corporate guarantees 47.29 35.50 

Miscellaneous income 9.40 14.23 

Total Other income 287.71 324.51 

32 Cost of materials consumed 

Raw material at the beginning of the year 472.20 458.61 

Add: Purchases 12,753.27 10,140.15 

13,225.47 10,598.76 

Less: Raw material at the end of the year 689.70 472.20 
Total cost of materials consumed 12,535.77 10,126.56 

33 Changes in Inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods 
Opening balance 

Work-in-progress 667.19 628.62 

Finished goods 252.56 206.18 
Stock-in-trade 80.87 98.61 

Total opening balance 1,000.62 933.41 

Closing balance 

Work-in-progress 715.14 667.19 
Finished goods 274.02 252.56 
Stock-in-trade 22.00 80.87 

Total closing balance 1,011.16 1,000.62 

Total changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods (10.54) (67.21) 
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34 Employee benefits expense 
Salaries, wages and bonus 
Contribution to Gratuity and other funds (Refer Note 42) 

Staff welfare expenses 
Total employee benefits expense 

35 Depreciation and amortisation e-.tpense 
Depredation of property, plant and equipment 
Depreciation of Investment property 
Amortisation of intaJ"'gibte assets 

Total depreciation and amortisation 

36 Other Expenses 
Consumption of stores and spares and loose tools 
Consumption of packing materials 
Repairs to 

Buildings 
Machinery 

Others 
Telephone and communication expenses 
Water and electricity charges 
Rental charges {refer note 48 {b)} 
Rates and taxes 
Contract labour cost 
Legal and professional fees 
Net loss on sale of tangible/ intangible assets 
Guarantee commission paid 
Travelling and conveyance 
Insurance 
Payment to Auditors- refer note (a) below 
Corporate social responsibility expenditure - refer note (b) below 
Provision for doubtful loans, advances and debts (Net) 

Sales promot ion, marketing and advertisement cost 
Research and development expenses- refer note (c) below 
Freight and forwarding expenses 
Royalty 
Warranties 

Miscellaneous expenses 

Total Other expenses 

(a} Payment to auditors 
Statutory audit fees 
Tax audit fees 
Certification fees 
Others 
Re-imbursement of expenses 

Total payment to auditors• 

For the year 
ended 
Morch 

31, 2018 

1,525.41 
113.35 
115.00 

1,753.76 

976.67 
11.32 
28.12 

1,016.11 

433.51 

206.90 

6.79 
80.81 

115.65 
13.64 

544.93 
47.43 
10.67 

815.97 
87.59 

5.36 

155.22 
15.48 

9.89 
18.59 

6.81 
64.37 

357.91 
326.75 

2.98 
24.32 

147.27 

3,498.84 

2.89 
0.28 
0.50 
5.26 
0.96 
9.89 

IRs. In Mllllonl 
For the year 

ended 
March 

31, 2017 

1,245.44 
96.66 
89.66 

1.431.76 

928.85 
11.31 
22.66 

962.82 

415.66 
174.61 

9.31 
67.11 

125.73 

14.32 
485.43 
44.81 

10.08 
709.48 
88.55 

4.85 
0.06 

139.35 
19.52 
12.46 
16.71 

1.24 
64.17 

223.69 
224.63 

2.33 
20.00 

130.35 

3,004.45 

3.60 
0.28 
0.43 

6.89 
1.26 

12.46 

•rn addition to the above, fees for the work in connection with the Initial Public Offer (IPO) of Rs. 28.50 Million paid/payab~ to the auditors have been 
included in the Initial Public Offer expenses receivable (Refer Note no. 15 ). 

(b) Corporate social responsibility expenditure 

As set out in section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company l.s required to contribute Rs.8.98 Million (previous year Rs. 11 .00 Million) towards 
Corporate Social Responsibility activities as calculated basis 2% of its average net profits of the last three financial years. Accordingly, during the year, the 
Company has contributed Rs.18.59 Million (Previous year Rs. 16.71 Mi llion) towards the eligible projects as mentioJ"'ed in Schedule VII (Including 
amendments thereto) of the Companies Act, 2013. There is no capita l expenditure incurred towards corporate social responsibilities. 

(c) Researc.h and development expenses 

Consumption of raw materials, stores and spares 
Power and fuel 
Repairs and maintenance 
Personnel costs 
Others 
Subtotal 
Depreciation 

Total 

26.43 18.52 

4.23 2.96 
15.09 8.85 

209.08 129.38 
103.08 63.98 
357.91 223.69 

27.99 23.10 
385.90 246.79 
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(Rs ln Million) 

For the year For the year 

ended ended 

March March 

31, 2018 31, 2017 
Details of capital expenditure Incurred for Research and Development are given below: 

Particulars 

Plant and machinery 10.44 2.80 
Factory equipment's and electrical installations 14.83 
Office equipment's 0.09 0.99 
Tools and equipment's 1.09 1.50 
Furniture and electrical flttlngs 0.11 1.55 
Vehicles 0.70 1.51 
Computers 4.60 4.05 
Software 23.67 16.94 

Total 55.53 29.34 

37 Finance costs (other than Imputed Interest and changes in cash flow estimates on liability portion of CCPS) 

Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss 376.45 406.37 
Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs 12.43 (0.20) 
Other borrowing cost 12.62 20.73 
Total finance cost 401.50 426.90 
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(Rs. In Million 

For the yeur For the voar 

ended ended 

March M•rch 
31,2018 31, 1017 

38 Segment Information 
In accordanco with paragraph 4 of notified lnd AS 108 "Operating sogmonts", tho Company has disclosed segment Information only on tho basis of the 
consolidated financial statements. 

39 Income tax expense 

(I) Profit and loss section 

{a) Income taK expense 

Current tax 
Current tax on profits for the year 232.97 107.68 

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 3.31 

Total current tax expense 232.97 110.99 

Deferred tax 120.33 (30.89) 

Total Income tax expenses recognised In statement of profit and loss 353.30 80.10 

(II) Other comprehensive Income (OCI) section 
(a) Deferred losses on cash flow hedges 

Income ta)( charged to OCI (4.20) 7.56 

(b) Remeasul"ement of defined benefit obligation 
Income tax charged to OCI (5.81) 4.43 

Total Deferred tax charged to OCI (10.01) 11.99 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit : 
Profit before tax 1,051.60 500.14 
Tax rate !4.61% 34.61% 
Income tax expense as per applicable tax rate 363.94 173.09 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taMable} in calculating taxable Income: 
Weighted deduction on research and development eMpenditure (71.17) (64.60) 
Corporate social responsibility eMpenditure 6.43 5.78 

Disallowance u/s 14A of Income Tax Act, 1961 4.40 4.67 

Exempt non·operating Income (2.29) (37.25) 
Other non·deductible expenses 19.26 2.16 
Investment Allowance (52.03) 

Tax expense of prior periods 3.31 

Imputed interest and changes in cash flow estimates on liability portion of CCPS 14.40 
Others 32.73 30.57 

(10.64) (92.99) 

353.30 80.10 

40(a) Disclosure on specified bank notes (SBNs) 
During the previous year, the Company had specified bank notes or other denomination note as defined in the MCA notification G.S.R. 30B(E) dated March 
31,2017 on the details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from November 8, 2016 to December, 30 2016, the 
denomination wise SBNs and other notes as per the notification is given below: 

Amount in Rs 

Particulars SBNs• 
Other denomination 

Total 

Notes 

Closing cash In hand as on November. a, 2016 984,500 75,039 1,059,539 
(+)Permitted receipts 942,000 942,000 
(·) Permitted payments (623,504) (623,504) 

H Amount deposited in Sanks . (984,500) (16,850) (1,001,350) 

Clos:ing cash In hand as on December 30, 2016 376,685 376,685 

• For the purposes of this clause, the term 'Specified Bank Notes' shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of India, in 
the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number 5.0. 3407(E), dated the November 8, 2016. 

40 (b) The Share,olders at their meeting held on January 25, 2018, accorded their 41pproval for conver~on of the Company from a .. Privatl!: Limited Compan'(' to 
·Public limited ComP41ny". Nece·ssary documents have been fi led with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the same has been approved by the Register of 
Companie• (ROC) Mumbai on Fobruary05, 2018. 
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Note 41- Dues to micro and small enterprises 

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED Act'). 
The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows : 

(Rs. In Million) 

March March 

31,2018 31,2017 

a) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid 7.21 12.31 
as at year end 

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year 0.01 * b) 
end 

c) 
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the 29.04 227.96 
appointed day during the year 

d) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the - -
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year 

e) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED - -
Act, beyond the appointed day during the year 

f) 
Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments 0.25 0.27 
already made 

g) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years 1.28 1.01 

*Amount below rounding off norm adopted by the Company. 
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Noto 42 - Employoo bonoflt obligotlon 

A Dollnod contribution pions: 

The Company has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund In India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic sal;uy 
as per regulotlons. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the company Is limited to 

the amount contributed and It has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the year towards defined 

contribution plan Is as under 

(I) Contribution to Employees' provident fund 

(II) Contribution to Employees' family pension fund 

Total 

B Gratuity 

March 31, 2018 

41.51 
32.35 
73.86 

(Rs. In Million) 

March 31, 2017 

39.86 
30.31 

70.17 

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are In continuous service for a period 
of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination Is the employees last drawn basic salary plus Dearness 
Allowance per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years or service. The gratuity plan Is a funded plan and 
the Company makes contributions to recognised funds In India. The Company does not fully fund the liabllity and maintains a target level of funding to be 
maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments. 

The amounts recognised In the balance sheet and the movements In the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows : 

Particulars 

(a) Change in present value of benefit obligations 

Liability at the beginning of the year 

Service cost 
Interest expense 
Remeasurements- Actuarial (gains)/ losses (refer note (e) below) 

Benefits paid 

Liability at the end of the year 

(b) Change in fair value of plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 
Interest income 

Remeasurements· Return on plan assets excluding amounts recognised In interest income 
(refer note (e) below) 

Contributions 
Benefits paid 
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 

(c) The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plan is as follows: 

Particulars 

Present value of funded obligations 
Fair value of plan assets 
Deficit of funded plan 

(d) Expenses to be recognized in the Statement of Profit and loss under employee benefit expenses 

Particulars 

Service cost 
Past service cost• 
Net interest (income)/expense 
Net gratuity cost 

As at 

March 31, 2018 

149.57 
28.84 

10.29 
(16.53) 

(13.55) 
158.62 

134.59 

10.24 
0.09 

27.27 

(13.55) 
158.64 

As at 
March 31, 2018 

158.62 

158.64 
(0.02) 

(Rs. In Million) 

March 31, 2017 

125.45 

21.11 
9.30 

11.97 
(18.26) 
149.57 

117.25 
9.75 

(0.32) 

26.17 
(18.26) 

134.59 

(Rs. In Million) 

As at 

March 31, 2017 
149.57 
134.59 

14.98 

(Rs. In Million) 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 
25.70 21.11 

3.14 
0.04 (0.45) 

28.88 20.66 

• This pertains to past service cost. On account of amendment to Payment of Gratuity (Amendment) Act, 2018 dated Mar 29, 2018, there is an increase In 
the existing ceiling limit of the amount of gratuity payable to employees who have completed five years of continuous service from rupees 10 lakhs to 
rupees 20 lakhs. 

(e) E)Cpenses to be recognized in statement of other 
comorehensive income: 
Particulars 

Remeasurement 
Experience (Gain)/ losses on plan liabilities 
(Return) I loss on plan assets e><duding amounts recognised in interest (income)/expenses 
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 

(Rs. In Million) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

(1.66) 
(0.09) 

(14.88) 
(16.63) 

(2.90) 

0.32 
14.87 

12.29 



(I} Valuation In respect of gratuity has been carried out by Independent actuary, as at the balance sheet date, based on tho following assumptions: 

Particulars 

Discount rate 

Solary growth rate 

Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2018 Murch 31, 2017 

7.90% 

7% 

11.4 

7.20% 

7% 

12.15 

As per actuary report, the Company assesses these assumptions with Its projected long·term plans of growth and prevalent Industry standards. The 

discount rate Is based on the government bonds. 

Quantitative <onsltlvlty analysis for significant a"umptlons aro as follow" 

Change In Assumption 

lncrease/(decrease) In present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 

(I) 1% Increase in discount rate 

(11) 1% decrease in discount rate 

(Ill) 1% Increase in rate of salary escalation 

(lv) 1% decreasing rate of salary escalation 

March 31, 2018 

11.46% 

13.78% 

12.49% 

10.68% 

As at 

March 31, 2017 

12.20% 

14.81% 

12.82% 

11.06% 

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions Is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit obligation 

by 1%, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obllgation to significant actuarial 

assumptions the same method(present value of defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of reporting 

period) has been applied while calculating the defined benefit liability recognised In the balance sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used In 

preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period. 

Major categories of Plan Assets are as follows: 
(Rs. In Million 

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31,2017 

Amount I % Amount I % 

Funds managed by Insurer 158.64 I 100% 134.59 I 100% 

Total 158.64 I 100% 134.59 I 100% 

As the funds are managed wholly by the Insurance company, the break-up of the plan assets IS unavallable. 

Actual return on assets for the year ended March 31, 2018 and year ended March 31, 2017 was Rs.10.34 million and Rs.9.43 million respectively. 

The Company expects to contribute Rs. 30.00 Million to the gratuity trusts during the flscal2018. As at March 31, 2018 it has contributed Rs.28.74 Million 

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation: 
(Rs In Million) 

As at As at 

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

Within 1 year ~4.31 ~4.88 

1-2 year ~ 6.47 ~5.14 

2-3 year ~ 9.76 ~ 7.45 

3-4 year ~ 12.41 ~ 10.63 

4-5 year ~ 16.84 ~ 12.32 

5-lOyears ~ 113.96 ~ 92.97 

RISK EXPOSURE AND ASSET LIABILITY MATCHING 

Provision of a defined benefit scheme poses certain risks, some of which are detailed here under as companies take on uncertain long-term obligations to 

make future benefit payments. 

1 ) Liability Risks 

Asset-liability Mismatch Risk-
Risk which arises if there is a mismatch in the duration of the assets relative to the liabilities. By matching duration with the defined benefit liabilities, the 

company is successfully able to neutralize valuation swings caused by Interest rate movements. Hence companies are encouraged to adopt asset-liability 

management. 

Discount Rate Risk-

Variations in the discount rate used to compute the present value of the liabilities may seem small, but in practice can have a significant impact on the 

defined benefit liabilities. 

Future Salary Escalation and Inflation Risk .. 
Since price inflation and salary growth are linked economically, they are combined for disclosure purposes. Rising salaries will often resulting higher 

future defined benefit payments resulting in a higher present value of liabilities especially unexpected salary increases provided at management's 

discretion may lead to uncertainties in estimating this increasing risk. 

2) Asset Risks 

All plan assets are maintained in a trust fund managed by a public sector insurer viz; UC of India. UC has a sovereign guarantee and has been providing 

consistent and competitive returns over the years. 
The company has opted for a traditional fund wherein all assets are invested primarily in risk averse markets. The company has no control over the 

management of funds but this option provides a high level of safety for the total corpus. A single account is maintained for both the investment and claim 

settlement and hence 100% liquidity is ensured. Also interest rate and inflation risk are taken care of. 



Note 43 ·Fair Value Me;surement 

Financial Instruments by category 

Flnanc:lal assets 
Investments 

- Equltv Instruments 

• Mutual funds 

• Government securities 
Trade receivables 

Loans 
Cash ;,nd bank balances 

Derivative Contracts 

Other financial assets 

Total financial asseh 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 

Derivative liabilities pending settlement 
Security deposits 

Trade pavables 
Acceptances 
Other financial liabilities 

Total flnanclalllabllltles 

(I) Fair value hierarchy 

Varroc Engineering Limited 

Notes to the stondDione flnonclal statements 

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017 

FVPL FVOCI FVPL FVOCI 

Amarllsed cost 

0.06 0.06 

0.10 

0.06 
3,888.43 

36.16 

85.86 

38.26 39.17 

137.45 

38.42 4,147.96 39.23 

4,765.58 

48.59 60.61 

42.39 

3,243.29 

184.12 

409.01 

48.59 8,644 .39 60.61 

This section e)( plains the Judgements and estimates made In determining the fa ir values of the financial Instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and 

(Rs.ln Million 

Amortised cost 

0.06 
2,517.42 

35.5~ 

31.30 

6.99 
2,591 .36 

4,829.96 

34.67 

2,219.64 

296.18 
237.11 

7,617.56 

(b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed In the financial statements. To provide an Indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the group has 

classified its financial Instruments Into the three levels prescr ibed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each le\le i follows underne<1th the table . 

(Rs In Million) 

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value· recurring fair value measurements at March 31, 2018 Levell Levell Level3 Total 

Fimmclal Assets 

Equity instruments 0.06 0.06 
Investments- Mutual funds 0.10 0.10 

Derivative Contracts 38.26 38.26 

Total financial assets 0.10 38.32 38.42 

FinancJaiLiabilltles 

Deriva tive liabilities pe!ndinR settlemt!nt 48.59 48.59 

Total financia l liabilities 48.59 48.59 

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed At March 31, 2018 Levell level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial Assets 

Investments· Government Securities 0.06 0 .06 
Total financial wets 0.06 0.06 

Financial assets and liabilities measured ;t fair value- recurring fair value measurements At March 31, 2017 ,.Levell level2 Levell Total 

Financial Assets 

Equity instruments 0.06 0.06 
Derivative Contracts 39.17 39.17 
Tota l financial assets 39.13 39.23 

Financ ial Liabilities 

o~ri\'ative liabilities pending se-ttlement 60.61 60.61 
Total financial liabilities 60.61 60.61 

(Rs In Million) 

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed At March 31, 2017 Levell Levell Levell Total 

Financial Assets 

Investments- Government Securities 0.06 0.06 

Total financial assets 0.06 0.06 

Commentary 

Levell: Levell hierarchy Includes rinancial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes mutual funds that have quoted price , The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV. 

Level2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use Of observable market data and rely as little as 

possible on entity·specific estimates. If all significant in puts required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level2. 

Level3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level3. 

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of the level2 financial instruments included In the above tables: 

·the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on obseJVable yield curves. 

-the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and principal swap is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date . 

-the fair value of foreign currency option contracts is determined using the Black Scholes valuation model. 

be the same as the or fa or values, due to the or short-term nature . The fa or value of non-current flnan70""Cj.in .no~-c rr~.c ~tll!!s also appro;Kima:t 

for financ1al assets and habthhes that are measured at fall value, the carrvmc amounts are equal to ~ fa values. '3 . 
0 - · 
~ r;r 
??-- <( 

* 



Note 44- Financial risk management 

liquidity risk 

Varroc Engineering Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a 

reasonable price. The Company's corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity and funding as well as settlement 

management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management 

monitors the Company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. As of March 31, 

2018, cash and cash equivalents are held with major banks. 

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities 

The table below summarises the maturity profile ofthe company's financial liabilities based on contractual payments. 

(Rs. In Million) 

March 31, 2018 On demand < 1 year 1 to 5 years 

Non- derivative 

Borrowings 52.64 2,508.33 2,204.61 

Contractual obligation of Interest - 214.35 182.49 
Trade Payables - 3,243.29 ' -
Acceptances - 184.12 -
Other financial liabilities 36.75 409.01 6.00 

Derivative liabilities pending settlement - 48.59 -

March 31, 2017 On demand < 1 year 1 to 5 years 
Non- derivative 

Borrowings 128.92 1,686.35 3,014.69 

Trade Payables - 2,219.64 -
Acceptances - 296.18 -

· Other financial liabilities 29.51 237.11 6.00 

Derivative liabilities pending settlement - 60.61 -

The amount disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months 

equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. 

> 5 years 

-

-
-
-
-

> 5 years 

-
-
-
-
-



Note 44 : Financial risk management 

Financial risk management 

Varroc Engineering limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary focus is to foresee 

the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The primary market risk to the 

Company is foreign exchange risk. The Company uses derivative financial instruments - foreign currency forward contracts, swaps and option 

contracts to mitigate foreign exchange related risk exposures. The Company's exposure to credit risk, excluding receivables from related parties, is 

Influenced mo1nly by the individual charal.lt:!J i~u~ uf I:!<Jch customer and the concentration at risk tram the top few customers. The demographics of 

the customer includillg lht:! tlt:!i<Jull risk of the Industry and country in which the customer operates also has an influence on credit risk assessment. 

Market Risk 

a) Foreign currency risk 

The Company operates internationally and the business is transacted in several currencies. Consequently the Company is exposed to foreign exchange 

risk through its sale and purchase of goods and services, mainly in the North America and Europe and borrowings in various foreign currencies. The 

exchange rate between the rupee and foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent years and may fluctuate substantially in the future. 

Consequently, the results of the Company's operations are affected positively/adversely as the rupee appreciates /depreciates against these 

currencies. The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from these transactions and enters into foreign exchange forward contracts, 

interest and principle swaps and options to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The Company follows 

established risk management policies, to hedge forecasted cash flows denominated in foreign currency. The Company has designated certain 

derivative instruments as cash flow hedges to mitigate the foreign exchange exposure of forecasted highly probable cash flows. 

i) The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk as of March 31 2018 expressed in INR is as follows· . . (Rs. In Million) 
March 31, 2018 

USD EURO JPV 
Other 

currencies 
Total 

Financial assets 

Trade receivables 211.45 333 .33 - - 544.78 

Interest receivable - 78.40 - 78.40 

Other assets 7.55 5.83 8.38 - 21.76 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 1,144.45 70.14 71.52 - 1,286.11 

Trade payables 265.39 24.32 52.40 11.19 353.30 

Other liabilities 9.93 150.77 - - 160.70 
Net assets/ (l iabilities) (1 200.77} 172.33 (115.54} (11.19) (1155.17) 

ii) The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk as of March 31 2017 expressed in INR is as fallows· . . 
March 31, 2017 

USD EURO JPV 
Other 

currencies 
Total 

Financial assets 

Trade receivables 191.85 159.77 - - 351.62 

Interest receivable - 67.25 - - 67.25 

Other assets 13.48 22.23 3.24 0.69 39.64 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 1,433.73 94.83 133.97 - 1,662.53 

Trade payables 160.16 13.58 34.45 15.92 224.11 

Other liabilities 26.20 132.81 - - 159.01 

Net assets I (liabil ities) (1,414.76) 8.03 (165.18) (15.23) (1,587.14) 



Ill) Sensitivity 
For the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, every percentage point appreciation/depreciation in the exchange rate between the Indian 

rupee and U.S. Dollar, would have affected the Company's incremental operating margins by approximately Rs. 12.01 Million and Rs. 14.14 Million, 
respectively. The sensitivity for net exposure in EURO, JPY and in other currencies does not have material impact to Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Sensitivity analysis is computed based on the changes in the receivables and payables in foreign currency upon conversion into functional currency, 

due to exchange rate fluctuations between the previous reporting period and the current reporting period. 

b) Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. 

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long term debt obligations with floating 

interest rates. 

Interest rate sensitivity 

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on exposure to interest rate. For floating rate liabilities, analysis is prepared assuming the 
amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. With all other variables held constant, the 

Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows: 

(Rs. In Million) 

For the year ended Currency Increase/ Effect on Variable rate 

decrease in profit before CC balance I 
base points tax Term loans 

March 31, 2018 INR +100 (10.90) 1,089.89 

INR -100 10.90 1,089.89 

March 31, 2017 INR +100 (15.00) 1,500.18 

INR -100 15.00 1,500.18 

c) Credit Risk Management 
Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a 
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing/ investing 

activities, including deposits with banks. The Company has 9 to 10 major clients (previous year 8 to 10 clients) which represents 82.77% receivables 
as on March 31, 2018 (March 31, 2017 : 80% )and company is receiving payments from these parties within due dates. Hence, the company has no 

significant credit risk related to these parties. 

Trade receivables 

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Further, 

Company's customers includes marquee OEMs and Tier I companies, having long standing relationship with the Company. Outstanding customer 

receivables are regularly monitored and reconciled. At March 31, 2018, receivable from Company's top 5 customers accounted for approximately 

74.26% (March 31, 2017: 74%) of all the receivables outstanding. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis 

based on historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of trade receivables disclosed in Note 12. The 

Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its 

customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independe.nt markets. 



Varroc Engineering Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

Note 45 -Capital Management 

(a) Risk management 

The Company's capital comprises equity share capital, preference share capital, security premium, retained earnings and other equity 

attributable to shareholders. 

The Company objectives when managing capital are to: 

- Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and for other 
stakeholders, and 

-Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to 

shareholders or issue new shares. 

The company monitors capital gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. Net debt comprises of long term and short term 

borrowings less cash and bank balances, equity includes equity share capital, preference share capital and reserves that are managed as 

capital. The gearing at the end of the reporting period was as follows. 

The Company's strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio of 1:1 
(Rs. In Million) 

March March 

31,2018 31,2017 

Net debt 4,679.72 4,798.66 

Total Equity 10,115.47 9,472.42 

Net debt to equity ratio 0.46 0.51 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital of the company during the year 

(i)Loan covenants 

The Company's capital management aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings 

that define capital structure requirements. There has been no breach in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing 

during the current period and previous year. 

(b) Dividends 

(i) Equity Shares 

Interim dividend for the year ended March 31, 2018 of Rs.0.50 per equity share of Re.1 each 

(March 31, 2017 of Rs. 3.5 per equity share of Rs. 10 each ) per fully paid share 

(il) Dividend Distribution tax 

March 31,2018 

(Rs. In Million) 

(61.56) 

(11.19) 

March 31 ,2017 

(Rs. In Million) 

(40.25) 

(4.61) 



Varroc Enalnaerlna Llmltad 
I~UtUI IU IHH ltdHHdiMd 11Hd~~l61 ilalamonls 

Note 46: Impact of hedging octlvltles 

(a) Disclosure of affocts of hadso nccountlng on llnonclol position 

Mar<h 31, 2018 (Rs. In Millions 

Typo of hedge ond risks Nomlnol voluo 
Carrying omount of hadslns Chansoln tho value of 

Instrument Chanses In fair 

Maturity do to 
Hedge Weighted average 

value of hedging 
hedged Item used as tho 

ratio strike price/rate 
Instrument 

basil for racosnlslng hedge 

Anots llobllltlcs Assets Llobllltles offoctlvonass 

Cash flow hedsa 
Principle and lntarast rate swaps 473.75 42.10 Juno 4, 2018- March 4, 2021 1:1 Rs.68.75 9.99 (9.99) 

Principle and lntorast rate swaps !4G.7 1 6.49 August18, 2018- May 20, 2021 1:1 Rs.66.60 2.03 (2.03) 

March 31, 2017 (Rs. In Millions) 

Type of hedge and risks Nominal volua 
Carrying amount of hedslns Chanaa In tho value of 

Instrument Hedge Weighted average 
Changes In fair 

hedged Item usad as the 
Moturlty date 

ratio strike price/rate 
value of hedging 

basis for recognising hedge 

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities 
Instrument 

effccttvcnaiS 

Cash flow hedge 

Principle omd Interest rate swaps 472.87 52.09 June 4, 2018- March 4, 2021 1:1 Rs. 68.75 (13.32) 13.32 

Principle and interest rat~ swaps 146.40 8.52 August 18, 2018- May 20, 2021 1:1 Rs. 66.60 (8.52) 8.52 

Movement In cash flow hedging reserve (Rs. ln Millions} 

As at As at 

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

Cash flow hedse 
Balance at the beginning of the year (8.95} (9 .28} 

Gain/Loss on chanses In fair value of hedging Instrument 12.02 (21.84} 

Income tax relating to gains/loss reclassified to profit and loss (4.20) 7.56 

Reclassification to Statement of Proflt and loss . (1.14 14.61 

Balance at the end of the ,ear l2.27) (8.95) 



Varroc Engineering Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statement 

Note 47 Related Portv Disclosure. 

o. Related parties and their relationships 

Subsidiaries 

2 Jointly Controlled Entities 

3 Key ManaRement Personnel 

4 Relatives of Key Management Personnel 
with whom transactions are taken place 

Enterprises Owned or controlled by/or over which Parties described in 
para 3 & 4 or their relatives exercise significant influence where 
transactions have taken place [Other than those included above) 

b. Transactions with related parties 

Description of the nature of transactions 

A] Sale of ~oods, services and fixed assets • 
Industria Meccanica E Stampaggio S.p.A., Italy 
TRI.O.M .. S.p.A .. Italy 
Varroc Polymers Private Limited 
Durova\ves India Private limited 
Varroc LiRhting Systems (India) Private limited 
Endurance Technologies Limited 
Tarang Jain (refer note below} 

BJ Purchase of goods, services and fixed assets • 
Durovalves India Private limited 
TAI.O.M .. S.p.A., ltalv 
Electromures SA, Romania 
Varroc Lighting Systems SRO. Czech Republic 
Varroc Lighting System India Pvt. ltd. 

Varroc Japan Co Ltd 
Varroc Polymers Private Limited 
Varroc Elastomers Private Limited (until March 15, 2017) 

C) Dividend received 
Varroc Polymers Private Limited- Equity Shares 

Durovalves India Private Limited - Equitv Shares 

D} Management consultancv fees received 
Duravalves India Pvt Ltd 
TRI.O.M ., S.p.A., Italy 

Varroc Lighting Systems Inc. USA 
Varroc Elastomer Pvt. Ltd. 

E) Reimbursement of expenses-paid 
TRI .O.M .. S.P.A .. Italy 

F) Guarant·ee commission paid 
Varroc Polvmers Private Limited 

Vt~rroc Polvmcrs Prlvt~tc Umltcd 
Ourovalvcs Indio Private Limited 
Varroc LIRhtinR Systems (Indio) Prlvote Limited 
Team Concopts Prlvote Llmltod (w.o.f. November 30, 20171 
Vorroc Europeon HoldinR B.V. Notherlonds 
Aries Mentor HoldinR B.V. Netherlands 

Vorroc Corp Hold InA B.V. Netherlands 
Vorroc Japon Co: Ltd Jopon (w.c.f. March 27, 20171 

lndustrlo Mecconlco E StompoRRio S.p,A .. Italy 
Esex ForRinR SRL. ltoly (LIQuidated on March 31, 20171 
TRI.O.M .. S.p.A., ltoly 
Electromures SA, Romonlo 
TRI.O.M. Vietnam Co. Ltd., Vietnam 

Varroc LiRhtlnR Systems SRO, Czech Republic 
Varroc LIRhtinR Systems S.de.R.L. De. C.V .. Mexico 
Varroc liMhtlnR Systems GMBH, Germany 
Varroc LIRhtinR Systems Inc. USA 
Varroc LiRhtinR Systems sp. Z o.o., Poland (w.e.f. December 20,20171 
Vorroc LiRhtlnR Systems SA, Morocco (w.e.f.September 19,20171 
Varroc Do Brasil Comf!rclo, lmporta~ao E Exportat;iio De Miiqulnas, Equlpamento E Pe~as Ltda. 
(w.e.f. December 20, 2017) 

TRI.O.M . Mexico SA De. C. V.Mexlco 

Varroc TYC Corporation British VlrRin islands 
Varroc TYC Auto lamps Co. Ltd., China (Subsidiary of Varroc TYC Corporation, BVI) 
Varroc TYC Auto Lamps Co. Ltd. CCL China (Subsidiary of Varroc TYC Auto Lamps Co Ltd China I 
Nueva CTS S.r.L .. Italy 
Varroc Elastomers Private Limited (until March 15, 20171 

Mr. Tarang Jain- Managing Director 

Whole time Directors 
Mr. Arlun Jain (until February 06, 20181 
Mr. Ashwani Maheshwari 

Non-executive Directors 
Mr. Naresh Chandra 

Independent Directors 
Mr. Gautam Khandelwal (w.e.f. July 20, 2017) 

Mr. Marc Szulewlcz (w.e.f. July 20, 20171 
Mrs. Vllaya Sampath (w.e.f. Julv 20. 20171 
Mr. Vinish Kathuria (w.e.f. February 06, 20181 

Mrs. Suman Jain 
Mrs. Rochana Jain 
Mr. Ariun Jain (w.e.f. February 07, 20181 
Mr. Dhruv Jain 

Endurance Technologies Limited 
TaranR Jain (HUFI 
TJ Holdinlits Trust 
Naresh Chandra Holdinf!:S Trust 
Suman Jain Holdings Trust 
Varroc Trading Private Limited {Until October 20,2016) 

Volume of transactions 
As at March 31 2018 For the year 

ended 

March 31, 2018 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2017 

Receivable Payable 

7.54 6.40 
0.08 0.12 

137.53 104.63 
21.51 68.67 
11.09 

91.35 63.92 

83.00 

173.41 142.95 
2.09 0.06 

0.01 
9.15 0.20 
5.09 0.68 

16.47 
321.73 330.87 

78.74 

6.61 6.61 

11.01 

5.00 5.00 
3.83 3.50 

63.93 65.28 
15.00 

0.12 

0.06 

10.34 
0.89 

32.10 
4.76 

8.90 
8.12 

1.35 
3.83 

32.08 

32.18 
0.57 
0.14 
9.34 
0.07 

2.92 
53.33 

Receivable 

2.80 
0.94 

20.19 

3.75 

2.63 

Payable 

0.16 
0.46 
0.14 
0.20 

45.71 
12.73 



Varroc Englnoorlng Llmltod 
Notos to tho standalono financial statomcnt 

(Rs In Million) 

Volume of transilctlons 
For tho year For the ycor AJ at March 31 2018 As at March 31 2017 

Doscrlptlon of the natura of tronsoctlons endod onded Recelvoblc Payable Receivable Poyoblc 

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

El Rent rccch1cd 
Varroc Polymers Prlvntc Limited 14.22 12.90 

F) Interest received 
Varroc European Holdln~ B.V.Nothorlands 1111 78.40 67.25 

Gl Guarantee commission received 
Industria Mcccanlca E Stampa~~lo S,p.A., Italy - 9.90 -
Vorroc Ll~htlnR Systems (India) Private Limited 0.55 1.47 0.59 0.37 

Varroc Ll~htlnR Systems S.de.R.L. De. C.V .. Mexico 12.82 12.24 
Varroc LiRhtln.A: Systems Inc. USA 16.82 6.14 
Varroc European HoldlnR B.V. 17.10 5.75 2.34 2.10 

HI Professional char~es/ e,o."'>M/ 'b.ion 
Mr. Naresh Chandra 0.57 0.57 
Mr. Gautam Khandelwal (w.e.f. July 20, 2017} 2.70 0.23 2.70 
Mr. Marc Szulewlcz (w.e.f. July 20, 2017} 3.70 3.70 
Mrs. Vl)aya Sampath (w.e.f. July 20, 20171 2.90 2.90 -
Mr. Vlnlsh Kathurla (w.e.f. February 06, 2018} 0.68 0.68 
TRI.O.M .. 5.o.A., Ita ly 2.54 
Varroc Polymers Private Limited, 2.67 1.40 

II Directors fees paid 
Mr. Naresh Chandra 0.10 0.14 
Mr. Gautam Khandelwal 0.80 0.10 
Mr. Marc Szulewlcz 0.30 -
Mrs. Viiava Sampath 0.60 
Mr. Vinlsh Kathurla (w.e.f. February 06, 2018} 0.20 

J) Mani!gerlal remuneration # 
Mr. Taranli( Jain 47.52 41.46 
Mr. Ariun Jain· (until February 6, 2018} 4.64 4.80 
Mr. Ashwanl Maheshwari 14.74 13.32 

Kl Remuneratlon 
Mrs. Rochana Jain 7.93 6.56 
Mr. Ar/un Jain· (w.e.f. February 7, 2018} 0.96 

Ll Security Deposit Transfer 
Varroc Polymer Pvt. Ltd. 0.25 

M) Relmburesement of Expenses (Received I Receivable) 

Varroc Polymer Pvt. ltd. 0.23 0.23 

Varroc lighting Systems S.de.R.l. De. c.v., Mexico 0.24 0.24 

Varroc Lighting Systems Inc. USA 0.28 0.28 

Varroc Lighting Systems SRO, Czech Republic 0.48 

N) Relmburesement of Initial Public Offer expenses (Payable) 

Industria Meccanica E Stampagglo s.p.a.,ITALY 1.01 1.01 

Varroc lighting Systems Inc. USA 21.13 21.13 

Varroc lighting Systems S.de.R.l. De. C.V., Mexico 9.99 9.99 -
Varroc lighting Systems GMBH, Germany 0.73 0.73 

Varroc lighting Systems SRO, Czech Republic 9.18 9.18 

Varroc Lighting Systems (india) Pvt. Ltd. 0.32 0.32 

TRI.O.M., S.p.A., Italy 2.47 - 2.47 

0) Reimburesement of Initial Public Offer expenses (Receivable) 

Mr. Tarang Jain 12.94 12.94 

P) Dividend paid 

Mr. Tarang Jain 25.40 24.20 

M r. Naresh Chandra 5.40 - -
Mrs. Suman Jain 4.04 
Mr. Arjun Jain .. -
Mr. Dhruv Jain .. - -
TJ Holdings Trust 16.93 -
Naresh Chandra Holdings Trust 5.00 

Suman Jain Holdings Trust 5.00 

Var roc Polymers Private Limited- equity shares 2.98 

Q} Guarantees for facilities availed by Subsidiaries 
Varroc li~htin~ Systems (India) Private limited 150.00 150.00 
Varroc Lighting Systems S.de.R.L. De. C.V., Mexico {USD 20.75 million; 1,351.66 1,349.17 

March 31. 2017 • USD 20.75 million! 
Varroc Lighting System Inc. USA (USD 31.00 million; March 31, 2017 • USD 2,019.34 1,349.17 -
20.75 million! 

R) Stand by letter of credit giiJen for facilities availed by subsidiaries 
Varroc European Holding S.V. {Euro 21.81 million; March 31, 2017- Euro 1,770.75 1,149.76 

16.51 million! 

• All the amounts are inclusive of taxes, if any 
u Amount below roundin,g off norm adopted bv the Company. 
#As gratuity and compensated absences are computed for all the employees in aggregate, the amount relating to the key managerial personnel, cannot be individually identified 
#HI Refer note 14 for provision made for doubtful debts. 

There is no provision for doubtful debts related to outstanding balances and no expense has been recognised during the current period in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related 

parties. 

During the year ended March 31, 2017 the company has issued 852,359 Series B CCPS and 1,168,377 Series C CCPS as bonus shares to key managerial personnel and their relative. 

Subsequently during the current year Series B CCPS have been converted into equity shares based on the terms of the agreement, refer' note 17. 

Note: Represent sale proceeds of sale of property with a book value of Rs. 82.69 Million. 



Varroc Engineering Limited · 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

Note 48 : Commitments 

(a) Capital commitments 

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows : 

(Rs. in Million) 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2018 2017 

Property, plant and equipment 1,303.48 263.40 

(b) Rental expense relating to operating leases 

(Rs. in Million) 

for the year for the year ended 

ended March March 

31,2018 31,2017 

Total rental expense relating to operating leases 47.43 44.81 



Varroc Engineering limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

Note 49 - Earnings per share 

Year Ended Year Ended 

March March 

31,2018 31,2017 

Earnings per share (EPS) 

Basic 

Profit after tax (Rs. in Million) 698.30 420.04 

Profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders (Rs. in Million) (A) 698.30 420.04 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (without considering impact of 14,090,641 11,777,377 
shares split)* 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (after considering impact of 140,906,410 117,773,767 
shares split) (B) 

Basic EPS (Amount in Rs.) 4.96 3.57 

Diluted 

Profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders (Rs. in Million) (A) 698.30 42Q.04 

Profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs. in Million) 698.30 461.64 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 140,906,410 121,417,467 

Diluted EPS (Amount in Rs.) 4.96 3.80 

' ' 
Basic earnings per share (Amount in Rs.) 4.96 3.57 
Diluted earnings per share (Amount in Rs.) # 4.96 3.57 

*Note : During the year, face value per Equity Share and Preference Share have been sub divided from Rs. 10 to Re. 1. 

Further authorised share capital of the Company was reclassified from Rs. 500 Million consisting of Rs. 165 Million 

(165,000,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each) and Rs. 335 Million (335,000,000 Preference Shares of Re. 1/- each) to Rs. 

250 Million {250,000,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each) and Rs. 250 Million (Consisting of 250,000,000 Preference Shares 

of Re. 1/- each). 

#Diluted earnings per share for the year ended March 31, 2017 is restricted to basic earnings per share due to anti­

dilutive impact. 



Varroc Engineering Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

Note 50- Contingent liabilities 

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 
(Rs. In Million) 

March March 

31,2018 31, 2017 

Disputed Excise and Service Tax matters 122.15 119.11 

Income Tax matters 124.59 -
Sales Tax matters 4.24 2.66 

Other money for which the Company is contingently liable (HR) 30.78 29.86 
Others 18.21 18.21 



Varroc Engineering Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

Note 51 - The company has provided corporate guarantees I Stand by letter of credit as at March 31, 2018 : 

(Rs. In Million) 

Particulars March March 

31,2018 31,2017 

Corporate guarantees for loan taken by Indian Subsidiary 150.00 150.00 

Corporate guarantees for loan taken by Foreign Subsidiaries [(March 31, 2018 -
3,371.00 2,698.34 

USD 51.75 million (March 31,2017- USD 41.50 million)] 

Standby letter of credit given for loans taken by Foreign subsidiaries [('March 
1,770.75 1,149.76 

31,2018- EURO 21.81 million (March 31, 2017- Euro 16.50 million)] 

For above gurantees following charge is created in favour of 

1) Stand by letter of credit from Citi Bank is secured by first pari-passu charge on movable fixed assets of Crankshaft unit 

both present and future located at M-191/3, MIDC, Waluj, Aurangabad- 431136. 

2) Stand by letter of credit from IDBI Bank is secured by first pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of stocks of raw 

materials, work in progress, finished goods, consumable, stores and spares, packing materials and receivables of the 

Company both present and future. 

3) Stand by letter of credit from Axis Bank is secured by subservient charge on the entire current assets and movable fixed 

assets of the Company 



Varroc Engineering Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements 

Note 52 -Assets pledged as security 

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are: 

Current 

Financial assets 

Investments 

Trade receivables 

Cash and bank balances 

Other financial assets 

Non-financial assets 

Inventories 

Other current assets 

Total current assets pledged as security 

Non-current 

Movable and immovable fixed assets of the Company both present and future. 

Tota l non-currents assets pledged as security 

Total assets pledged as security 

As per our report of even date 

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 304026E/E-300009 

p~ 
AMITBORKAR 

Partner 

Membership No : 109846 

Place : p..........._ 
Date : 0~ (,. ?otg 

(Rs. ln Million) 

March March 

31, 2018 31, 2017 

0.10 -

3,888.43 2,517.42 

85.86 31.30 

194.03 71.21 

1,946.90 1,731.48 

234.58 275 .67 

6,349.90 4,627.08 

6,038.31 6,699.51 

6,038.31 6,699.51 

12,388.21 11,326.59 

Fo. ::' "" b•h•lf ""~"'of Dicocto« 

\ (!~ 
TARANGJAI ~~~·~Al 

Managing Di rec~ Di r~:I, V 

~ / .. 
ASHWANI MA~EWARI 

CEO'"' Whof"r' Di"cto< ~. 

~~ I ~-
THARUVAI R. S~IVASAN RAKESH M.DARJT 

Group CFO 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : May 31, 2018 

Company Secretary 

-



Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of Varroc Engineering Limited (Formerly ''Varroc Engineering Private 
Limited") 

Report on the Consolidated Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements 

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Varroc Engineering 
Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company'') and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company 
and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group"), its joint ventures; (refer Note 48 and 55 to the 
attached consolidated financial statements), comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 
31, 2018, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and the Statement of Changes in Equity for 
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanat01y 
information prepared based on the relevant records (hereinafter referred to as "the Consolidated Ind 
AS Financial Statements"). 

Managt!Jllt:!Ul 's Responslbntcy for the Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements 

2. The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind 
AS financial stateme'nts in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred 
to as "the Act") that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated 
financial performance, consolidated cash flows and changes in equity of the Group including its joint 
ventures in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian 
Accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as 
amended) under Section 133 of the Act. The Holding Company's Board of Directors is also responsible 
for ensuring accuracy of records including financial information considered necessary for the 
preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures are responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group 
and its joint ventures respectively and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which has 
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the 
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on 
our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules made thereunder including the accounting standards and matters which are required to be 
included in the audit report. 

4. We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative 
pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 
pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP, 7th Floor, Tower A 
Yerwada, Pune - 411 oo6 

t nC "' . . 
Price Waterhouse & Co. (a Partnership Firm) converted into Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP (a Limite 1 LLP 1dent1ty no: 
LLPIN AAC-4362) with effect from July 7, 2014. Post its conversion to Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP, its ICAI registration number is 
304026EIE-300009 (I CAl registration number before conversion was 304026E) 



Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
To the Members ofVarroc Engineering Limited (Formerly "Varroc Engineering Private Limited") 
Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 
Page 2 of 4 

5· An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company's preparation of the consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding 
Company's Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements. 

6. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors 
in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph 9 and 11 of the Other Matters paragraph below, 
other than the unaudited financial statements as certified by the management and referred to in sub­
paragraph 10 ofthe Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

Opinion 

7· In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and joint ventures as at March 31, 
2018, and their consolidated total comprehensive income (comprising of consolidated profit and 
consolidated other comprehensive income), their consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date. 

Emphasis of Matter 

8. We draw your attention to note 39 of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, regarding the 
adjustments on account of rectification of a computational error by restatement of the comparative 
financial information in accordance with paragraph 42 of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 8 
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. Our opinion is not qualified in 
respect of this matter. 

Other Matters 

9· We did not audit the financial statements/financial information of four subsidiaries whose financial 
statements/financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 33,867.37 million and net assets of Rs. 
13,380.36 million as at March 31, 2018, total revenue of Rs. 61,412.34 million, total comprehensive 
income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income) of Rs. 2,748.15 million and net cash 
flows amounting to Rs. (731.30) million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements also include 
the Group's share of total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive 
income) of Rs. 672.91 million for the year ended March 31, 2018 as considered in the consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements, in respect of two joint ventures, whose financial statements/financial 
information have not been audited by us. These financial statements/financial information have been 
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management, and our opinion 
on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 
included in respect of these subsidiaries and joint ventures and our report in terms of sub-section (3) 
of Section 143 of the Act insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and joint ventures, is based 
solely on the reports of the other auditors. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
To the Members ofVarroc Engineering Limited (Formerly "Varroc Engineering Private Limited") 
Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 
Page 3 of 4 

10. We did not audit the financial statements/financial information of six subsidiaries whose financial 
statements/financial information reflect total assets of Rs.636.67 million and net assets of Rs. 112.38 
million as at March 31, 2018, total revenue of Rs. 10.66 million, total comprehensive income 
(comprising ofprofitj(loss) and other comprehensive income) ofRs. (78-46) million and net cash flows 
amounting toRs. 300.01 million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements also include the Group's share 
of total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income) of Rs. 17.37 
million for the year ended March 31, 2018 as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements, in respect of two joint ventures whose financial statements/financial information have not 
been audited by us. These financial statements/financial information are unaudited and have been 
furnished to us by the Management, and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements 
insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and joint 
ventures and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act insofar as it relates to the 
aforesaid subsidiaries and joint ventures, is based solely on such unaudited financial 
statements/financial information . In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us by the Management, these financial statements/financial information are not material to 
the Group. 

11. The financial statements/financial information of four subsidiaries included in the consolidated 
financial statements/financial information, which constitute total assets of Rs-4,641. 77 million and 
net assets of Rs. 960.92 million as at March 31, 2018, total revenue of Rs. 4,263.52 million, total 
comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income) ofRs. 43.03 million 
and net cash flows amounting toRs. (0.14) million for the year then ended, have been prepared in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries and have 
been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their 
respective countries. The Company's management has converted the financial statements of such 
subsidiaries from the accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments 
made by the Company's management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs 
of such subsidiaries is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments 
prepared by the management of the Company and audited by us. 

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our 
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements/financial 
information certified by the Management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Holding Company, 
its subsidiaries included in the Group incorporated in India including relevant records relating to 
preparation of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books and records of the Holding Company and the reports of the other 
auditors. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
To the Members ofVarroc Engineering Limited (Formerly "Varroc Engineering Private Limited") 
Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 
Page 4 of 4 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries included in the Group incorporated in India 
including relevant records relating to the preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors ofthe Holding Company as 
on March 31, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports 
of the statut01y auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the 
Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) ofthe Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure A. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at 
March 31, 2018 on the consolidated financial position of the Group and joint ventures- Refer Note 52 
and 55 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

ii. The Group and its joint ventures had long- term contracts as at March 31, 2018 for which there were 
no material foreseeable losses. Provision has been made in the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable 
losses for derivative contracts as at- March 31, 2018- Refer Note 28 to the Consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements in respect of such items as it relates to the Group. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India during 
the year ended March 31, 2018. 

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company for 
the year ended March 31, 2018. 

Place: Pune 
Date: June 6, 2018 

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number 304026E/E-300009 
Chartered Accountants 

Amit Borkar 
Partner 
Membership Number: 109846 
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors' Report 

Referred to in paragraph [12(f)] of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members ofVarroc 
Engineering Limited (Formerly "Varroc Engineering Private Limited") on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 

Page 1 of3 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

1. In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company as of 
and for the year ended March 31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements of Varroc Engineering Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding 
Company") and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and its subsidiaries to whom reporting 
under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting is applicable, which are companies incorporated in India, 
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued 
by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy ofthe internal 
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors' Report 

Referred to in paragraph [12(f)) of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members ofVarroc 
Engineering Limited (Formerly "Varroc Engineering Private Limited") on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 
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5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other 
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
system with reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 
statements 

7· Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

8. In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated 
in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial contTols system with reference 
to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
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Other Matter 

9· Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness 
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to one 
subsidiary company, which is company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report 
of the auditor of such company incorporated in India. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this 
matter. 

Place: Pune 
Date: June 6, 2018 

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-3ooooo9 
Chartered Accountants 

J£~ 
Amit Borkar 
Partner 
Membership Number- 109846 



ASSETS 
Non current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Capital work-in-progress 
Investment properties 
Goodwill 
Other Intangible assets 
Intangible assets under development 
Investments accounted for using the equity method 
Fin.ancial assets 

Investments 
Loans 
Other financial assets 

Income tax assets (Net) 
Deferred tax assets (Net) 
Other non-current assets 
Total non-current assets 

current assets 
Inventories 
Financial assets 

Investments 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other bank balances 
Loans 
Other financial assets 

Other current assets 
Total current assets 

Total Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 

Equity and Preference share capital 
Other equity 

Reserves and surplus 
Other reserves 

Equity attributable to owners 

Non-controlling interests 
Total equity 

Varroc Engineering Limited 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Notes As at March 31, 2018 

3 25,863.21 
3 2,440.47 
4 140.55 

5 (a) 334.72 
5 (b) 1,701.05 
5 (b) 1,000.25 
55 3,564.96 

6 0.20 
7 106.81 
8 316.27 
9 124.35 

24 1,030.00 
10 1,296.70 

37,919.54 

11 8,640.97 

12 30.32 
13 14,027.34 

14(a) 3,265.78 
14(b) 23.59 

15 40.07 
16 2,612.77 
17 1,963.54 

30,604.38 

68,523.92 

18 134.81 

19 26,106.97 
20 2,038.27 

28,280.05 

207.67 
28,487.72 

(Rs In Million) 

As at March 31, 2017 
(Restated) 

22,512.05 
2,464.58 

146.34 
150.82 

1,146.00 
460.80 

2,927.07 

0.20 
82.59 

759.19 
153.03 
130.21 
486.09 

31,418.97 

7,534.72 

-
11,382.85 

3,500.27 
40.27 
42.29 

3,012.51 
1,671.92 

27,184.83 

58,603.80 

134.81 

21,683.36 
35.58 

21,853.75 

201.59 
22,055.34 



Varroc Engineering Limited 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 
(Rs In Million) 

Notes As at March 31, 2018 
As at March 31, 2017 

(Restated) 

LIABILITIES 

Non-current liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings 

Other financial liabilities 

Provisions 

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 
Other non-current liabilities 

Total non-current liabilities 

Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

21 

22 

23 
24 

25 

Borrowings 26 
Trade payables 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 27 

Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small 27 
enterprises 

Acceptances 

Other financial liabilities 

Provisions 

Income tax liabilities (Net) 

Other current liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Total equity and liabilities 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 304026E/E-300009 

AMIT BORKAR 

Partner 
Membership No : 109846 

Place:P~ 
Date : J ~ C.. ");;;, I ~ 

28 

29 

9 

30 

2 

6,361.46 7,552.71 

122.81 91.17 

1,002.42 740.04 

508.87 130.04 

310.33 83.17 

8,305.89 8,597.13 

3,439.27 5,991.90 

27.22 25.59 

19,766.57 15,036.43 

210.34 434.92 

5,653.06 4,691.51 

448.48 597.32 

81.33 178.90 

2,104.04 994.76 

31,730.31 27,951.33 

40,036.20 36,548.46 

68,523.92 58,603.80 

_!•' '"' "" boh\;f tho ' : "' of Di""•" 

\ - I} J1{ 
TARANGJAIN :. ~A1~Al 

Managing Director Director 

~ 
ASHWAN~~HESHWARI 

CEO and W~le Time Director 

rrk 1 
THARUVAI R. SRINIVASAN 

Group CFO 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: May 31, 2018 

RAKESH M. DARJI 

Company Secretary 



Varroc Engineering limited 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

(Rs. In Million) 
Notes For the year ended March 31, For the year ended M;~rch 31, 

2018 2017 
(Restated) 

Revenue 

Revenue from operations 31 103,784.57 96,085.40 

Other Income 32 386.10 937.29 

Total income 104,170.67 97,022.69 

Expenses 

Cost of materials consumed 33 63,203.22 59,731.20 

Purchases of stock-in-trade 923.95 987.92 

Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-In-trade and finished goods 34 (300.31) (351.60) 

Excise duty 996.26 3,097.52 

Employee benefits expense 35 13,135.17 12,037.50 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 36 3,864.65 3,370.83 
Other expenses 37 17,050.62 14,765.31 
Finance costs 
(i) Finance costs other than covered under (ii) below 38 861.70 862.36 

(ii) Imputed interest and changes in cash flow estimates on liability portion of CCPS - 41.60 
(refer note 18) 

Total expenses 99,735.26 94,542.64 

Profit before share of net profits of investments accounted for using equity method 4,435.41 2,480.05 
and tax 

Share of net profits of investments accounted for using the equity method 690.27 791.88 
Profit before tax 5,125.68 3,271.93 
Income tax expense 40 

Current tax 1,161.10 473.42 
Deferred tax (543.19) (336.32) 
Total tax expense 617.91 137.10 

Profit for the year 4,507.77 3,134.83 



Varroc Engineering Limited 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and loss 

Other comprehensive Income 

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 

Deferred hedging galns/(losses) on cash flow hedges (net of tax) 

Exchange differences In translating the financial statements of foreign operations 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (net of tax) 

Other comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Profit attributable to: 

Owners 
Non-controlling interests 

Other comprehensive income attributable to: 
Owners 

Non-controlling interests• 

Total comprehensive income attributable to: 
Owners 

Non-controlling interests 

Earnings per equity share attributable to Owners [Nominal value per share: Re. 1 

(Previous year: Rs. 10)] 

Basic 

Diluted 

• Amount is below the rounding off norm of the Group 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
As per our report of even date 

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 304026E/E-300009 

AMITBORKAR 

Partner 

Membership No : 109846 
Place : P v--e 
Date : ..::f.........-(.. ' 1-o I g 

Notes 

51 

2 

For the year ended March 31, 

2018 

6.68 
1,996.01 

(4.41) 

1,998.28 

6,506.05 

4,502.58 

5.19 

1,997.80 

0.48 

6,500.38 

5.67 

33.40 

33.40 

For and !.n behalf of the Bof of Directors 

\ \J --
TARANG JAIN ,-

Managing Director 

(Rs. In Million) 
For the year ended March 31, 

2017 
(Restated) 

0.36 
(836.29) 

(25.92) 

(861.85) 

2,272.98 

3,131.00 

3.83 

(862.49) 

0.64 

2,268.51 

4.47 

28.66 

28.10 

(} /1 
GAU~il~ 

D•rector 

~ 
ASHWANl MA_15HWAR1 

CEO and Whole {'me Director 

THARUVAI R. SRINIVASAN 
Group CFO 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: May 31, 2018 

~ 
RAKESH M. O~c_R-::JI:;~::;· ::.J.__ 

Company Secretary 



A Equitv and prcl•renc~ stQrc c~plta l 

Notes (Rs. in Mitllon) 

As at Apri l I, 2016 262.3~~ 1 
leU!· Conversion of 0.001% Series "A" CCPS to equity 18 (166.231 
Add:· Issue of equity share on conversion of 0,001% Series "A" CCPS 18 18,47 

l:dd'· lme of 0,0001% 5or;., "B" CCP5 18 8.52 
Add :· Issue of 0.0001% Series "C CCPS 18 11.68 
As ~I March .U, 2017 Restated] 134.81 
Add: Convetllon of series ~B" CCPS Pr~fc1cnce share s into 852,159 8.52 
equity shares, (Refer note 18 fd)J 
less: Conversion of 852,349 series "B• CCPS Preference shares into (8.521 
~uitv shares . (Refer note 18 {d)J 

As' a t M1u~ 2018 I I 134.81 

• Other equity 

I. Not" 
Retained earnings 

Balance at April1, 1011 4,862.75 
Correct ion of Prior Period error (Refer Note 39) 272.67 
Ren~ted Balanc.e at the. beeinning of the financial year 5,135.42 

Profit for the year ended 4,502.58 

Remcasurement of defined benefit obligation (Net of tax) (4.89) 
(Gain)/loss on changes in fair value of hedgirtg instrument (Net of 
,.,) 
hchange differences in translating the financial statements of 
foreign operations 
Transfer 10 debenture redemption reserve 

I 
(125.001 

Add : On account or capital reduction (rl!fer note 18 {f)) 205.95 I 
Tr~nsact ions with owners In their upac.ity or owners: 
DN~end paid (including dividend distribution tax Rs 12.52 million) (74.081 

((]nversfo.-. of 0.001% Series "A" CCPS Into equity shares 10 

Other 

Bal:.!!nCe: at Ma rch 31, 2r;tUI 

Genl!ral 
reservl! 

3,747.14 

3,747.14 

447.59 

4,194.73 

V<~noc E'nclnuring llmltl!d 
Statement of changes In equity 

Reserves and Sutplus 

Debenture 
Capital redemption 

redemption Capit<ll Reserve 
reserve 

reserve 

200.00 11.30 6,095.34 

200,00 . 11.30 6,095.34 

125.00 I I 
(760.2611 

325.oo I 1UOI s,335.o8 I 

(Rs. in Million) 
Othe r Reserves Equity 

Non 
Securities 

Foreign Currency cash flow hedge 
Equity attributable Con""""'" I To~l Equity St<~tutorv 

premium component of to 
reserves Translation Reserve ronove lnw.sts 

reserve CCPS Ownen 

36S.SO 6,UB.66 54.90 (8.94) 21.456.65 201.59 :ZL653.2.J 
(10.381 262.29 262.29 

365.50 6,128.66 44.52 (1.94) 21.71&..94 201.59 21.920.53 

4,50Z..S8 5.19 4,507.n 
(4.891 0.48 (<.:1) 

6.~, 

I 
6.68 6.61 

1.996.011 1.996.01 1.996.01 

45.301 

I 
61.42 

I I I I 
(74.08) (74.0S) 

0.41 0.41 

• 10.80 I 6,190.08[ 2,040.53[ 28,145.24 2JJ7.fi1 28,]52..91 



~bnt"e at April1, 2016 

Profit for the y~ar ended 

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (Net of taK impact) 

(Gain)/lou on ch<'nges in fair value of hedging Instrument 

ENcb.:Jnl!e differences in uanslating the financial statements of 
foteign operations 

Tro~~nsfl!r to debenture redemption reserve 

Tta ns01dions with owners in their capacity of owners: 

Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tCIK Rs 8.87 million) 

Convenion or 0.001% Series ·A~ CCPS in to equity shares 

lmte of 0.0001% Series "8" CCPS and Series "C" CCPS 

Other 

B~l.- ncl!! at March 31, 2017 fRestl t.d) 
The notes are an inte-gral part or these fi nancial 51'1ttments 

A$ per our report of even date 

For Price WaterhoUH! & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 

Memb¥tihip No: 109846 

Place: t"~ 
Date: a'..J-<- L ._'2.>_1_'(;" 

Notes 

Retained earnincs 

2,275.61 
3,131.00 

(25.28) 

zo 

(200.00) 

(45.91) 

I 
18 

19 

I 5,135.42 1 
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reserve 

3.747.14 

3,747.14 
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Sr. No. 

A 

B 

c 

Varroc Engineering Limited 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

Particulars 
Year ended March 31, 2018 

(Rs. In Million) 
Cash flow from operating activities 
Net Profit before tax 5,125.68 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortization expense 3,864.65 
loss/(Profit) on sale of Property, plant and equipment/Intangible assets 1.35 
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 61.38 
Finance costs 861.70 
Gain on sale of current investments (2.70) 
Share in profit of Joint Venture accounted for using the Equity Method (690.27) 
Imputed interest and changes In cash flow estimate on liability portion of CCPS -

Rent income from Investment Property (32.50) 
Government grants (151.21) 
Interest income (11.14) 3,901.26 
Operating profits before working capital changes 9,026.94 
Adjustments for changes in: 
Inventories (292.22} 
Trade receivables (1,339.10) 
Other Assets 964.56 
Trade payables 2,669.88 
Other liabilities and Provisions 956.63 

2,959.75 
Cash generated from operations 11,986.69 
Taxes paid (1,238.20) 

Net cash generated from operating activities 10,748.49 

Cash flow from investing activities 
Dividend received 251.41 
interest received 11.14 
Government grant received during the year 6.80 
Rent received on investment properties 32.50 
(Purchase}/proceeds from sale of current investments (net) (27.62} 
(Purchase)/proceeds from sale of non current investments (net) -
Acquis ition of business, net of cash acquired (500.94) 
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment 177.36 
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (5,958.25) 
Fixed deposits redeemed/Purchase (net) (5.32} 

Net cash used in investing activities (6,012.92} 

Cash flow from financing activities 
Increase in borrowings (4,298.50) 
Dividend on equity and preference shares including tax thereon (74.08} 
Interest paid (859.18) 
Net cash generated from financing activities (5,231.76) 
Net increase/ (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (496.19) 

Opening cash and cash equivalents 3,053.21 
Effect of exchange difference on translation of foreign currency cash and cash 560.03 
equivalents 
Total 3,613.24 

Closing cash and cash equivalents 3,117.05 

Year ended March 31, 2017 
(Restated) 

(Rs. in Million) 

3,271.93 

3,370.83 
5.82 

44.89 
862.36 
(59.4].) 

(791.88) 
41.60 

(31.89} 
(117.31) 

(15.03) 3,309.98 
6,581.91 

(1,023.00) 
(155.07) 

(2,021.77) 
3,380.50 

514.35 
695.01 

7,276.92 
(511.92) 

6,765.00 

202.40 
15.03 

31.89 
178.80 

65.20 

45.08 
(6,288.74) 

96.00 

(5,654.34) 

1,838.60 
(45.91) 

(856.18) 
936.51 

2,047.17 

1,118.61 
(112.57) 

1,006.04 

3,053.21 



Varroc Engineering Limited 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended Year ended 

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

(Rs. In Million) (Rs. In Million) 

Cash and cash equivalents consists of 

Cash In hand 2.19 2.10 
Bank balances 

3,263.S9 3,498.17 

Current accounts and deposits with maturity of less than three months 

Bank overdraft (Refer note 26) (148.73) (447.06] 

3117.0S 3 053.21 

Notes: 

1 The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out In lnd AS 7 on "Statement of Cash Flows" . 

2 Figures in brackets represent out flow of Cash and cash equivalents . 

As per our report of even date 

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 

Firm Registration No: 304026E/E-300009 

Chartered Accountants 

AMITBORKAR 

Partner 

Membership No. 109846 
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Date : .:r~ ~'lo t~ 
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1 
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CEO and Whole ime Direct 

rrX 
THARUVAI R. SRINIVASAN RAKESH M. DARJI 

Group CFO 
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Date : May 31, 2018 

Company Secretary 



Varroc Engineering limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 

Background 

Varroc Engineering Limited (the "Company") Is a limited liability Company, primarily engaged In the business of auto components and services In the automotive Industry to 

Indian and global customers. The Company, Its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entitles operate from manufacturing plants and technical development centers across 4 
continents and 12 countries spread across the globe. 

Note 1: Significant accounting policies 

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted In the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These policies have been consistently 

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the group consisting of Varroc Engineering Limited (the 'Company'), Its 
subsidiaries and joint ventures. 

(a) Basis of preparation 
(i) Compliance with lnd AS: 

The Consolidated Financial Statements comply In all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgements. It also requires the Management to 

exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions 
and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 2. 

All amounts included in these Consolidated Financial Statements are reported in Million of Indian rupees (Rs. In Million) except earning per share data and unless stated 
otherwise. 

(ii) Historical cost convention: 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 

certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value; and 

defined benefit plans and plan assets measured at fair value. 

(iii) Current - Non-current classification: 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group's operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 

2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has 

ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current- non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

(iv] Amended Standard adopted by the group 

The amendment to lnd As 7 require disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, refer note 26 

(b) Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries and joint ventures as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2018. 

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its 

power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has: 
- Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee) 

. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and 

. The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns 

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. 
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income 

and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date the Group gains control until the 
date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. 

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group 
uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate 

adjustments are made to that group member's financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the group's accounting 
policies. 

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31 

March. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial 
information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is 
impracticable to do so. 

(i) Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has control. The group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like 

items of assets, liabilities, equi.ty, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. 
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been 

changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group. 

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement of changes 
in equity and balance sheet respectively. 



Varroc Engineering Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 

(II) Joint arrangements 

Under lnd AS 111 Joint Arrangements, Investments In joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures. The classification depends on the 

contractual rights and obligations of each Investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement. 
a) Joint ventures 

Interests in joint ventures are accounted far using the equity method (see (Ill) below), after Initially being recognized at cost in the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

b)Jolnt operations 

The Group recognises Its direct right to the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of joint operations and Its share of any jointly held or. Incurred assets, liabilities, 

revenues and expenses. These have been Incorporated In the financial statements under the appropriate headings. 

(iii) Equity Method 
Under the equity method of accounting, the Investments are initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the group's share of the post-acquisition profits 

or losses of the lnvestee in profit and loss and the group's share of other comprehensive income of the lnvestee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or 

receivable from joint ventures are recognized as a reduction In the carrying amount of the investment. 
When the group's share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest In the entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the 

group does not recognize further losses, unless it has Incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity. 

Unrealized gains on transactions between the group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the group's interest in these entities. Unrealized losses are also 

eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. 
The carrying amount of equity accounted Investments are tested for impairment in accordance with the policy described in note 1(i) below. 

(iv) Changes in ownership interests 

The group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity owners of the group. A change in ownership 
interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any 

difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognized within equity. 

When the group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control or significant influence, any retained interest in the 

entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of 
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive 

income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized 

in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss. 

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts 

previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate. 

(v) The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities, over the net assets at the time of acquisition of investment is recognised in 

the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve on consolidation as the case may be. 

(vi) The list of subsidiaries and joint ventures considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements is given in Note 48. 

c. Foreign currency translation 

The Group's Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in INR, which is also the parent company's functional currency. For each entity, the Group determines the 

functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. 



varroc Engineering Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 

Transactions and balances 
Tr~nsactlons In foreign currencies ~re Initially recorded by the Group's entitles ~t their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for 
recognition. 

Monetary assets and il~bllltles denomln~ted In foreign currencies ~re tr~nslated ~t the function~ I currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary Items are recognized In profit or loss with the exception of the following: 

- Exchange differences arising on monetary Items that forms part of a reporting entity's net Investment In a foreign operation are recognized In profit or loss In the separate 

financial statements of the reporting entity or the individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that Include the foreign 

operation and the reporting entity (e.g., Consolidated Financial Statements when the foreign operation is a subsidiary), such exchange differences are recognized lnltl~lly in 

OCI. These exchange differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment. 

- Exchange differences arising on monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group's net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognized In OCI 

until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss. 

- Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCI. 

- Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-

monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on 

translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation 

differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively). 

Group companies _ 

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or 

loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. For practical reasons, the group uses an average rate to translate income and expense items, if 

the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognized in OCI. On 

disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in profit or loss. 

Any goodwill arising in the acquisition/ business combination of a foreign operation on or after 1 April 2015 and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets 

and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. 

Any goodwill or fair value adjustments arising in business combinations/ acquisitions, which occurred before the date of transition to lnd AS (1 April 2015), are treated as 

assets and liabilities of the entity rather than as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation. Therefore, those assets and liabilities are non-monetary items· already expressed 

in the functional currency of the parent and no further translation differences occur. 

Gain or loss on a subsequent disposal of any foreign operation excludes translation differences that arose before the date of transition but includes only translation differences 
arising after the transition date. 

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange 

gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses). 

d. Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the 

payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and 

excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Group has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary 

obligor in ail the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks. 

Based on the Educational Material on lnd AS 18 issued by the ICAI, the Group has assumed that recovery of excise duty flows to the group on its own account. This is for the 

reason that it is a liability of the manufacturer which forms part of the cost of production, irrespective of whether the goods are sold or not. Since the recovery of excise duty 

flows to the group on its own account, revenue includes excise duty. 

However, sales tax/ value added tax (VAT) and Goods and Service Tax (GST) are not received by the group on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the 

commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue. 

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized. 

Sale of goods 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. 

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. 

The Group provides normal warranty provisions on some of its products sold, in line with the industry practice. A liability is recognized at the time the product is sold. The 

Group does not provide any extended warranties. 

Sale of services 
Income from services is recognised on the basis of time/work completed as per contract with the customers. The Group collects service tax/goods and service tax (GST) on 

behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the Group. Hence, it is excluded from revenue. 



Varroc Engineering Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 

Contract Rr.vr.mtP 

Revenue In respect of projects for construction of the tools and design of engineering services etc. which qualify as construction contracts as per conditions of IND AS 11 arc 
recognized on the basis of percentage of completion method. 

Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily Involves making estimates by the Management (some of which are a technical nature) 
of the costs of completion, the expected revenues from each contract (adjusted for probable liquidated damages, II any) and the foreseeable losses to completion. 

Stage of completion of each contract Is determined by the proportion that aggregate contract costs Incurred lor work done till the balance sheet date bear to the estimated 
total contract cost. 

,•,muuiiLJ uultiLII 1~ldlt! LU I~LUV~t~tll~ eMB and accrued prollts thereon, which are not yet billed on contracts are presented as Unbllled Revenue. Unearned revenue 

represents billing (for which payment has been received) in exces~ of rr.vrntiP r~rnsniJed. Thvy aro proGontod 09 current onetJ /llai.JIIILI~~ ex~t!IJL fut those reall21ng I getting 
earned later than 12 months after the reporting date, which are presented as non·current assets /liabilities respectively. 

Foreseeable losses, if any, on the contracts are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are foreseen, Irrespective of the stage of completion of the contract. 

Interest 

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable. 

Dividend 

Revenue is recognized when the Group's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend. 

Wind/solar power generation 

Income from the wind I solar power generation is recognised when earned on the basis of contractual arrangements with the buyers. 

e. Government Grants 

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the group will comply with all 
attached conditions. 

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to 
compensate and presented within other income. 

Government grants relating to purchase of property plant and equipment are included in current and non current liabilities as deferred Income and are credited to profit or 
loss on straight-line basis over the expected Jives of the related assets and presented within other income. 

f. Income tax 

Current income-tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to 

compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income. 

Current income tax relating to Items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax 

items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with 
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 



Varroc Engineering Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax Is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities arc recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

- When the deferred tax liability ar ises from the Initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability In a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of 
the transaction, affects nei ther the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss 

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments In subsidiaries, associates and Interests In joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the 

temporary differences can be controlled and It Is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse In the foreseeable future 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are 
recognized to the extent that It Is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except: 

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that Is not a business 

combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss 

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments In subsidiaries, associates and Interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized 
only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary 
differences can be utilised 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that It is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the 

extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates 

(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
Deferred tax relating to items recognized outs ide profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax Items 

are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes 

relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, are recognized subsequently If new information 
about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognized within the measurement period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result 

from new information obtained about facts and dr~umstances existing at the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits 
are recognized in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All other acquired tax benefits realised are recognized In profit or 
loss. 

g. Leases 

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or 

contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if 
that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 
As a lessee 

Leases where the group, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease's 

inception at the fa ir value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance 

charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is 
charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. Contingent 

rentals are recognized as expenses In the periods In which they are incurred. 

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the group as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made 
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight·line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments 

are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. 

As a lessor 

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating 
lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to 

compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying 
amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they 
are earned. 

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Group to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under 

finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant 
periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease. 
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h. Business combinations 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition Is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at 

acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non·control/lng Interests In the acqulree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non· 
controlling Interests In the acqulree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acqulree's Identifiable net assets. Acqulsltlon·related costs are expensed as incurred. 

At the acquisition date, the Identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities 

assumed Include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values Irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits is not probable. 

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation In accordance with the contractual 

terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the .separation of embedded derivatives In host contracts by the acqulree. 

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity Interest is re·measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss Is 
recognized in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate. 

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer Is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability 
that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Jnd AS 109 Financial instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. If the 

contingent consideration Is not within the scope of lnd AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate lnd AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity 

is not re·measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent Its settlement Is accounted for within equity. 

Goodwill is Initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling interests, and any 

previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration 

transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure 

the amounts to be recognized at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration 
transferred, then the gain ls recognized in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognizes 
the gain directly In equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI. 

After initial recognition, goodwill Is measured at cost less any accumulated impa irment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business 

combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash:generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether 

other assets or liabil ities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. 

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts 
for the items for which the accounting Is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or 
liabilities are recognized, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the 

amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the 
acquisition date. 

i. Impairment of assets 

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists. or when annual impairment testing for an 
asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value 

less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely 

independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired 
and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre·tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 

time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no s.uch 

transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded 
companies or other available fair value indicators. 

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detail~d budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Group's CGUs to which the 

individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a iong·term growth rate is calculated and 

applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group 
extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, tjlis 

growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which 
the asset is used. ' 

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at the year·end and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. 
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Impairment Is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of 
the CGU Is less than Its carrying amount, an Impairment loss Is recognized . Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed In future periods. 

Intangible assets with Indefinite useful lives are tested for Impairment annually as at the year-end at the CGU level, as appropriate, and when circumstances Indicate that the 
carrying value may be Impaired. 

j. Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent In the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are 
subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value. 
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group's cash management. Bank overdraft are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the Balance sheet. 

k. Trade receivables 
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method, less provision for Impairment. 

1. Inventories 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows: 
• Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted 
average basis. 

• finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating 
capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on weighted average basis. 
• Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted 
average basis. 
Initial cost of inventories includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges, recognized in OCI, in respect of the purchases of raw materials. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

Duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the entity from the taxing authorities) are included in the value of inventory. 

m. Financial instruments 

Financial Assets 
Initial Recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit and loss, transactions costs that are 
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. 

Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

Debt instruments at amortized cost 

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

• Debt instruments at amortized cost 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met: 

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 
(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of EIR. The EIR 
amortization is included in finance costs/income in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category 
generally applies to trade and other receivables. 
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. Debt Instrument at FVTOC/ 

(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and 
(b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

Debt instruments Included within the FVTOCI category are measured Initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized In the other 
comprehensive Income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes Interest Income, Impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de· 
recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized In OCIIs reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt Instrument Is 
reported as Interest Income under EIR method. 

- Debt Instrument at FVTPL 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI is classified as 
FVTPL. 

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt Instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election Is allowed 
only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). The Group has not designated any debt 
instruments as at FVTPL. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in P&L. 

. Equity investments 

All equity investments In scope of lnd-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognized by an 
acqulrer in a business combination to which lnd-AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to 
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such an election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. This classification Is 
made on initial recognition and is Irrevocable. 

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCJ. There Is no 
recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on the sale of the investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in P&L. 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i .e. removed from the Group's 
balance sheet) when: 

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a 
third party under a "pass-through" arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has 
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of 
the asset, the Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated 
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retai ned. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the 
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay. 

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with lnd-AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and 
credit risk exposure:-
(a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g. loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance 

(b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at FVTOCI 
(c) Lease receivables under lnd-AS 17 
(d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of lnd AS 11 and lnd AS 18 

(e) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL 

(f) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL 
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The Group follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of Impairment loss allowance on: 

- Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and 
- All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of lnd AS 17 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes In credit risk. Rather, It recognizes Impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at 
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there has been a significant increase In the credit risk 
since Initial recognition. If credit risk has not Increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, 
lifetime ECL Is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the Instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since Initial 
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing Impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the 
lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group is in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive 
(i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider: 

- All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, In 
rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial 
instrument. 

- Cash flows from the sale of the collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on Its 
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward· looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical 
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed. On that basis, the Group estimates the following provision matrix at the 
reporting date: 

Default Rate 

ECL impairment Joss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount Is reflected 
under the head 'other expenses' in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below: 

- Financial assets measured at amortized cost, contract assets and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those 
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment allowance from 
the gross carrying amount. 

- Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet i.e. as a liability. 

- Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL 
amount is presented as 'accumulated impairment amount' in the OCI. 

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of 
facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis. 

The Group does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit Impaired on purchase/origination. 

Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated 
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs . 

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial 
instruments. 
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Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

• Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss Include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon Initial recognition as at fair value 
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities arc classified as held for trading If they are Incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also Includes 

derivative financial Instruments entered Into by the Group that are not designated as hedging Instruments In hedge relationships as defined by lnd·AS 109. Separated 

embedded derivatives arc also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging Instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading arc 
recognized in the profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the Initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria In lnd-AS 109 

are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/losses are not 
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized In 

the statement of profit or loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss. 

• Loans and borrowings 

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR 
method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognlzed as well as through the EIR amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization Is 

included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. This category generally applies to interest bearing loans and borrowings. 
• Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified 

debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of the debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair 
value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss 

allowance determined as per the impairment requirements of lnd-AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization. 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires when an existing financial liability is replaced by another from 
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the 

derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Embedded Derivatives 

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of lnd-AS 109, the Group does not separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the 
classification requirements contained in lnd-AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. 

Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not 
closely related to those of the hose contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives 

are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments. Reassessment only occurs if there is 

either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair 
value through profit or loss. 

Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated. 

Embedded foreign currency derivatives 

Embedded foreign currency derivatives are not separated from ·the host contract if they are closely related. Such embedded derivatives are closely related to the host 
contract, if the host contract is not leveraged, does not contain any option feature and requires payments in one of the following currencies : 

the functional currency of any substantial party to that contract, 

the currency in which the price of the related good or service that is acquired or delivered is routinely denominated in commercial transactions around the world, 

a currency that is commonly used in contracts to purchase or sell non-financial items in the economic environment in which the transaction takes place (i.e. relatively 
liquid and stable currency) 

Foreign currency embedded derivatives which do not meet the above criteria are separated and the derivative is accounted for at fair value through profit and loss. The 

group currently does not have any such derivatives which are not closely related. 
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Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities 

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on Initial recognition. After Initial recognition, no reclassification Is made for financial assets which are 
equity Instruments and financial liabilities. 

For financial assets which are debt Instruments, a reclassification Is made only If there Is a change In the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business 
model are expected to be Infrequent. 

The Group's Senior Management determines changes in the business model as result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Group's operations. Such 
changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that Is significant to the 
operations. 

If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting 
period following the change in business model. The Group does not restate any previously recognized gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or Interest. 

The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for: 

Original Classification Revised Accounting Treatment 
Amortized cost FVTPL Fair value Is measured at reclassification date. 

Difference between previous amortized cost 
and fair value Is recognized in P&L. 

FVTPL Amortized cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its 
new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated 
based on the new gross carrying amount. 

Amortized cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. 
Difference between previous amortized cost 
and fair value is recognized in OCI. No change in 
EIR due to reclassification. 

FVTOCI Amortized cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its 
new amortized cost carrying amount. However, 
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted 
against fair value. Consequently, the asset is 
measured as If it had always been measured at 
amortized cost. 

FVTPL FVTOCI F.air value at reclassification date becomes its 
new carrying amount. No other adjustment is 
required. 

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. 
Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in 
OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification 
date. 

n. Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

o. fair value measurement 
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best 
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
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The Group uses valuation techniques th~t are appropriate In the circumstances and for which sufficient d~ta are available to me~sure fair value, maximizing the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable Inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value Is measured or disclosed In the financial statements 
arc categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described ~s follows, based on the lowest level Input that Is significant to the f~lr value measurement as a whole: 

Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices In active markets for Identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Input that Is significant to the fair value measurement Is directly or Indirectly observable 

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Input that Is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized In the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels In the 
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability 
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes. 
Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 43) 
Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 43) 
Financial instruments (including those carried at amortized cost) (note 43) 

p. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement 

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks, 
respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re­
measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which Is 
recognized in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction 
subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability. 

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as: 
. Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized firm commitment 

- Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a 
highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognized firm commitment 
- Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation 

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the 
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the group's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, 
the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of 
changes in the hedging instrument's fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item's fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges 
are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been 
highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated. 

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below: 
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Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting 

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging Instrument Is recognized In OCI In the cash flow hedge reserve, while any Ineffective portion Is recognized 
Immediately In the statement of profit or loss. 

The Group uses derivative contracts as hedges of Its exposure to foreign currency risk In forecast transactions and firm commitments. The ineffective portion relating to 

foreign currency contracts Is recognized In finance costs and the Ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts Is recognized in other Income or expenses. 

Amounts recognized as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial Income or financial 

expense is recognized or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged Item Is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognized as OCI arc 

transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability. 

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge Is 

revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI remains separately in equity until 
the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met. 

The Group does not use hedges of fair value and net investment. 

q. Property, plant and equipment 

Freehold land is carried at historical cost except in case of certain freehold land which are at revalued amounts. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated 

at historical cost less depreciation except in case of certain assets which are at revalued amounts .. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the items. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits 

associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset 

is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives or, in the case of certain leased 

furniture, fittings and equipment, the shorter lease term as follows: 

Class of Assets 

leasehold land 
Buildings 
Plant and Machinery 

Moulds and Dies 
Computers 

Vehicles 

Furniture and Fixtures 
Other Assets 

Estimated useful life 
(Years) 

(on single shift basis) 

Amortised aver the period of lease 
30- SO years 
8-20 years 

4-7 years 
3-7 years 

4-7 years 
S-15 years 

4-lOyears 

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset's useful life or over the shorter term of the asset's useful life and lease term 
if there Is no reasonable certainty that the group will obtain ownership at the end ofthe lease term. 

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the Management's expert which are different than those specified by Schedule II to the 
Companies Act; 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets' residual values 

and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other gains/ (losses). 

r. Investment properties 

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the group, is classified as investment property. Investment 

property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs . Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset's 
carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the group and the cost of the Item can be measured 

reliably. Ail other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognised. 

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight·line method over their estimated useful lives . Investment properties generally have a useful life of 30·50 years. The 

useful life has been determined based on technical evaluation performed by the Management's expert. 
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s. Intangible assets 
(I) Goodwill 

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries Is Included In Intangible assets. Goodwill Is not amortised but It Is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently If events or 

changes In circumstances Indicate that It might be Impaired, and Is carried at cost less accumulated Impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity Include 
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold. 

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of Impairment testing. The allocation Is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units 
that are expected to benefit from the business combination In which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is 
monitored for Internal Management purposes, which In our case are the operating segments. 

(II) Computer software 

Costs associated with maintaining software programs are recognised as an expense as Incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of 

identifiable and unique software products controlled by the group are recognised as Intangible assets when the following criteria are met: 

it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use 

Management intends to complete the software and use or sell it 
there is an ability to use or sell the software 

it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits 
adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software are available, and 

the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured. 

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software include employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. 

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset Is available for use. 

{iii) Research and development 

Research expenditure and development expenditure that do not meet the criteria in {ii) above are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously 

recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period. Product development costs are amortised over a period of 3 to 5 years. 

{iv) Technical knowhow 

Expenditure on acquiring Technical Know-how {including Income Tax and R & D Cess) is being amortised over a period of six years from the date put to use. 

{v) Customer relationships: 

Customer relationships acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at 
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. 

{vi) Amortisation methods and periods 

The group amortises intangible assets with a finite useful life using the straight-line method over the following periods: 
Computer software and ERP system 3-5 years 

{vii) Patents and others 

Costs of intangible assets other than those internally generated, including patents and licenses, are valued at acquisition cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over 
their estimated future useful lives. 

t. Trade and other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented 

as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

u. Borrowing costs 

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time 

that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for 
their intended use or sale. 

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible 
for capitalisation. 

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

v. Provisions 
General 

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 

economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a 

provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually 
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 



Varroc Engineering Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 

Warranty provisions 

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognized when the product Is sold or service provided to the customer. Initial recognition Is based on historical experience. The 
Initial estimate of warranty-related costs Is revised annually. 
Provision for onerous contracts 
A provision for onerous contracts Is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting Its 
obligations under the contract The provision is measured at the present value of the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision Is established, the 
Group recognizes any Impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract. 

Contingent liabilities recognized In a business combination 
A contingent liability recognized In a business combination Is Initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of the amount that would be 
recognized In accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognized less. when appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized In 
accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition. 

w. Employee benefits 
(i) Short-term obligations 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to 
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet 

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations 
The liabilities for earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They 
are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made In respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period 
using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of 
the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss. 

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after 
the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur. 

(iii) Post-employment obligations 
The group operates the following post-employment schemes: 

(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity, pension; and 
(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund 

Pension and Gratuity obligations 
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension and gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end 
of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. 

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the 
end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The benefits which are denominated in currency 
other than INR, the cash flows are discounted using market yields determined by reference to high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated In the currency in which 
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in 
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss. 
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in 

other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service 
cost. 
Defined contribution plans 
The Group makes contributions to funds for certain employees to the regulatory authorities. The group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have 
been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid 
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available. 

(iv) Bonus plans 
The group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The group recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created 
a constructive obligation. 

(v) Termination benefits 
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the group before the normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in 
exchange for these benefits. The group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the group can no longer withdraw the offer of those 
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of lnd AS 37 and involves the payment of terminations benefits. In the case of 
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling 
due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value. 
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x. Contributed equity 

Equity Instrument Including Its component parts arc classified In accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a flnanclalllablllty and 
an equity Instrument. 

y. Dividends 

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the 

reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period. 

z. Earnings per share 

(i) Basic earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share Is calculated by dividing: 
the profit attributable to owners of the group 

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period 

and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity 
shares outstanding. without a corresponding change in resources. 

(II) Diluted earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take Into account: 
the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dllutive potential equity shares, and 

the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined 
Independently for each period presented. 

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all years presented for any share splits and bonus shares Issues Including 

for changes effected prior to the authorization for issue of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Board of Directors. 

aa. Contingent liabilities 

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made where there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from the past events 

where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

ab. Treasury Shares 

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognized at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, 

sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognized in capital 
reserve. 

ac. Sales/ value add ed taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses 

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except: 

• When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognized as part of the cost of 
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable 

• When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included 

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet. 

ad. Rounding of amounts 

All amounts disclosed in the Consolidated financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest million as per the requirement of Schedule Ill, unless 
otherwise stated. 

ae. Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. 
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Note 2A: Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the group's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that 

affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and the grouping disclosures. 

These judgments, estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future 

events that may have a financial impact on the group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

This note provides an overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of judgments or complexities and of items which are more 

likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed 

information about each of these judgments, estimates and assumptions is mentioned below. These Judgments, estimates and 

assumptions are continually evaluated. 

Note 2B:Significant judgements and estimates 

1 Goodwill impairment : Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations 

The group tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable amount of a cash generating 

unit (CGU) is determined based on value-in-use calculations which require the use of assumptions. The calculations use cash flow 

projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year 

period are extrapolated using the estimated growth, consistent with industry forecasts. The growth rates are consistent with 

forecasts included in industry reports specific to the industry in which each CGU operates. 

2 impairment of financial assets 

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The group 

uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the group's past 

history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

3 Fair valuation of financial instruments 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their 

fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow model (DCF). The inputs to these models are 

taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair 

values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about 

these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. 



4 Defined benefit plans 

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension and gratuity plans is the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. 

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. 

An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the 

future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to 

the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive 
to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the 
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government 

bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The benefits which are denominated 

in currency other than INR, the cash flows are discounted using market yields determined by reference to high­

quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have 
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables based on the country where the entity operates. 

Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. 
Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates of the respective 
counrty. 

Further details about defined benefit plans are given in Note 42. 

5 Deferred tax 

Deferred tax assets are reported only for loss carry forwards when it is probable that these amounts can be utilised 

against future taxable surpluses and against fiscal, temporary differences. At each balance sheet date, the group 

assesses whether the realization of future tax benefits is sufficiently probable to recognize deferred tax assets. This 
assessment requires the use of significant estimates with respect to assessment of future taxable income. The 
recorded amount of total deferred tax assets could change if estimates of projected future taxable income or if 

changes in current tax regulations are enacted. 

The group evaluates each year if there is an impairment requirement as regards deferred tax assets, if any 
regarding loss carry forwards. In addition, the group evaluates if it is appropriate to capitalise new deferred tax 

assets regarding the year's carry forward loss . 

6 Non-recognition of deferred tax liability on undistributed profits of subsidiaries 

Certain subsidiaries of the group have undistributed earnings which, if paid out as dividends, could be subject to 

tax in the hands of the recipient. An assessable temporary difference exists, but no deferred tax liability has been 

recognised as the parent entity is able to control the timing of distributions from these subsidiaries and is not 

expected to distribute these profits in the foreseeable future. 



7 Customer Claims 

The group has made accruals in respect of unsettled prices for some of its raw materials purchase contracts and finished goods 

sales contracts. These accruals are made considering the past settlement formula I communications with the vendors and 

customers respectively. The management has assessed and believes that the timing of cash outflow pertaining to these accruals are 

uncertain and hence considered the same as payable I receivable on demand and classified under current liabilities I assets 

respectively. 

Note 2C: New pronouncements not yet adopted by the group: 

1 lnd AS 115 • Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified lnd AS 115, 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers', on 28 March 2018, 

which is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018. 

The new revenue standard is based on a transfer of control model, which fundamentally changes the basis of revenue recognition, 

presentation and disclosures. The core principle is described in a five-step model framework. 

The Group is in the process of evaluating the impact on the financial statements in terms of the amount and timing of revenue 

recognition under the new standard. 

2 Appendix B to lnd AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: 

On March 28, 2018, MCA has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B 

to lnd AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of 

determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or 

paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. This amendment will come into force from April1, 2018. The Group has evaluated 

the effect of this on the consolidated financial statements and the impact is not material. 

3 Amendment to lnd AS 40 regarding transfers of investment property: 

On March 28, 2018 MCA has notified the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 which clarifies that to 

transfer to, or from, investment properties there must be change in use. A change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases 

to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change is use. A change in intention, in isolation, is not 

enough to support a transfer. The amendment has also re-characterised the list of evidence of change in use as a non-exhaustive 

list of examples and scope of theses examples have been expanded to include assets under construction and development and not 

only transfers of completed properties. The Company has decided to apply the amendment Prospectively to changes in use that 

occur on or after the date of initial application. 

I'Vlanagement has assessed the effects of the amendment on classification of existing property at 1 April 2018 and concluded that 

no reclassifications are required. 



4 Amendments to lnd AS 12 Income taxes regarding recognition of deferred tax assets on unrealised losses 

The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred taxes where an asset Is measured at fair value and that fair value is below the 

asset's tax base. They also clarify certain other aspects of accounting for deferred tax assets set out below: 

-A temporary difference exists whenever the carrying amount of an asset Is less than its tax base at the end of the reporting period. 

-The estimate of future taxable profit may include the recovery of some of an entity's assets for more than Its carrying amount If It 

is probable that the entity will achieve this. For example, when a fixed-rate debt Instrument Is measured at fair value, however, the 

entity expects to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and It Is probable that the asset will be recovered for more than its 

carrying amount. 

-Where the tax law restricts the source of taxable profits against which particular types of deferred tax assets can be recovered, 

the recoverability of the deferred tax assets can only be assessed in combination with other deferred tax assets of the same type. 

-Tax deductions resulting from the reversal of deferred tax assets are excluded from the estimated future taxable profit that is used 

to evaluate the recoverability of those assets. This is to avoid double counting the deductible temporary differences in such 

assessment. 

The Group has evaluated the effect of this amendment on the consolidated financial statements and the impact is not material. 
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21U&I J4,SJ1.01 5,0S1.il 3,l4S,ll ol59.ll ..... I,W.SO lS.&Sl.il 



Varroc Engineering limited 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 

Note 3 Property, plillnt and equipment 

Particulars Gross carrying amount 

Asset Class 

Owned assets 

Freehold Land 

Factory Building 

Office Building 

Plant & Machinery 

factory Equipment 

Electrical Installation 

Mould & Dies 

Electr ical Fitting 

Office Equipment 

Tools & Instrument 

Furniture and fi xtures 

Computers 

Vehicles 

leased assets 

Leasehold Land 
Buildings 
Plant & Machinery 

Grand Total 

(i) Capital work-in-progress 
Opening capital work-in-progress 

Addition during the year ended March 31, 2017 

Capitalised during the year ended March 31, 2017 

Closing capital work·in -progress 

{ii) Property, plant and equipment pledged as security 

As at April1, 2016 

935.90 

3,742.80 

719.60 
11,687.50 

1,306.60 
302.70 
421.20 

56.40 
111.30 

718.40 
190.30 

204.60 

67.80 

780.91 
609.30 

298.20 
22,153.51 

(Rs. in Million) 
,2,635.97 

5,996.33 
6,167.72 
2,464.58 

Additions 

952.20 

168.20 
3,949.80 

497.10 
104.30 

91.70 
4.70 

26.60 
175.30 

34.40 

150.50 
6.52 

6.40 

6,167.72 

Refer to note 53 for information an property, plant and equipment pledged as security by the group 

(iii) Contractual obligations 

Translation 

adjustment 

(34.20) 

(89.10) 
(3.70) 

(380.40) 
(38.30) 

(0.30) 

(2.20) 

(2.60) 
(47.70) 

(1.80) 
(9.70) 

(0.60) 

(2.50) 
(46.60) 
(22.80} 

(682.50) 

Refer to nate SO (a) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment. 

Deductions I 
adjustments 

. 

1.30 
1.00 

16.10 
5.40 
0.30 

33.10 

0.70 

0.20 

0.10 

10.50 

. 

68.70 

(iv) Office Building includes premises on ownership basis in a Co-Operative Society Rs. 6 .3 Million, including cost of shares therein Rs.125. 

Note 5 (a] Goodwill (Rs. In Million I 
As at March 31, 

2017 
(Restated) 

Balance at the beginning of the year 150.82 

Add: goodwill on acquisition of subsidiary during the period (refer note 58) 

Total Goodwill on consolidation 150.82 

(Rs. in Million) 

Accumulated depredation Net carrying amount 

As at March 31, 
For the year 

As at M•rch 31, AsatAprill, ended March 31, Translation On Deductions.' 2017 21:7 
As at March 31, 2017 

(Restated) 
2016 2017 adjustment adjustmen::s (Restated) 

(Restated) 
(Res:.ted) 

901.70 . 901.70 

4,604.60 170.70 194.70 (5.80) 0.3.J 359.30 4,245.30 
883.10 34.72 28.60 (2.30) 61.02 822.08 

15,240.80 1,457.24 1,743.20 (89.50) 6.80 :=,.104.14 12,136.66 
1,760.00 204.40 239.10 (9.00) ~.80 431.70 1,328.30 

406.40 49.10 52.60 (0.10) 0.30 101.30 305.10 
477.60 71.50 77.10 (1.00) :!.39 145.21 332.39 

61.10 9.40 8.00 17.40 43.70 
135.30 27.90 30.60 (0.90) 57.60 77.70 
845.30 174.57 215.70 (21.50) 0.5~ 368.27 477.03 
222.70 22.88 24.70 (0.40) 0.10 47.08 175.62 
345.30 60.59 75.80 (2.60) 0.10 133.69 211.61 

63.22 21.70 17.40 (0.60) 6.40 32.10 31.12 

784.81 19.40 19.70 . 39.10 745.71 
562.70 68.77 68.10 (9.90) . 126.97 435.73 
275.40 12.10 23.50 {2.50) . 33.10 242.30 

27,570.03 2,404.97 2,818.80 (146.10] 1!i.6~ 5!057.98 22,512.05 



Varroc Engineering limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 

Note 4 Investment Properties 

Gross carrying amount Accumulated depreciation 
As at Aprlll, 2016 Additions As at March 31, 2017 As at April!, 2016 Depreciation charge As at March 31, 2017 

Asset class 
(Restated) (Restated) 

Leasehold land 20.09 20.09 0.20 0.20 0.40 
Factory buildings 137.83 - 137.83 5.59 5.59 11.18 
Total 157.92 157.92 5.79 5.79 11.58 

Gross carrying'3mount Accumu a ted depreciation 

Asset class 
As at April1, 2017 Additions As at March 31, 2018 As at Apri11, 2017 Depreciation charge As at March 31, 2018 

Leasehold land 20.09 - 20.09 0.40 0.20 0.60 

Facto ry buildings 137.83 - 137.83 11.18 5.59 16.77 

Total 157.92 - 157.92 11.58 5.79 17.37 
--- -----

(i) Amount recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss for investment properties (Rs. In Million) 
For the year ended For the year ended 

Asset class 
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

(Restated) 

Rental income 32.50 31.89 

Profit from investment properties before depreciation 32.50 31.89 

Depreciation 5.79 5.79 

Profit from investment properties 26.71 26.10 

-----

(ii) Leasing arrangements 
Certain investment properties are leased to tenants under long-term cancellable operating leases with rentals payable monthly. There is escalation of 10% in lease rentals during the lease terms. 

(iii) Fair value 
Fair value of the investment property as at March 31, 2017 were Rs. 223.60 million. As at March 31, 2018 there is no material change in the fair value of the assets. 

Estimation of fair value 
The group obtains valuations for its investment properties internally. The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar properties. 

(iv) Leased assets 
Leasehold land under finance lease (Rs. In Million) 

As at March As at March 

31,2018 31,2017 

leasehold land 

Cost 20.09 20.09 

Accumulated depreciation 0.60 0.40 

Net Carrying amount 19.49 19.69 

l~•IIIIYIIIIIUIII 

Net carrying amount 
As at March 31, 2017 

(Restated) 

19.69 
126.65 
146.34 

Net carrying amount 
As at March 31, 2018 

19.49 
121.06 
140.55 





Varroc Engineering limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 

Note 5 (b) Other Intangible Assets 

Particulars 

Asset Class 

Computer software 
Technical know how 
Patents and others 
Grand Total 

Intangible assets under development 
Opening balance 

Addition during the year ended March 31, 2017 
Capitalised during the year ended March 31, 2017 
Closing balance 

As at Aprll1, 2016 

956.23 
594.40 

65.83 
1,616.46 

(Rs. In Million) 
517.05 

492.58 
548.83 
460.80 

Gross carryJng amount 

As at March 31, 
Translation Deductions I 

Additions 2017 
adjustment adjustments 

(Restated} 

243.38 (48.40) 0.90 1,150,31 

294.76 (62.10) 1.50 825,56 

10.69 (2.01 32.90 41.61 
548.83 

- - -
(112.gt L__ 35.30 2,017.48 

(Rs. in Million) 

Accumulated Amortisation Net Carrying amount 
For the year 

As at March 31, 
AsatApril1, ended March 31, Translation On Deductions I As at Manch 31,2017 

2017 
2016 2017 adjustment adjustments 

(Restated} 
(Restated} 

(Restated) 

312.29 347.30 (30.50) 0.90 628.19 522.12 
87.74 172.72 (17.50) 1.50 241.46 584.10 

6.80 26.22 (0.20) 30.99 1.83 39.78 
406.83 546.24 (48.20) 33.39 871.48 1,146.00 



Varroc EnJfneerii'IJ Lfmllod 
Noltslo th• consolld.Jtcd flmmdal statements 

Non·currentliwutmaniJ 

lnvc•tment In debt ln,lrl.lmcnt at FVPL (unql.lotedJ 

lnva,tment In equity Instruments at FVPL (unquoted) 

The Saraswat Co·Operntlvr bank 

lnvc,tment In Government securhles at amortised cost (unquoted) 

Natlon:sl savin& cc:rtlfiC<~tc:s 
Total non current Investment 

Agsree:.te OJ mount of unquoted Investments 

Non Current • Loans 

Unsecured, considered good 

Security deposits 
Total Non Current loans 

Non current· Other fl~nclal 

Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months from balance sheet date {Hen with bank Is Rs.138.13 Million, M01rch 31,2017 Rs.138.16 Million) 

Unbllled receivables 

Others 

Total non current other flnanclal•ssets 

Income tax usets/llabll\tles {net) 

Income tax assets {net) 

Income tax liabilities (net) 

10 other non current assets 
Capilal advances (net) 

Advance to suppliers 

Government grant receivable 

Prepaid Expenses 

Bal;mces with Government Authorities 

Others 

Tatal olhct non current :aucu 

11 Inventories 

Raw materials [Includes material in transit of Rs. 139,50 Million (March 31, 2017 Rs. 420.4 MJIJion)J 

Work-ln·progress 

Finished goods (Includes finished goods in transit of Rs. 327.38 Million (March 31, 2017 Rs. 256.5 Million)] 

Stock in trade 

Stores and sparu [Includes sto,es and spares In transit of Rs. 0.27 Million (March 31, 1017 Rs. Nil)] 

Loose tools (Includes loose tools in transit of Rs. 2.81 Million (March 31,2017 Rs. Nil]] 

Packing material 

Renewable energy ce,tificates 

Total Inventories 

12 Current Investment 

Investment in mutual funds (unquoted) 

434,453.935 units of Reliance liquid Fund· Series II Direct Growth Plan (March 31, 2017 Nil Units) 

2,000,000 Reliance Liquid Fund· Series IV Direct Growth Plan (March 31,2017 Nil Units) 

31.777 units of'LIC MF liquid Fund' (March 31,2017 Nil Units) 

A~crecate fair value of ooquottd investment 

As at March 31, 2018 

0.14 

0.06 
0.20 

0.20 

106.81 
106.81 

138.33 
177.56 

0.38 

316.27 

124.35 
81.33 

192.62 
198.64 
275.71 

3.41 
84.29 

542.03 
1,29&.70 

4,625.24 
1,9~7.75 

1,374.00 
24.12 

433.54 
194.16 
31.41 

0.75 
8,640.97 

10.06 
20.16 

0.10 
30.32 

)Rs. In Million) 

As at March 31,2017 
)Aastatod) 

0.14 

O.OG 
0.20 

0.20 

82.59 
82.59 

138.1G 
620.59 

0.44 

759.19 

153.03 
178.90 

75.~3 

109.83 
36.12 

155.67 
108.94 
486.09 

3,860.99 
1.795.04 
1,174.07 

83.00 
423.00 
164.57 

28.51 
5.54 

7,534.72 



Varroc Enalnaerlns Limited 

Notes to the consolidated flnancl•l statements 

(Rs. In Million) 

As ot Morch 31, 2018 
As ot Morch 31,2017 

(Rcstotcd) 

13 Tr.ada raCCilvablas 
Trade rccclv.:ables 14,025.75 11,464.88 
Receivable from relitotl parties (refer nota 49) 153.36 66.06 
Less: Allow.1nces for doubtful debts (151.77 (148.09) 
Total 14 027 .34 11382.85 

Oreak·up of trade retolvablos 

Unsecured, considered good 14,027.34 11,382.85 
Unsecured, considered doubtful 151.77 148.09 
Total 14,179.11 11,530.94 
Less: Allow::. nee for doubtful debts (151.77 (148.09) 
Total 14 027.34 11,382.85 

Non·Currellt Portion 

Current Portion 14,027.34 11,382.85 

Tr;~nsferred Receivables 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables Include receivable which <~re subJect to a factoring <~rrangemcnt. Under the arrangement, the Group hils transferred the relevant receivables to the factor In exchange for c;~sh and Is prevented 
from selling or pledslng the receivables. However, the Group h;s retained cri!dlt risk and late payment risk. The Group therefore continues to recognise the transferred assets In Us balomce sheet. The amount repayable under the factoring 
agreement Is presented as secured/unsecured borrowtng. 

The relevant carrylns amounts are as follows: 

Total tr:msferred receivables (Refer note 26) 1,874.28 245.75 

14 (a) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash In hand (Refer note 59) 2.19 2.10 
Bank balances 

In current accounts 3,260.30 3,498.17 
Oeposlt wl1h maturity of Jess than three months 3.29 
Total Cash and cash equivalents 3 265.78 3 500.27 

14 {b) Other bank balances 

Long term deposits with original maturity more th<m three months but less than twelve months 23.59 40.27 
Total other bank' balances 23.59 40.27 

There are no repatriallon restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances as at the end of the reporting period. 

15 Currt!nt ·Loans 

Unsecured, considered good 

loans to employees 9.12 5.94 
security deposit 30.95 36.35 
Total Current loans 40.07 42.29 

16 mher financial assets 

Derivative financial assets at FVPL 

Oerivative contracts 38.25 39.17 
Non-derivative financial assets at amortised cost 

Interest receivable other than on fixed deposits 0.65 1.57 
Unbllled receivables 2,390.21 2,965.98 
Initial Public Offering e)(penses receivable• 165.98 -

Others 17.68 5.79 
Total other current financial assets 2,612.77 3,012.51 
•Initial Public Offerinc expenses recoverable comprise share issue expenses incurred In connection with the proposed Initial Public offer (IPO) by way of offer for sale by 6is,lns sh;reholdtTs of the Company. Tht!se receivabtcs inch.rde fees 
paid to stock C)(changes, SEBI, lawyers, auditors etc., in connection with t he IPO of the Company. As per the offer acreement between the Company and the selling shareholders, upon successful completion of the Offer, these expenses wiU 
be'reimbursed by the selling shareholders in proportion to their re~pective Offered Shares sold pursuant to the Offer. Accordingly, tht! Company hu classified these expenses ;s receivable from sei/Jng shareholders under Other Financial 
Assets. Initial Public Offer e)(penses lncludM receivable from related panles refer note 49. 

17 Other current assets 

Advance to suppliers (net) 558.12 491.69 
Security deposits (Other than financial assets) 19.07 10.22 
Prepaid expenses 387.59 222.94 
Export and other incentives 13.09 13.36 
Balance with government authorities 716.77 828.40 
Government grant receivable 141.58 40.19 
Insurant~ claim receivable 0.02 6.58 
Others 127.30 58.54 

Total other current ass•ts 1,963.54 1,671.92 



Varroc En•lneerln& Limited 

Notu to the consolrd:toled rlrunc/~ 1 stA temenu 

JIJ Equity and Preference share c~pltal 
Movement In authorised capital 

Opcnlns Balance as on April 01, 2017 

Add:· lncre-.se durlns th~ ye-.r fR~fer Note 18 flilll 

Closlna Bal~nce as on March 31, 2018 

Authorlred: 

Equity Shiites of Re.l each {previous yeilr Rs.10 e11ch) 

Preference shares of Re.1 each (previous year Rs.10 each) 

luued, subscribed ::.nd paid-up: 

Equity shares of Re.1 each (previous year Rs. 10 each) fully paid up 

0.0001% Series "8" t:.ompulsorily convertible preference shares 

f"Serles 8 CCPS") of Re.1 each {previous year Rs. 10 each) fully pi!ld up 

0.0001% Series "C" compulsorily convertible preference sh-.res 

("Series C CCPS~} of Re.1 e::.ch (previous year Rs. 10 each) fully paid up 

Equity 

sharo capital 

16,500,000 

233,500,000 
250,000,000 

Preference 1h11r1 

Caplt11l 

33,500,000 

216,500,000 

250,000,000 

Number of Sh;ues 

As at Marth 31, As ::.1 M.uch 31, 1017 

2018 (Rest::.tcd) 

250,000,000 

250,000,000 

123,127,760 

11,683,710 

16,500,000 

33,500,000 

11,460,417 

852,359 

1,168,377 

Nos 

A5 at March 31, 2018 

Rs. In Million 
As at March 31, 2018 

As ilt March 31, 2018 

250.00 
250.00 
500.00 

123.13 

11.68 

IRs. In Million) 

As at March 31, 2017 
(Rostotcd) 

165.00 
335.00 
5oo.oa 

114.61 

8.52 

11.68 

1----....;1;;;34.;.·;;;8~1 134.81 

Nos 

As at March 31,2017 

(Restated) 

11,460,417 114.61 9,613,502 Outstanding at the beginning of the year 96.14 

Add:- 0.001% series A CCPS converted into equity shares 18.47 1,846,915 
Add:· 0.0001% series B CCPS 8,52,359 shares converted Into equity shares 

Outstanding number of shares before considering the Impact of sub division of equity shares 

Adjusted closing number of shares on account of sub-division of equity shares (Refer Note 18 (a)} 

outstanding at the end of the year 

Preference stures 

Outst:mding at the beginning of the year 

Less:- 0.001% Series A CCPS converted into equity shares durlne; the year 

Add/{LessJ:· 0.0001% series B CCPS 852,359 sh.:~res Issued/( converted Into equity shares) (considering impact of share split (Refer Note 
ll(g)] 
Add:· 0.0001% Series C CCPS issued during the year 

Outstanding number of shares before considering the Impact of sub division of preference shares 

Adjusted closing number of shares on account of sub·dlvislon of preference shares (Refer Note 18 (g}) 

outstanding at the end of the year 

lbl Richts, Prefercr't(c:& and Restrlttlt.ms altoHhed to Equity Shares 

852,lS9 
12,312,716 

123,117,760 

113,1U,760 

2,020,736 

(852,350) 

1,168,377 

11,681,170 

11,68],770 

8.52 
113.13 

123.13 

123.H 

20.20 

(8.52) 

11.68 

11.68 

11.68 

11,460 417 

16,623,365 

(16,623,365) 
852,359 

1,168,377 

2,020,736 

114.61 

166.23 
(166.23) 

8.52 

11.68 

20.20 

Equity shares: The Company has equity sh.ar~s having a par value of Rt. 1 per share (previous ye~r Rs..lO/· ptt share). In the event of liquidation, the equity shartholders are e ligible to receive 1he remaining B$SCts of thl! Company afler 

dls:ltibul.lon of ~II preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to I he approval of the shareholders in 1he ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of Interim 

dividend. 

Pursuant to lhe agreements, lhe: Comp21ny had issued !lnd -.11otte:d 2 equity shares having face value: of R1o. 10 each 211 1 premium of Rs. 990 per equity share to OMEGA TC Holdings PTE Limited and TATA Capital Financial Services Limited 

lcolk!-rt ivelv referred lo a.s .. P£' Investors"). 

(c) Convctslon of Serie;s A CCPS: 

Ou rine t:he year 2013-14, pursu11nt to the agreement will'! the Private Equity Investors, the Company hilld issued and allotted 29,999,980 numtn-r of 0.001% Series A CCPS ha11lng f3C:C:: .....,.uc ol Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 90 per shillrc-. The 

s.aid Series A CCPS are cumulative, mandatorily and fully convertible preference shares. 

Prior to convenion of Series A CCPS: 

{i) The said PE Investors are entitled to vote at e<.'lch meeting of the holders of equity shares of I he: Company to the extent of 9% of the Equity Share Capital on a fully diluted basis. The remaining 91% voting rights are with other equity 

shareholders of the Comp<.'lny In proportion to the number of shares held by them. 

Ill) The~ holders of each Series A CCPS are entitled to preferential dividend at the rate of 0.001% per year. The: amount of dividend accrued on each Series A CCPS during a financial year Is required to be distributed by the Company lo lhe 
lnvestcrs by way of preferential dividend on April ht of the subsequent financial year. 

liii) Series A CCPS were classified as compound financial instrument and were accounted based on the terms of the ~greement, provisions of INOAS 109 and section 68 (2 ) (c} of th l!' Companies Act, 2013 . During previous year, Series A CCPS 

were converted Into 1,846,915 equity shares of Rs.lO/· each ranking p.ati passu with t he e)Cisting equity sh;ues of tht Company as per the Amendment And Supplemental Agreement dated March 9, 2017 to original Share Subscription 

Agre~ment dated January l4, 2014 entered into between 1t,e Company, Promoters and PE in11estors and have been accounted for accordingly. 



Vatroc l:nalneC!'rlrts Lim lied 
Notes to tha consolidated flnancl•lstatemants 

(Rs. In M1111on) 

A M h 31 2018 11 As at March 31, Z017 5 at arc ' (Rostotod) 

(d) Dor1USinuo of Series 0 CCPS 

During tha ye.lr ended March Jl, 2017, the Comp.:my Issued and :.netted 852,359 Series[) CCPS of lls.IO/· each fully paid .l~ bonus to c:liglblc equltyshatcholderl of the Company In the riltlo or 61 fully paid Series n CCPS lor avery 688 equity 
<>hill fl5 of the Compomy hold by them, The Series D CCPS are non-cumulative, non-participating prcferanco shares, mandatorily ilnd fullv convertible Into equity shares 011 occurrence of lhl! trigger event. The hold or of each Sarlos n CCPS 
wuro entitled to prcferentl:.l dividend :at the rille of 0.0001% per year on l ho f:ICC! v.1lue, The Series 0 CCPS did not have :any cnllllcmeniiO participate jn iiMV dividend distribution to the holders o f Equity Shilrcs. Under lnd A.S, Sarlos U CCPS 

were been classlrJed il5 an oqulty Instrument bilsed on the terms of the ilgrooment mnd trigger C!\lent, which 11. eilrllor of : 

(I) the d.;ue on which the Equity Slures of the Company held by V011rroc Polymers Prlv.11e limited (VPPL) Stilnd extinguished pursu01nt to the COipU;I Reduction Scheme becoming cUectl\le ;~her being duty ilpproved by tho Nonlonill Company 
L~w Tribuna l; or 

(Ill the d;Ue that the Company flies 01 red herring prospectus with the SEBi for undertaking an IPO. 

During the year ended Milrch 31, 2018, the series B CCPS were been converted Into equity shares pursuant to the approval of the C01pltol reduction scheme of VPPL by the NCLT (refer note f below). These shares were luucd and .1llotted 

through .:1 specl01l resolution passed In I he Oo:~rd Meeting held on January 16, 2018. 

(o) Bonu1lssu~ of series C CCPS 

During the year ended M:~rch 31, 2017, the Comp:~ny Issued iind allotted 1,168,377 Series C CCPS of Rs.10/- each fully p;,ld as bonus to eligible equity shareholders of I he Company in the riltio of 57 fully pakl up Series C CCPS for every 469 

equity shares of the Company held by them. The Series C CCPS are non-cumulative, pilrtlclpating preference shilres, m.1nd01torlly and fully convertible into equity shares on occurrence oJ I he trigger event. The holder of each Scrie5 C CCPS 

01rc enlitled 10 preferential dividend iJt the rate of 0.0001% ~cr year on the filce \IOIIuo. The Series C CCPS are entitled to participate, Qn J pari passu basis with Equity Sh.1res, ln .o~ny dividend distribution to the holders of Equity Shilros on an 

';~s if converted' basis. For the purpose o f dividend distribution, t h~r Series C CCPS prior to their conversion shall consti tute 1.3% of the Equity Share Capital on :11 ful ly diluted basis. Under lnd AS, Series C CCPS have been classified u <1 n equity 

Instrument based on the terms of tho agreement and trl88er event, which Is eilrllcr of: 

(I) the d:~te on which the Company files a red herring prospectus with the SEBI for undert;,klng iln IPO or 
(II) iPO Veto Date; or 

(iii) the Conversion Deadline, as defined In ttu~ terms of the agreement. (each such event being the "Series C Trigger Event")." 

Subsequent to the year end; In the Board Meeting held on May 31,2018, these Series C CCPS were converted In the ratio of 1;1 into 11,683,770 equity shares of Re. 1 each, ranking pari-passu with the existing equity shilres of the Comp;my. 

(~ Caplt•l reducllon 

The Company pursuant to the prO\Ilslons of Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules m;,de thereunder had filed a petition for reduction of 852,349 equity shares of Rs. 10 each held by wholly owned subsidiary Vorroc Polymers 

Private Limited (VPPL) without any conslder;,tion . This scheme was approved by the Nation;,! Company Law Trlbuniii(NCLT) and was filed with the Registrar of Companies (ROC) on December 18, 2017. The ROC registered the order on 

Janu<lry 15, 2018 and lhc ~ompany took on record this transaction at the Board Meeting on January 16, 2018. Pursuilnt to this transaction, share capital of Rs. 8.52 mill ion has been transferred to Capital Reserve :.s ;U March 31, 2018. 

1•1 
Durin a: the year, face value per Equity Share and Preference Share have been sub divided from Rs. 10 toRe. 1. Further i:luthorlsed share capital of the Company was reclassified from Rs. 500 Million conslstinH of Rs. 165 Million (165,000,000 

Equity Shares of Re.1/· each) and Rs. 335 Million (335,000,000 Preference Shares of Re.1/· each)to Rs. 250 Million (250,000,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each) and Rs. 250 MUllen (Consisting of 250,000,000 Preference Shares of Re.l/· each). 

(h) Details of shares held by shareholders holdlns more than 5% of the assre~~:ate shares In the Comp•nv 

As at March 31, 2018 As at March ll, 2017 
(Restated) 

Name of the Shareholder Numbers of %of Numbers of shares % of shareholdlng 
shares shareholdlnR 

Face value Face value 

Re.1 Rs. 10 

Equity Shares 

Mr. Tarang Jain 50,798,590 41 .26% 3,529,025 30.79% 
TJ Holdings Trust 33,850,000 27.49% 3,385,000 29.54% 
Omega TC Holdings PTE LTD 16,917,130 13.74% 1,691,713 14.76% 
Naresh Chandra Holdings Trust 10,000,000 8.12% 1,000,000 8.73% 
Suman Jain HoMings Trusl 10,000,000 8.12% 1,000,000 8.73% 

Preference Shares 

Mr. TarangJain 11,683,770 100.00% . 1,453,523 71.93% 
Mr. Naresh Chandr<~ 0.00% 324,504 16.06% 
M rs. Suman Jain D.OOO/a 242,709 12.01% 



Varroc Enalneerlnallmlted 
Netas to tho consolld:atod lln•ntlllstatements 

II) A11rea:~~te numbar of bonu1sharcs luuad durin& the live yunlmme~dlately preudln& March 31, .2018 ' 

0.0001~ Series B CCPS ond 0.0001% Serlt'S C CCPS Issued and .,!lolled as fully pnld up bonus stunes by copllollsatlon of pronts from securlllts ruemlum 
1lurk1R the year ended Morel• 31, 2011 

The Company during tht' preceding S ye~rs: 

I. tt;u not allotted shares pursuant to contr:~cts wilhout payment received in c:~sh, 

fl. Ho1s not Issued sh;ucs by way of bonus shares except as mentioned above. 

Iii. Has not bought back any shares. 

19 Reserves and surplus 

RetDined earnings 

General reserve 

Debenture redemption reserve 

C:~pltDI redemption reserve 

Capital reserve 

St:~tutoryrescrves 

St'CUtitles premium reserve 

Retained earnln&s 

Balance at the beginning of the year 

Add:- Profit for the year 

Less:- Aem~asurement of defined benefit obligation (net of tDx) 

less:- Dividend paid {Including dividend distribution tax Rs ll .Sl Million {March 31,2017 As. 8,87 Million)) 

Add: On account of capital reduction {Refer note 18 f) 

Less:- Transfer to debenture redemption reserve (lS% of fDce value) 

Balance •t the end of the year 

General reserve 

Balance attht' be&lnnin& of the year 

Add: On ;,ccount of capit.il reduction (Refer note 18 f) 

Balance at the b~glnnlng and at end of the year 

Oeb~nture redemption reserve 

BDiance at the beginning of the year 

Add:-Transfer from retained earnines 

Balance at the end of the year 

Ca~ltal Redemption Reserve 

Balance at the beginning .and at end of the year 

Ca~tal Reserve 

Balance at the beginning of the year 

Add: On account of capital reduction (Refer note 18 f) 
Balance at the end of the year 

Statutory rt'serves 

Balance as at beginning of the year 

Add: On account of capital reduction (Refer note 18 f) 

Balance at the end of the year 

Securities premium reserve 

BDIDnce at the beginning of the year 

Add:- Conversion of 0.001% Series "A~ CCPS inta equity shares {Refer note 18) 

Less:- Issue of 0,0001% Series "B" CCPS and Series "C" CCPS {Refer note 18) 

Add: On account of capit31 reduction (Refer note 18 f) 

Balance at the end of the year 

Total Reserves and surplus 

• Amount below rounding off norm adopted by the Group 

As at March 31, 2018~ II 
No oiSh;lms 

9,639.98 
4,194.73 

325.00 
11.30 

5,335.08 
410.80 

6,190.08 
26,106.97 

5,135.42 
4,502.58 

(4.89) 
(74.08) 
205.95 

(125.00 
9,639.98 

3,747.14 
447.59 

4,194.73 

200.00 
125.00 
325.00 

1.1-30 

6,095.34 
(760.26 

5,335.08 

365.50 
45.30 

410.80 

6,128.66 

61.42 
6,190.08 

26,106.97 

(Rs. In Million) 

As ot March 31, 2017 
(Rostotod) 

No of Shauts 

2,020,736 

5,135.42 
3,747.14 

200.00 
11.30 

6,095.34 
365.50 

6,128.66 
21,683.36 

2,275.61 
3,131.00 

(25.28) 
(45.91) 

(200.00 
5,135.42 

3,747.14 

3,747.14 

200.00 
200.00 

11.30 

6,095.34 

6,095.34 

365.50 

365.50 

3,013.44 
3,135.43 

(20.21) 

6,128.66 

21,683.36 



Vauoc Enalneerln& Llmltod 
Not~• to th11 ~onsolld:ated IJn:111da l .Jtatlfml'nlt. 

As at March 31, 2018 

(Rs. In Million) 

As at Morch 31, 2017 
(Rostatod) 

20 Other reserves 

21 

For11l1n Currency Tramlotlon Reserve 
D:~l;,ncc at the beglnnlna of the ye11r 

Atltl/ {Less); bchnnae tlllferenccrs In translating the financial stiltements of forelan operations 
Balance at the end of the year 

C.:.sh flow hedae reserve 
D:.l:~nce .1tthe beginning of the ye.:.r 

(GI"IIn)/Loss on chi10Jlft\ In fl"llr Vl"llur of hedalnalnltrument 
Income liUc rel:.Ung to £.1\ns/loss arising on chomges In fair value 
Reclasslflc.:.tion to Stntement of Proflt and loss 
Ba\:mce at the end of the year 

Equity component of CCPS 
O:.lance at the beainnln& of the year 
Tranderred during the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

Total other reserve 

Nature and purpose of other reserves 

General reserve 

General reserve are the retained earning of the aroup which are kept aside out of company's 1Jro0t to meet future (known or unknown) obligation. 

Debenture redemption reserve 
The group is required to create a debenture redemption reserve out of the profits which is .:.vail&~ble for payment of dividend for the purpose of redemption of debentures. 

Securities p.remlum r~~crve 
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accord&~nce with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013, 

Cash now hedge reserve 

44.52 
1,996.01 
2,040.53 

(8.94) 

12.02 
14.20) 
11.14 
12.26) 

2,038.27 

880.81 
1836.29 

44 .52 

(9.30) 
(21.81) 

7.56 
14.61 
18.94) 

885.66 

1885.66 

35.58 

The eroup uses hedgine instruments os part of liS m.:.nagement of foreien currency risk and Interest rote risk as described In the note <tG. To the extent these hedges ;~ore effective; the change In fair value of the hedglna instrument Is 
recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve. Amounts recognl2ed in the cash now hed&e reserve Is reclassifled to profit or loss when the hedged Item affects profit or loss. 

t:Jpltal Reserve 
Capital reserve is not available for distribution as dividend. 

Capital redemption reserve 
Capital redemption reserve is not avallable for distribution as dividend. 

Statutory reserves 
Statutory reserves is created based on respective statutory requirements and hence is not available for distribution as dividend. 

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations are recognised In other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate reserve within equity, The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss when the net 
investment is disposed-off. 

Non current· Borrowin1s 

Secured 

Debentures 
Non convertible debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 each 1,300.00 800.00 
Term loans 

From banks 
Rupee lo.1ns 414.17 466.04 
Foreign currency loans 3,907.55 4,765.32 

From finandalln:~t ltuUons 296.99 727.51 
Finance lease obligations (Refer note 54) 122.93 153.19 
Buyers credit {capital nature} 145.35 400.70 
Unsecured 
Deferred sales tax loan 174.47 239.95 

Total non current borrowing 6,361.46 7,552.71 



Vanoc Enalneerlnallmlted 

Not as to the consolidated Unand•lst•tamanh 

IRs. In Million) 

As at March 31, 2018 
As at March 31, :Z017 

(Rastotad) 

M•turlty prolll~ of non current borrowluas 
EffecUva Interest Currenl 

(rafarnota 28) 
Po:~rtlc\Jbn Total of Non current Non Current 

201!1·20 2020·21 2021·22 2022·23 2023·24 And Beyond 

Term loans l.l~toll.CX>"' 1,907.66 1,8411.80 1,695.84 1,01M7 SR.!lO 6.20 4,618.71 

Debentures 8.0%to8.1" 800.00 soo.oo 1,100.00 

Ot~yen Credit 0,24%to2.3B% 157.34 94.SS 50.80 14S.3S 

Oeferred.Sales Tu l.~»n GS.48 57.07 ~4.44 33.29 20.41\ 19.23 174.47 

2,130,4& 2,796.42 1,791 .08 1,046.26 579.34 25.43 6,238.S3 

Nature of Security 

Secured borrowines of entities based In lnd\01 01nd ltOJiy are secured by w;~y of first ch:uce on p01rl-p:usu b01sls on movabl~ 01nd immov:~ble filled :assets of these entitles, both present 01nd future, subject to cert<~in exduslons. 

Secured borrowings of the Ughtlng division are secured byway of first ch:uae on p:~rl-passu b:tsls on movable ;:,nd Immovable filled onsets and receivables of the llghtlnR division, subject to certain exclusions. 

The carryin& amounts of fln<~nclal and non financial assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowlniS ~re disclosed In note no S3. 

22 Non current - Other flnantlalllabilitle$ 

Security deposits 

C;,pital creditors 

Employee benefits payable 

Redemption liability related to non control line Interest {Ref Note 58) 

Total other FlnanclalllabllltJes 

23 Non current • Provisions 

Provision for employee benefit' 

Gratuity and other employee benefit obligations {refer note 42) 

Compensated absences 

others 

Provision for w:~rranties• 

Otherslf 

Total non current provisions 

Warranties Others 

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

(Restated) (Restated) 

Balance a$ at the becinning of the year 342.42 247.48 290.64 194.43 

Additions 364.76 290.94 60.22 208.99 

Utilization/Reversed during the year I232.3SI (178.041 (292.71) (128.70) 

Unwinding of discount and effect of changes in discount 0.61 (0.12) 
rate 

Fore ign exchange translation difference 55.69 (17.841 31.74 15.92 

Balance as at the end of the year 5.31.13 342.42 89,89 290.64 

Current Portion 238,08 222.61 40.60 159.17 

Non Current Portion 293.05 119.81 49.29 131.47 

Total 531.13 342.41 89.89 290.64 

5.64 

0.39 
70.11 
46.67 

122.81 

600.55 
59.53 

293.05 
49.29 

1,002.42 

• Provision for warranties:- The Company provides warranties on applicable products, for their satisfactory performance during the warranty period as per the contracts with buyers. Provision for warranty claims arising out of such 

obligation is made based on such warranty period. 

If Other provision includes provision for coupon schemes and customer claims related to tooling contract .These claims are expected to be settled within 2·3 years. Management estimates these provision based on historical claim 

lnformalioo and any reccnllrends. The impact ol d i.scounUne of lhese pro\l ls.lons is not material. 

5.16 

24.08 

61.93 

91.17 

424.45 

64.31 

119.81 
131.47 

740.04 



Varroc EnJ/neorlnJ Llmllad 

Notes to the consolidated flnancl•l st•temcrnts 

(Rs. In Million) 

As ot Morch 31, 2018 
As at March 31, 2017 

(Resto tad) 

~~ Deferred tu liabilities/ (•uet) (net) 

24A Deferred bXII1bllltles(net) 

Deferred tu liabilities 
Depreciation 11nd amortluatlon 1,138.13 ~27.24 

Revenue recognised under Perccntasc Of Compl11tion method 22.30 
Others 20.5~ 8.31 
Goodwill (refer note 58) 77.~5 

1,258.42 935.55 

Deferred tu assets 
Expenses :allowable on p:~yrnent basis 51.51 48.01 
Provision for doubtful debts and adv:mccs 7.68 2~.32 

Un<Jbsorbcd t:uc deprecl:atlon ;md losses ~9.39 197.20 
Provision for employee benents 45.33 14.~0 

MAT Credit Entitlement 578.70 507.16 
Others 16.94 ~ .. 1 

749.55 805.51 

Total Deferred tax liabilities (net) 508.87 130.04 
Total Deferred talC useu (ne-t) 

Movements In deferred tax liabilities 

Openlna deferred talC liabilities 130.04 472.74 

Recoanlsed In the Statement of Profit and loss 

Expenses allowable on payment basis (7.70) 263.13 
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 21.64 7.05 
Unabsorbed tax depreciation and losses 147.81 (~2-12) 

Provision for employee benefits (42.80) 97.36 
Revenue reco~:nlsed under Percent<~ee Of Completion method l2.30 (295.38) 
Investment Allowance 184,83 
Depredation and amortization 210.89 (42~.57) 

others 75.89 70.28 
Total 428.03 (194.40) 

Exchange D/Uerences (71.06) 15.72 

CN!rced to other comprehensive Income 

C<tsh now hedge reserve 4.20 (7.56) 
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 11.87 (6.51 

16.07 (14.07) 

Increase of MAT credit 17!.54) (149.95) 
Deferred tax on account of business combination (refer note 58) 77..33 

Total Deferred tax liabilities (net) 508.87 130.04 

248 Deferred t.:nc assets fnd) 

Deferred tax assets 

Expenses allowable on payment basis 245.53 174.02 
Provision for doubtful debts and adv::ances 5.33 3.77 
Unabsorbed tax depredation and losses 119.92 223.54 
Provision for employee benefits 189.16 50.71 
Investment Allowance 1,006.29 242.16 
MAT Credit Entitlement 6.76 4.30 
Others 11.61 161.56 

1,584.60 860.06 

Deferred t::ax /labilities 

Depreciation and amortl:zation 453.63 523.86 
Revenue recognised under Percentage Of Completion method 82.93 194.65 
Others 18.04 11.34 

554.60 729.85 

Total Deferred tax anets (net} 1,030.00 130.21 

Movement in deferred tax assets 

Opening deferred tax assets 130.21 132.44 

Recocnised in the Statement of Profit and loss 

Expenses allowable on payment basis 71.51 76.38 
Pto"llision for doubtful debts and ad"\13nces 1.56 3.77 
Unabsorbed tax depreciation and losses (103.62) 185.11 
Provision for employee benefits 138.45 50.71 
Revenu e recognised under Percenuge Of Completion method 111.72 (194.65) 
Investment Allowance 764.13 242.16 
Depreciation and amortization 70.23 (523.86) 
Others (1S6.76) 1S6.65 

Total 897.22 (3.73) 

Exchange Differences 0.11 5.80 

Increase of MAT credit 2.46 (4.30) 

Closing deferred tax assets 1 030.00 130.21 



Vauo' £nalnecrlna limited 
Notn to the consolidated financial statements 

IRs. In Million) 

As at Morch 31, 2018 
As at March 31, :Z011 

IRostatod) 

25 Other non current /labilities 

Adv.:ance received from customer 17.87 20.40 
Deferred tovcrnmcnt tr.:ant 292.46 62.77 
Tot1l other non current liabilities 310.33 83.17 

26 Curr~ent borrowlnas Maturity Date Terms of RefYyrMnt lnt~erestr~te 

Secured 

C.uh Credit Various Various 1.1% to 12.3S% 148.73 447.06 
Working capital facilities 

Foreign Currency & Working Capital Demzand Loan (WCDL) Vorlous Various 1.75% 728.49 3,739.46 
Factored Rccelv<~blcs (Refer note 13) Various Various 1.S%to6% 359.48 245.75 
Buyer's credit (other th.:an c.:apltnl) V.:arious V.:arlous 1.91% 36.91 
Ur'lsecured 

Working capital filcilitlcs 

Factored Receivables (Refer note 13) Various Various 8.30% 1,514.80 
Pre-shipment credit In foreign currency (PCFC) Various Various 5.15% 47.77 
From flnanclallnsUtutlons Various Voulous 8.45% 640.00 431.58 
Commercial Papers Various Various 6.75% 1,084.28 

From related parties (Refer note 49) 6.86 

Tot.al current borrowln1s 3,439.27 5,991.90 

Working capital facilities availed from b;:mks, arc secured by pari-passu charge by way of hypothec01tlon of stocks of raw M31crlills, work In process, finished goods, consumilblcs, stores and spares, pilcking materials, receivables and 
mortgage of certain land and buildings of the group. 

The carrying amounts of financial and non financial assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings arc disclosed In note no 53 
Net Oebt Reconciliation March 31,1018 Much 31,2017 
C.:ash and Cash cquivilltnts (refer note 14 (a) 3,117.05 

3,053.211 
Uquld Investments 30.32 
current borrowings 13,290.54) I5,So\U4) 
Non· current borrowings(includes current maturities of non·current borrowlnss (refer note 21 and 28) 18,550.91) 19,138.54) 
Interest accrued but not due (refer note 28} 152.26) 140.7') 
Net debt 18,746.34) (11 ,679.91) 

Recondllatlon of Net Debt 

P~rtlculars As on Apri\1, 2017 Cashf/ows Interest Expenses Interest Paid cash flow hedge Translation Gain on sale of As on March 31, 2018 
Reserve Difference Investments 

Non-current borrowings 9,138.54 11.318.07) 730.44 8,550.91 
Liquid Investment 27.62 2,70 30.32 
Current borrowings 5,544.84 12,980.43) 1.14 724.99 3,290.54 
Cash and cash equl~~alent 3,053.21 1496.20) 560.04 3,117.05 
Interest accrued but not due 49.74 861.70 859.18 52.26 

27 Trade payables 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 41) 27.22 25.59 
Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and sm.:all enterprises 

Trade payables to Related Partles(rcfer note 49) 31.52 35.32 
Others 19,735.05 15,001.11 

Total trade payables 19,793.79 15,062.02 

28 Current- Other financial liabilities 

Current m3turitics of non-current borrowings (refer note 21) 2,130.48 1,537 .82 
Finance lease obligations (refer note 54) 58.97 48.01 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 52.26 49.74 
Caphal creditors 1,468.21 1,331.08 
Customer security deposits 36.75 29.51 
Employee benefits payable 1,712.25 1,510.57 
Derivative liabilities pendin2 settlement 48.80 60.59 
Redemption liability related to non controlling interest 143.84 123.39 
Others 1.50 0.80 
Total other financial liabilities 5.653.06 4,691.51 

29 Current- Provisions 

Provision for Employee benefits 

Gratuity and other employee benefit oblieation (refer note 42) 28.36 48.75 
Compensated absences 9.13 47.50 
Others 

Provision for warranties {refer note 23) 238.08 222.61 
Management and Performance Bonus 132.31 119.29 
Others (ref ere note 23) 40.60 159.17 
Total current provision 448.48 597.32 

30 Other current liabilities 

Advance received from customers 1,337.10 546 .17 
Deferred government grant 

~(-
46.98 70.49 

Statutory Dues Payable 

~Charter~ 
559.21 307.50 

Other payables 160.75 70.60 
Total Other current liabilities --7. 2,104.04 994.76 - ~p,.CC - ~~00 

~Y~"l '!~ ~ 1) ( ~ ~ 
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Vairoc Engineering Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial ~t~tPmPnts 

- _(Rs. In Million 

For the year ended 
For the year ended March 

31,2017 
March 31, 2.018 

(Restated) 
31 Revenue from operations 

Sale of products • 
Finished goods 95,029.92 87,676.97 
Traded goods 1,115.98 1,145.65 

Sale of engineering services 1,650.58 1,717.40 
Other operating revenue 

Tooling revenue 4,383.05 4,361.39 
Wind and solar power generation 106.30 119.57 
Prototype sale 722.65 496.40 
Job work receipts 157.05 88.72 
Scrap sales 340.56 250.24 
Export Incentives 82.65 45.33 
Royalty 152.67 110.89 
Others 43.16 72.84 

Total revenue from operations 103,784.57 96,085.40 

• Note: Revenue from Operations for the year ended March 31, 2017 includes excise duty, which Is discontinued w.e.f. July 1, 2017 upon implementation of Goods and Services Tax 
(GST) in India. In accordance with lnd AS 18, Revenue, GST Is not Included in Revenue from Operations. In view of the aforesaid restructuring of Indirect taxes, Revenue from 
Operations for the year ended March 31, 2018 Is not comparable with the previous year. 

Revenue from operation net of Excise Duty 102,788.31 92,987.88 

32 Other income 

Rent Income 
-from Investment properties 32.50 31.89 
- from Others 9.56 8.79 

Dividend Income from equity investments carried at cost 0.02 

Dividend Income from Investments mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss D.01 

Interest Income 
-from financial assets measured at amortised cost 2.62 4.12 
-Others 8.52 10.91 

Unwinding of discount on security deposit 1.49 0.50 
Net gain on sale of investments (Refer note below) 2.70 59.41 
Government grants 151.21 117.31 
Net foreign exchange gain - 537.80 
Liabilities no longer required written back 13.65 
Miscellaneous income 177.47 152.91 

Total Other income 386.10 937.29 

Note : During the previous year, the Group sold 484,500 equity shares held in Varroc Elastomers Private Limited for a total consideration of Rs. 115.8 million. 

33 Cost of materials consumed 
Raw material at the beginning of the year 3,860.99 3,488.42 
Add:- On account of business acquisition (refer note 58) 26.49 
Add: Purchases 63,940.98 60,103.77 

67,828.46 63,592.19 
Less: Raw material at the end ofthe year 4,625.24 3,860.99 
Total cost of materials consumed 63,203.22 59,731.20 

34 Changes in Inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods 

Opening balance 
Work-in-progress 1,795.04 1,536.55 
Finished goods 1,174.07 1,063.42 
Stock-in-trade 83.00 100.54 

Total opening balance 3,052.11 2,700.51 

Add:- On account of business acquisition (refer note 58) 3.45 -
Closing balance 

Work-in-progress 1,957.75 1,795.04 
Finished goods 1,374.00 1,174.07 
Stock-in-trade 24.12 83.00 

Total closing balance 3,355.87 3,052.11 

Total changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods (300.31) (351.60) 



Varroc Engineering Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 

IRs. In Million 

For the year ended 
For the 'Year ended March 

31,2017 
March 31, 2018 

(Restated) 

35 Employee benefit expense 
Salaries, wages and bonus 10,374.59 9,656.98 
Contribution to Gratuity and other funds (Refer Note 42) 939.66 838.68 
Staff welfare expenses 1,820.92 1,541.84 

Total employee benefit expense 13,135.17 12,037.50 

36 Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,245.25 2,818.80 
Depreciation on Investment properties 5.79 5.79 
Amortisation of intangible assets 613.61 546.24 

Total depreciation and amortisation expenses 3,864.65 3,370.83 

37 Other expenses 

Consumption of stores and spares and loose tools 1,274.53 1,200.61 
Consumption of packing materials 1,196.39 1,033.08 
Repairs to 

Buildings 198.09 240.98 
Machinery 761.72 767.52 
Others 412.78 433.83 

Telephone and communication expenses 130.99 130.55 
Water and electricity charges 2,111.36 1,931.16 
Rental charges {refer note 50 (b)) 338.33 271.73 
Rates and taxes 183.46 134.98 
Contract labour cost 3,727.12 2,838.85 
legal and professional fees 383.51 652.76 
Net foreign exchange loss 253.90 -
Net loss on sale of property, plant & equipment 1.35 5.77 
Travelling and conveyance 711.38 555.34 
Insurance 146.14 138.44 
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 31.65 25.50 
Provision for doubtful loans, advances and debts (Net) 61.38 44.89 
Sales promotion, marketing and advertisement cost 99.77 101.76 
Research and development expenses 1,122.01 402.37 
Freight and forwarding expenses 2,241.61 1,865.88 
Warranties 364.76 291.38 
Testing and Engineering services 54.70 230.75 
IT related cost 801.70 757.83 
Miscellaneous expenses 441.99 709.35 

Total other expenses 17,050.62 14,765.31 



Varroc Engineering Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 

IRs. In Million) 

For the year ended 
For the year ended March 

31,2017 
March 31, 2018 

(Restated) 

38 Finance costs (other than Imputed Interest and changes In cash flow estimates on liability portion of CCPS) 

Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss 722.28 760.71 
Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs 24.44 (11.84) 
Other borrowing costs 114.98 113.49 
Total finance costs 861.70 862.36 

39 The Group prepares Consolidated Financial Statements at each year end by translating Its foreign operations In accordance with JND AS 21· "The Effects of Changes In Foreign 

Exchange Rates". 

The Group, while preparing current period flnanclal statements, has Identified an Inadvertent error In translation of one of its foreign subsidiary's operations for FY 2016·17. 

In accordance with IND AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting, Estimates and Errors, the Company has corrected the above error by restating the comparative flnanclal 

Information for the year ended March 31, 2017. 

March 31, Increase I March 31, 
Financial Statements (extract) 

2017 (Decrease) 
2017 
(Restated) 

Balance with ·Government Authorities 
506.41 321.99 828.40 

Trade Payables 15,002.40 59.62 15,062.02 
Net Foreign Exchange Gain 265.13 272.67 537.80 
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 

54.90 (10.38) 44.52 

40 Income tax expense 

(a)lncome tax expense 

Current tax 

Current tax oil profits for the year 1,161.10 473.42 
Total current tax expense 1,161.10 473.42 

Deferred tax 

Decrease I (increase) in deferred tax assets (899.68) (141.92) 
(Decrease) I increase in deferred tax liabilities 356.49 (194.40) 

Total deferred tax expensel(benefit) (543.19 1336.32) 

Income tax expense 617.91 137.10 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate: 

Profit before tax & share of net profits of investments accounted for using equity method 4,435.41 2,480.05 

Tax at the Indian tax rate of 34.608% (March 31, 2017- 34.608%) 1,535.01 858.29 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income: 

Weighted deduction on research and development expenditure (101.24) (70.03) 
Investment Allowance (657.60) (389.30) 
Non taxable income (45.54) (149.19) 
Non deductible expenses 310.13 280.33 
Current tax expense of prior periods . (99.40) 

Imputed interest and changes in cash flow estimates on liability portion of CCPS . 14.40 

Previously unrecognised tax losses used to reduce deferred tax expenses (Refer note below) (335.72) . 
Other items 143.99 (68.65) 
Difference in overseas tax rates (231.11) (239.35) 

617.91 137.10 

Following a significant improvement in business performance at one of the subsidiaries, the group reviewed previously unrecognised tax losses and determined that It was now 

probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utlised. As a consequence, a deferred tax asset of INR 335.72 Million was recognised during current 
year. 
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Note 41 : Dues to micro and small enterprises 
The Group has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED Act'). The 
disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows: 

(Rs. in Million) 

March 31, 2018 
March 31, 2017 

(Restated) 

a) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid 17.97 17.18 
as at year end 

b) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year 0.02 • 
end 

c) Principal amounts pa id to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the 77.96 255.13 
appointed day during the year 

d) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under - -
the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year 

e) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED - -
Act, beyond the appointed day during the year 

f) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments 0.84 0.57 
already made 

g) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years 8.39 7.84 

• Amount below rounding off norm adopted by the group 



N9te 42 • Employee benefit obligation 
Indian Entities 
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A Defined contribution plans: {Rs. In Million) 
The Group has certain deflnad contribution plans. Contributions ore made to provident fund In India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The 
contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation nf the company I& limited to thP "mount contributed ond it has nu 
furthPr contractual nor any r.nnstruttlve obligation. The e•~cnse recognised during the year towards defln~rl r.nntrlhutlnn plan'' aG under: 

{I) Contribution to Employees' provident fund 
{II) Contribution to Employees' family pension fund 
Total 

8 Gratuity 

For the year ended March 31, 
2018 

78.67 
62.14 

140.81 

For the year ended March 31, 2017 
{Restated) 

76.91 
58.03 

134.94 

The Group provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible 
for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary plus Dearness Allowance per month computed 
proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognised funds 
in India. The Company does not fully fund the liabil ity and maintains a target level of fu nding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected 
gratuity payments. 

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows: 

Particulars 

{a) Change in present value of benefit obligations 

Liability at the beginning of the year 
Service cost 
Interest expense 
Remeasurements · Actuarial(gains)/ losses {refer note {e) below) 

Benefits paid 
liability at the end of the year 

(b) Change in fair value of plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 
Interest income 
Remeasurements· Return on plan assets excluding amounts 
recognised in interest income {refer note {e) below) 

Contributions 
Mortality Charges and Taxes 
Benefits paid 

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 

{c) The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plan is as follows: 

Particulars 

Present value of funded obligations 
Fair value of plan assets 
Deficit of funded plan 

March 31, 2018 

297.28 
60.81 
20.34 

{27.83) 

(29.74) 
320.86 

262.72 
19.90 

0.23 

57.07 
{2.98) 

{29.75) 
307.19 

As at March 31, 2018 

320.86 
307.19 

13.67 

As at 
March 31, 2017 

{Restated) 

As at March 31, 2017 
{Restated) 

243.86 
40.63 
18.37 
22.08 

{27.66) 
297.28 

217.73 
18.65 
{0.66) 

55.87 
{1.21) 

{27.66) 
262.72 

297.28 
262.72 
34.56 
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Note 42 ·Employee benefit obligation 

(d) Expenses to be recognized In the Statement of Profit and Loss under employee benefit expenses. 

Particulars 

Service cost 
Net Interest (income)/expense 
Net gratuity cost 

(e) Expenses to be recognized In statement of other comprehensive 
income: 
Particulars 

Remeasurment 
Experience (Gain)/ Losses on plan liabilities 
Financial (Gain)/ Losses on plan liabilities 
(Return) I loss on plan assets excluding amounts recognised In interest (Income)/ expenses 
Experience (Gain)/ Losses on plan assets 
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 
Financiai(Gain)/ Losses on plan assets 

For the year ended March 31, 
2018 

60.81 
0.44 

61.25 

For the year ended March 31, 
2018 

(6.22) 
(21.61) 

(2.45) 

2.22 
(28.06) 

(Rs. In Million) 

For the year ended March 31, 2017 
(Restated) 

40.63 
(0.28) 

40.35 

For the year ended March 31, 2017 
(Restated) 

3.16 
1.27 
0.37 
0.18 

17.76 

22.74 
(f) Valuation in respect of gratuity has been carried out by Independent actuary, as at the balance sheet date, based on the following assumptions: 

Particulars 

Discount rate 
Salary growth rate 

Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 

As at March 31, 2018 

7.90% 
7.00% 
11.81 

As at March 31, 2017 
(Restated) 

7.20% 
7.00% 
12.15 

As per actuary report, the group assesses these assumptions with its projected long term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards. The discount rate is based on 
government bonds. 

Overseas Entities 
C Pension Plans 

The group operates defined benefit pension plans in Mexico, Germany and Italy under broadly similar regulatory frameworks . All of the plans are salary pension plans, which 
provide benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed level of pension payable for life. The level of benefits provided depends on members length of services and their 
salary in the final years leading up to retirement. 

The group funds the liability as per legal requirements of respective countries. Plan assets are governed by local regulations and practice in each country, as is the nature of 
the relationship between the group and the trustees (or equivalent) and their composition. 

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows: 

Particulars 

(a) Change in present value of benefit obligations 

Liability at the beginning of the year 
Service cost 
Interest expense 

Remeasurements ·Actuarial (gains)/losses (refer note (e) below) 

Benefits paid 
Effect of Foreign exchange rate 
liability at the end of the year 

March 31, 2018 

845.04 
63.05 
31.35 
15.86 

(18.55) 
117.56 

1,054.31 

March 31, 2017 
(Restated) 

903.34 
62 .56 
28.82 

0.19 

(71.37) 
(78.50) 

845.04 
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Note 42 • Employee benefit obligation 

(b) Change In fair value of plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 
Interest Income 
Transfer of assets 
Remeasurements· Return on plan assets excluding amounts 
recognised in Interest Income 
Contributions 
Benefits paid 
Effect of Foreign exchange rate 
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 

(c) The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plan is as follows: 

Particulars 

Present value of funded obligations 
Fair value of plan assets 
Deficit of funded plan 

(d) Expenses to be recognized in the Statement of Profit and loss under employee benefit expenses. 

Particulars 

Service cost 
Net interest (income)/expense 
Net gratuity cost 

(e) Expenses to be recognized in statement of other comprehensive income: 
Particulars 

Remeasurment 

Experience (Gain)/ Losses on plan liabilities 
Financial (Gain)/ Losses on plan liabilities 
(Return) I loss on plan assets excluding amounts recognised in 
interest (income)/expenses 
(Gain )floss from change in demographic assumptions 
Experience (Gain)/ Losses on plan assets 
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 

395.08 
12.02 

(6.96) 

59.52 
(12.03) 
64.04 

511.67 

As at March 31, 2018 

1,054.31 
511.67 
542.64 

For the year ended March 31, 
2018 

63.05 
19.33 
82.38 

For the year ended March 31, 
2018 

12.26 
(8.11) 
6.46 

0.50 
11.71 
22.82 

(Rs. In Million) 

As at March 31, 2017 
(Restated) 

432.62 
12.40 

(3.81) 

53.54 
(63.57) 
(36.10) 

395.08 

845.04 
395.08 
449.96 

For the year ended March 31, 2017 
(Restated) 

62.56 
16.42 
78.98 

For the year ended March 31, 2017 
(Restated) 

9.29 
12.31 

2.74 

(12.70) 
1.05 

(2.97) 

9.72 

(f) Valuation in respect of above pension plan has been carried out by independent actuary, as at the balance sheet date, based on the following assumptions: 

Particulars 

Discount rate 

Salary growth rate 
Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 

March 31, 2018 

1.8%to 8% 
1%to 10.5% 
7.56 to 20 

March 31, 2017 
(Restated) 
2%to 7.2% 

2.75%to7% 
12.15 to 22.07 

The group assesses these assumptions with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards. The discount rate is based on the high-quality 
corporate bonds. 
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Note 42 - Employee benefit obligation 

Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions are as follows: 
Change In Assumption 

Increase/( decrease) In present value of defined benefit obligation as 
at the end of the year 
(I) 1% increa~e In discount rate 

(II) 1% decrease In discount rate 
(iii) 1% increase In rate of salary escalation 
(iv) 1% decreasing rate of salary escalation· 

March 31, 2018 

11.48% 
12.65% 

12.26% 

10.64% 

March 31, 2017 
(Restated) 

11.77% 
14.20% 

11.98% 
10.43% 

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit obligation by 1%, keeping all 
other actuarial assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method(present value 
of defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of reporting year) has been applied while calculating the defined benefit liability 

recognised in the balance sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used In preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior year. 

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation: 
(Rs in Million) 

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 

(Restated) 
Within 1 year 31.20 25.49 
1-2 year 31.35 28.04 
2-3 year 45 .58 31.36 
3-4 year 56.33 48.38 
4-5 year 69.69 53.16 
5-10 years 546.42 455.49 

RISK EXPOSURE AND ASSET LIABiliTY MATCHING 

Provision of a defined benefit scheme poses certain risks, some of which are detailed here under as companies take on uncertain long-term obligations to make future 
benefit payments. 

1) Liability Risks 

Asset-Liability Mismatch Risk-

Risk which arises if there is a mismatch in the duration of the assets relative to the liabilities. By matching duration with the defined benefit liabilities, the company is 
successfully able to neutralize valuation swings caused by interest rate movements. Hence companies are encouraged to adopt asset-liability management. 

Discount Rate Risk-

Variations in the discount rate used to compute the present value of the liabilities may seem small, but in practice can have a significant impact on the defined benefit 
liabilities. 

Future Salary Escalation and Inflation Risk-

Since price inflation and salary growth are linked economically, they are combined for disclosure purposes. Rising salaries will often resulting higher future defined benefit 

payments resulting in a higher present value of liabilities especially unexpected salary increases provided at management's discretion may lead to uncertainties in estimating 
this increasing risk. 

2) Asset Risks 

All plan assets related to Indian entities are maintained in a trust fund managed by a public sector insurer viz; LIC of India. UC has a sovereign guarantee and has been 
providing consistent and competitive returns over the years. 

For overseas entities, the group has opted for a traditional fund wherein all assets are invested primarily in risk averse markets. The group has no control over the 
management of funds but this option provides a high level of safety for the total corpus. A single account is maintained for both the investment and claim settlement and 

hence 100% liquidity is ensured. Also interest rate and Inflation risk are taken care of. 



Note 43 : Fair Value Measurement 
Financial instruments by category 

Financial assets 
Investments 

- Equity Instruments 
- Mutual funds 
- Government securities 

Loans 
Trade receivables 
Cash and bank balances 
Derivative contracts 
Unbilled receivables 
Other financial assets 
Total financial assets 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 
Derivative liabilities pending settlement 
Security deposits 
Trade payables 
Acceptances 
Capital Creditors 
Employee benefits payable 
Other financial liabilities 
Total financial liabilities 

(i) Fair value hierarchy 

FVPL 

0.14 
30.32 

-

-

38.25 
-
-

68.71 

-

-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
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(Rs in Million) 

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 
(Restated) 

FVOCI Amortised FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost 
cost 

- - 0.14 - -
- - -

- 0.06 - - 0.06 

- 146.88 - 124.88 

- 14,027.34 - - 11,382.85 
- 3,427.70 - - 3,678.70 

- - 39.17 - -
- 2,567.77 - - 3,586.57 

- 184.69 - - 7.80 
20,354.44 39.31 - 18,780.86 

- 11,990.18 - - 15,130.44 
48.80 - - 60.59 -

- 42.39 - - 34.67 

- 19,793.79 - - 15,062.02 

- 210.34 - - 434.92 
- 1,468.60 - - 1,355.16 

1,782.36 - - 1,572.50 
- 244.27 - - 173.93 

48.80 35,531.93 - 60.59 33,763.64 

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) 
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining 
fair value, the group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An e>tplanation of each level follows underneath 
the table. 

(Rs. in Million) 

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value- recurring fair value measurements 
Levell Level2 level3 Total 

at March 31, 2018 

Financial Assets 
Equity instruments - 0.14 - 0.14 
Debt Instruments - - - -
Derivative contracts - 38.25 - 38.25 
Investments- Mutual funds 30.32 - - 30.32 
Total financial assets 30.32 38.39 - 68.71 

Financial Liabilities 
Derivative liabilities pending settlement - 48.80 - 48.80 
Tota l financial liabilities - 48.80 - 48.80 

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are 
disclosed At March 31, 2018 

Levell Level2 Level3 Total 

Financial Assets 
Investments- Government securities 0.06 - - 0.06 
Total financial assets 0.06 - - 0.06 



Note 43 : Fair Value Measurement 
Financial Instruments by category 
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Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value· recurring fair value measurements 
Levell 

At March 31, 2017 (Restated) 

Financial Assets 
Equity Instruments -
Derivative contracts . 
Total financial assets . 

Financial liabilities 
Derivative liabilities pending settlement . 
Total financial liabilities -
Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are 

Levell 
disclosed At March 31, 2017 (Restated) 

Financial Assets 
Investments- Government securities 0.06 
Total financial assets 0.06 

Commentary 

(Rs. In Million) 

level2 level3 Total 

0.14 0.14 
39.17 . 39.17 
39.31 - 39.31 

. 
60.59 . 60.59 

60.59 . 60.59 

Level2 level3 Total 

. - 0.06 

- - 0.06 

Levell: Levell hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using 
the closing NAV. - . 
lever 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable 
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument Is Included in 
level2. 

level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level3. 
(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of the level 2 financial instruments included in the above tables: 
·the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable yield curves. 
-the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and principal swap is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date. 
-the fair value of foreign currency option contracts is determined using the Black Scholes valuation model. 

Commentary 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, loans, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, security deposits, other financial assets, borrowings, other financial liabilities, 
acceptances are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature. The fair value of non-current financial assets and non-current liabilities also 
approximates its carrying value. 

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values. 
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Note 44 : Financial risl< management 

The group activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The group primary focus is to 

foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The 

primary market risk to the group is foreign exchange risk. The group uses derivative financial instruments - foreign currency 

forward contracts to mitigate foreign exchange related risk exposures. The group exposure to credit risk, excluding receivables 
from related parties, is influenced mainly by the individual characteristic of each customer and the concentration of risk from the 

top few customers. The demographics of the customer including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer 

operates also has an influence on credit risk assessment. 

A] Market Risk 

a] Foreign currency risk 

The group operates internationally and portion of the business is transacted in several currencies and consequently the group is 

exposed to foreign exchange risk through its sale and purchase of goods and services in the North America and Europe and 
elsewhere, and borrowings in various foreign currencies. The exchange rate between the rupee and foreign currencies has 

changed substantially in recent years and may fluctuate .substantially in the future. Consequently, t he results of the group 

operations are affected positively/adversely as the rupee appreciates /depreciates against these currencies. The group evaluates 

exchange rate exposure arising from these transactions and enters into foreign exchange forward contracts, interest and principle 

swaps and options to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The group follows establ ished 
risk management policies, to hedge forecasted cash flows denominated in foreign currency. The group has designated certain 

derivative instruments as cash flow hedges to mitigate the foreign exchange exposure of forecasted highly probable cash flows. 

a a The group exposure to foreign currency risk as of March 31, 2018 expressed in INR, is as follows: 

March 31, 2018 
USD EURO JPY Other 

currencies 

INR Value 
Financial assets 

Trade receivables 426.91 4,142.21 - 36.40 

Other assets 161.07 5,460.42 9.27 20.30 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 1,169.24 5,865.17 112.81 -
Trade payables 585.66 9,512.02 61.31 629.79 

Other liabilities 28.43 1,107.61 - 220.52 
Net assets I (liabilities) (1195.35\ (6 882.17) (164.85) (793.61) 

The group exposure to foreign currency risk as of March 31, 2017 {Restated) expressed in INR, is as 
ab 

follows: 

March 31, 2017 

(Restated) 

USD EURO JPY Other 
currencies 

INR Value 

Financial assets 

Trade receivables 472.08 2,522.93 0.37 0.14 

Interest receivable 67.25 
Other assets 74.02 3,864.74 4.04 1.10 

Financial liabilities 

1,440.85 5,727.93 134.51 

287.07 4,389.66 102.41 

(Rs. in Million) 

Total 

4,605.52 

5,651.06 

7,147.22 

10,788.78 

1,356.56 
(9 035.98} 

(Rs. in Million) 

Total 

2,995 .52 

67 .25 

3,943 .90 

7,303.29 

4,816.52 

1,669.09 
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ac Sensitivity 

For the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, every percentage point appreciation/depreciation in the exchange rate 

between the Indian rupee and U.S. Dollar has affected the Group's incremental operating margins by approximately Rs. 11.95 
Million and Rs. 13.68 Million respectively, and Euro by approximately Rs. 68.82 Million and Rs. 48.33 Million, respectively. 

Sensitivity analysis is computed based on the changes in the income and expenses in foreign currency upon conversion into 

functional currency, due to exchange rate fluctuations between the previous reporting period and the current reporting period. 

b) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in 

market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long 
term debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

Interest rate sensitivity 

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on exposure to interest rate. For floating rate liabilities, analysis is 

prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. With 

all other variables held constant, the group profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows: 

(Rs. in Million) 
For the year ended Curr'ency Increase/ Effect on Variable rate Cash 

decrease in profit before Credit and Term loans 

basis points tax balances 

March 31, 2018 INR +100 (61.52) 6,152.09 

March 31, 2018 INR -100 61.52 6,152.09 

March 31, 2017 INR +100 (108.20) 10,818.90 

March 31, 2017 INR -100 108.20 10,818.90 

B] Credit Risk Management 

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer 
contract, leading to a financial loss. The group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) 

and from its financing/ investing activities, including deposits with banks. The group has 7 to 11 major clients which represents 

71.2% receivables as on 31st March, 2018. The company is receiving payments from these parties within due dates. Hence, the 

group has no significant credit risk related to these parties. 

Trade receivables 

Customer credit risk is managed by the group established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk 
management. 

Further, group customers includes marquee OEMs and Tier I companies, having long standing relationship with the group. 
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and reconciled. As at March 31, 2018, receivable from the Group's top 

11 (March 31, 2017 7) customers accounted for approximately 71.2%, (March 31, 2017: 80%) of all the receivables outstanding. 

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis based on historical data. The maximum 

exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of trade receivables disclosed in Note 13. The group does not 

hold collateral as security. The group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers 

are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets. 
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Note 44 Financial risk management 

C] Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a 

reasonable price. The Group's corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity and funding as well as settlement 

management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management 

monitors the Group's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. As of March 31, 2018, 

cash and cash equivalents are held with major banks. 

Maturities of financial liabilities 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company's financial liabilities based on contractual payments. 

(Rs. in Million) 

March 31, 2018 On demand < 1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years 
Non- derivative 

Borrowings .148.73 5,479.99 6,361.46 -
Contractual Obligation Of Interest - 322.49 418.21 0.09 

Trade Payables - 19,793.79 - -
Acceptances - 210.34 - -
Other financial liabilities 36.75 3,378.06 123.17 -
Derivative liabilities pending settlement - 48.80 - -

March 31, 2017 (Restated) On demand < 1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years 

Non- derivative 

Borrowings 447.06 7,130.67 7,552.71 -

Trade Payables - 15,062.02 - -
Acceptances - 434.92 - -
Other fina.ncial liabilities 29.51 3,015.58 92.01 -
Derivative liabilities pending settlement - 60.59 - -

-The amount disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their 

carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. 



Note 45 - Capital Management 

(a) Risk management 
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The group's capital comprises equity share capital, preference share capital, security premium, retained earnings and other equity attributable to 
shareholders. 

The group's objectives when managing capital are to: 

• Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and for other stakeholders, 
and 

- Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to 

shareholders or issue new shares . 

The group monitors capital gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. Net debt comprises of long term and short term borrowings less 

cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances, equity includes equity share capital, preference share capital and reserves that are managed as 
capital. The gearing at the end of the reporting period was as follows. 

The group's strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio of 1:1 

(Rs. in Million) 

As at March 31, 2017 

As at March 31, 2018 (Restated) 

Net debt 8,700.81 11,589.90 

Total Equity 28,280.05 21,853.75 
Net debt to equity ratio 0.31 0.53 

*Total equrty does not Include share of non controlling mterest. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital of the company during the year. 

(i)Loan covenant 

The group capital management aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define 

capital structure requirements. There are no financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing which are based on the Group's 

consolidated financials. 

(b) Dividends 

(i) Equity Shares 

Interim dividend for the year ended March 31, 2018 of Rs. 0.50 per fully paid share of Re .1 each 

(March 31, 2017 of Rs. 3.5 per fully paid share of Rs. 10 each) (Refer note 18 (g)) 

(ii} Dividend Distribution tax 

March 31, 2018 

(Rs. in Million) 

61.56 

12.52 

March 31, 2017 

(Restated) 

(Rs. in Million) 

37.04 

8.87 



Varroc Engineering Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 

Note 46: Impact of hedging activities 

(a) Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial position 

March 31, 2018 (Rs. in Million) I 

Type of hedge and risks Nominal value 
Carrying amount of hedging 

Change in the value of instrument 
Hedge Weighted average 

Changes in fair 
hedged item used as the Maturity date 

ratio strike price/rate 
value of hedging 

basis for recognising hedge 
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities instrument 

effectiveness 

Cash flow hedge 
Principle and interest rate swaps 473.75 42.10 June 4, 2018- March 4, 2021 1:1 Rs.68.75 10.01 -10.01 
Principle and interest rate swaps 146.71 6.49 August 18, 2018- May 20, 2021 1:1 Rs.66.60 2.01 -2.01 

March 31, 2017 (Restated) (Rs. in Million) 

Type of hedge and risks Nominal value 
Carrying amount of hedging Change in the value of 

instrument Hedge Weighted average 
Changes in fair 

hedged item used as the 
Maturity date 

ratio strike price/rate 
value of hedging 

basis for recognising hedge 
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities 

instrument 
effectiveness 

Cash flow hedge 
Principle and interest rate swaps 472.87 52.11 June 4, 2018- March 4, 2021 1:1 Rs. 68.75 (13.31) 13.31 
Principle and interest rate swaps 146.40 8.50 Augi)St 18, 201,8- May 2(),_~021 __ 1:1 _ _ Rs. 66.60 (8.501 8.50 

- - -

Movement in cash flow hedging reserve (Rs. in Million) 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2018 2017 
(Restated) 

Cash flow hedge 
Balance at the beginning of the period/year (8.94) (9.30) 

Gain/Loss on changes in fair value of hedging instrument 12.02 (21.81) 

Income tax relating to gains/loss reclassified to profit and loss (4.20) 7.56 

Reclassification to Statement of Profit and Loss (1.14) 14.61 

Balance at the end of the J:leriod/yeil_T_ __ {2.26) (8.94) 

. ~\\\eer~IJ· -tSS g ~% 
~ ii) 
(/ <{ 

* 



V•rrut.lt•llllllltttlllll Uttlltld 
Notal to the consolld1ted lln1ncl•l 1t1tamonU 

Note 47: Sesmant lnform1tlon 

Oper.1t1ns JCQments .1rc1 reported In .1 manner conslltcnt with the Intern ;a! reporting provided to tha Chief Opor.1\lng DeciJion Makar (COOM), which Is the Ooo:ard of Directors. 
The group h01s d isclosed business segment as the prlm;,ry segment. The ;,utomotlve scsmont conslus of the business of .1utomobllo products consisting of ;,uto parts for two-wheelers, three-wheelers .1nd four -wheelers ;,nd related design, 
development ;,nd enslncerlns ~ctlvitles and other sorvlcos. Others primarily Includes forglns componcnls for off ro01d vehicles 01nd components for mining 01nd oil drilling Industry. 

(•l Prlm•rv sc mant: Du.dnan 1c mcmts IR•. InMIIIIon 

For the ye•r ended M•rch 31, 2018 
For the ye1r andod M1rch 31, 2017 

Sr. IRe Ual•dl 
No 

P•rtlcul•r• 

Automotive Others Tot1l Automotl'lle Others Tot• I 

Segment revenue 

I Rev~:muc from operations (exlornal) 101 0311.119 2,750.08 103 784.57 94,274.50 1,810.90 96085.40 
Total revenue 101,034.49 2,750.08 103,784.57 94,274.50 1,810.90 96,085.40 

2 Segment results before other Income, 5,072.17 92.74 5,164.91 2,527.88 181.16} 2,4116.72 
finMncc cost .1nd tax 

3111 Other Income (Net of un allocated expense) 132.20 937.29 

3(11} Fin01ncc co.sts 861.70 903.96 

Profit before tax and exceptlon01lltem 4,435.41 2,480.05 
3(111} Exceptional Items 

3llv} Share of net profit of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method 690.27 791.88 
4 Profit before tax 5,125.68 3,271.93 
5 TJx expenses Including deferred 13x 617.91 137.10 
6 Profit .1fter tax but before non controlling Interest 4,507.77 3,134.83 
7 Non controlling Interest 5.19 3.83 
8 Proflt aftertax 4,502.58 3,131.00 

A5 at Mitch 31 2018 As at March 31 2017 Restated 
9 Segmenl assets 60,211.73 2,606.24 62,817.97 52,931.18 2,015.80 54,946.98 

Unilllocable assets 5,705.95 l,6S6.81 
Tot;J IAssets 68,523.92 58,603.79 

10 Segment liabilities 26,299.28 979.28 27,278.56 20,553.50 692.09 21,245.59 
Unallocated segment liablitles 12,757.65 15,302.87 
Total liabilities 40,036.21 36,548.46 

II Other Information 
Cost to acqu ire fixed assets (Including on acquisition of business) 6,397.62 6,716.58 
Oeprociation and amortization ],864.65 3,370.83 

(b) Secondary Sesment ·Geographical segments 

Segment revenue by geographical area based on geographlcJIIocation of customers: 

St. 
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2018 

For the year ended March Jl, 2017 

No (R~estated) 

Revenue within : 

I India 36,024.48 31,434.32 
2 Asia Pacific 726.72 577.37 

3 Europe 43,426.47 35,132.60 
4 North America 23,102.16 28,477.88 
5 Others 504.74 463 ,23 

Total 103 784.57 96 085 .40 

C:arryinc amount of :s.e1ment assets 
Sr. 

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 
As at March 31, 1017 

No (Restated) 

I India 24,996.08 21,822.83 
2 Asia Pacific 597.70 351.31 
3 Europe 26,615.88 14,608,96 
4 Nonh America 10,193.39 18,055.70 
5 Others 414.92 108.18 

Total 62,817.97 54,946.98 

Cons idering its long-term strateey and internal reporting. the Group now cons iders the United States of America, Canada and Me)(ico as one geographical component viz., North America . The Group has accordingly restated the segment 
information for the earlier years. 



Varroc Engineering limited 

Note 48- Interests in Subsidiaries 

(a) Subsidiaries 

The subsidiaries at March 31, 2018 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equity shares that are 

held directly by the company, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the company. The country of 

incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business. 

(Rs in Mill ion) 

Name of entity Place of business/ Ownership interest held by the Ownership interest held by non-

country of group controlling interests 

incorporation 

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 

Direct subsidiaries 

Varroc Polymers Private Limited India 100% 100% - -
Durovalves India Private limited India 72:78% 72.78% 27.22% 27.22% 

Varroc lighting Systems (India) Private Limited India 100% 100% - -

Varroc European Holding B.V. Netherlands 100% 100% - -
Aries Mentor Holding B.V. Netherlands 100% 100% - -
Varroc Corp Holding B.V. Netherlands 100% 100% - -
Varroc Japan Co. Limited Japan 100% 100% - -

Step down subsidiaries 

Team Concepts Private Limited (Refer Note 58) India 90% - 10% -
Industrial Meccanica E Stampaggio S.p.a. Italy 100% 100% - -
TRI.O.M., S.p.A. Italy 80% 80% 20% 20% 
TRI.O.M., Vietnam Co. Ltd . Viet nam 80% 80% 20% 20% 

Electromures SA Romania 80% 80% 20% 20% 

TRI.O.M. Mexico SA De. C.V. Mexico 80% 80% 20% 20% 

Varroc Lighting Systems SRO Czech Republic 100% 99.99% - -
Varroc Lighting Systems Inc. USA 100% 99.99% - -
Varroc Lighting Systems GmBH. Germany 100% 99.99% - -
Varroc Lighting Systems S.de.R.L. De. C.V. Mexico 100% 100% - -

Varroc Lighting Systems S.A., Morocco Morocco 99.87% - 0.13% -

Varroc Do Brasil Comercio, lmportac;:ao E Exportac;:ao De Brazil 100% - - -
Maquinas, Equipamento E Pec;:as Ltda. 

Varroc Lighting Systems sp. Z o.o. Poland 100% - - -

Principal activities 

All the group companies are primarily engaged in the business of auto components and services in the automotive industry to Indian and global 

customers. 



Varroc Enalneerlng Private limited 
Notes to the consolldot~d flnanci:JI stotements 

Note -48 B : Addltlonallnform::.tlon as on March 31, 2018 required by Schedule Ill 
[Rfi. In MIIUons 

Ncl ;,ssets ShJte in l)ro(i t or (IO$$) Sllilre In other comprdu::n.slve Sh:~u: In tot;,l comprt=hcnslvc Income 
{Tot:.l o:~s se ts minus 10I.1III>~billtles) Income 

Sr. uo. N>lme of th~ entily In the sroup .u;" of Amount .ill"of Amount u"of Amount as% of Amount 

consolld011tetJ consolld"tcd consolltl<~ted other consolidated totul 
net iiSSeiS profU or loss comprehensive comprehensive 

Income Income 

Parl!nt 

Varroc Enslnccrlns Prlv<~te Limited 35.51% 10,115.47 15.49% 698.30 O.SB% 17.50 11.00% 715.80 

lndl1m Subsidiaries 
I V:moc Polymers Private llmiH~d 16. 16% 4,603.20 9,84% 443.46 o.<7% 9.36 6.!16% 452.82 

2 Durovatvc:s India Prlv:~tc limited 2.Gc% 739.63 0.40% 17.95 0.0!1% 1.78 0.3o-A. 19.73 

3 Varroc Lighting Syst~:ms (India) Private limited 1.60% 457.11 0.72% 32.4S •0.18% (3.61) 0.44% 28.84 

4 Teilm Concepts Private Limited 0.73% 208.96 O.S4% 24.49 -o.01% (0.14) 0.37% 24.35 

Forelsn Subsidiaries 
1 V3rrocCorp Holding B.V. 12.31% 3,505.61 4.24% 191.09 0.00!1 2.94% 191.09 

2 Vomoc Ushtlng Systems S.R.O. 44.79"-' 12,758.96 38.00!1 1,713.06 0.00" 26.33% 1,713.06 

3 Votrroc Lighting S'f$tems S.de.R.Lde.C.V. ·1.79% (508.82) 3.39% 152.80 0.83% 16.57 2.60% 169.37 

4 V;moc Ughtlns Systems INC 11.11% 3,164.39 18.77'-1 846.15 0.00% 13.01% 846.15 

5 Vo:mac lighting Systems GmBH ·0.47% (132.74) 1.24% 56.00 ·2. 11% (42.08) 0.21% 13.92 

6 V:moc Lighting Systems S.A., Morocco ·O.OS% (13.51) ·1 .27% (57.14) 0.00% •0 .88",\ IS7.H) 

7 VARROC DO BRASIL COM~RCIO, IMPORTA"'O E 0.94% 267.56 ·0.59!1 (26.70) 0.00% ·0.41% (26.70) 

EXPORTA~Ao DE MAQUINAS, EQUIPAMENTO E PE~AS 
LTDA. 

8 Varrocllghtlng Systems sp. Z o.o. ·0.04% 110.80) .0.2:1% (10.281 0.00!1 · 0.16% 110.28) 

9 V3-rroc: Japan Co. Ltd 0.0 1% 1.84 0.04% 1.74 0.00% 0.03U 1.74 

10 V.arroc European Holding B.V. ·2.92% 1830.85) .0.39% 117.48) 0.00% .0.27% 117.48) 

11 lndunr~a Meccanlca e Stampagglo S.p.A. .0.34% (97.76) 0.23% 10.24 0.12% 2.39 0.19% 12.63 

12 Aries Mentor Holding BV 1.47% 417.88 ·0.25% 111.40) 0.00% .0.18% (ll.40) 

13 TRI.O.M. S.p.A. 2.5!1% 737.41 0.30% 13.69 0.00% 0.21"' 13.69 

14 EJcctromures SA, 0.70% 200.32 0.38% 17.30 0.00!1 0.27% 17.30 

15 Triom Vietnam Comp.i!ny limited 0.46% 132.16 0.14!1 6.33 0 .00% 0.10% 6.33 

16 Triom Mexico SA DE CV 0.00"-' 0,04 O.OD% 0.00% 0,0[)% 

Joint V~nture 
jln\le.stment as per equity method) 

I Varroc TYC Corporation, BVI 12.21% 3.477.10 14.93% 672.91 0.00% 10.34% 672.91 

2 Nuova CTS S.r.l 0.31% 87.86 0.39% 17.37 0.00% 0.27% 17.37 

Non·controUin.g lnterest.s In subsidiaries 0.73% 207.67 0.12% 5.19 0.02% 0.48 0.0!1% 5.67 

SUbtotal 139% 39,488.69 106% 4,797.52 0.11% 2.25 73 .77% 4.799.77 

Adju5'tment arising out of consolidation ·38.62% (11,000.97) ·6.43% (289.75) 99,89% 1,996.03 26.23% 1,706.28 

Tott•l 1011"'-' 28,497.72 100.00% 4,507.77 lOO.OO% 1.998.28 100.00% 6,506.05 



Varroc Engineering Limited 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
Note 48 C: Additional Information pursuant to para 2 of general Instructions for the preparation of consolldated financial statements 

For the year ended March 31 2017 (Restated) 
' (nJ ln nllll u) u 

Net assets Share In profit or loss Shore In other comprehensive Share In toto! comprehensive 

Income Income 

Sr. no. Name of the entity In the group as %of Amount as%of Amount as% of consolidated Amount as% of conso lidoted Amount 

consolidated consolidated other total comprehensive 

net assets profit or loss comprehensive Income 

Income 

Parent 

Varroc Engineering limited 42 .95% 9,472.42 13.40% 420.04 2.58% (22.23) 17.50% 397.81 

Indian Subsidiaries 

1 Varroc Polymers Private Limited 36.43% 8,035.40 9.19% 288.20 -102.54% 883.78 51.56% 1,171.98 
2 Durovalves India Private Limited 3.26% 719.91 0.44% 13.72 0.27% (2.36) 0.50% 11.36 
3 Varroc Lighting Systems (India) Private Limited 1.94% 428.27 5.96% 186.68 0.27% (2 .29) 8.11% 184.39 

Foreign Subsidiaries 

1 VarrocCorp Holding 8.V. 12.85% 2,833.63 6.84% 214.49 0.00% 9.44% 214.49 
2 Varroc Lighting Systems S.R.O. 39.75% 8,766.06 72 .6S% 2,277.52 0.00% 100.20% 2,277.52 
3 Varroc Lighting Systems S.de.R.L.de.C.V. ·4.26% (939.98) ·17.51% (548.80) ·0.58% 5.00 -23.92% -543.80 
4 Varroc Lighting Systems INC 10.49% 2,313.78 -12.02% (376.67) 0.00% - -16.57% -376.67 
5 Varroc Lighting Systems GmBH ·0.57% (126.53) 1.16% 36.37 ·0.78% 6.71 1.90% 43.08 

6 Varroc European Holding B.V. ·3.16% (697.06) ·11.17% (350.06) 0.00% - - 15.40% ·350.06 
7 Industria Meccanica e Stampaggio 5.p.A. 0.60% 132.22 -6.63% (207.84) 1.91% (16.45) ·9.87% ·224.29 
8 Aries Mentor Holding BV 1.67% 368.84 ·0.73% (22.76) 0.00% ·1.00% ·22.76 
9 TRI.O.M. S.p.A. 2.81% 620.41 0.17% 5.23 0.58% (5.00) 0.01% 0.23 
10 Electromures SA, 0.72% 159.85 0.11% 3.32 0.00% - 0.15% 3.32 
1l Triom Vietnam Company Limited 0.57% 124.68 0.25% 7.74 0.00% 0.34% 7.74 
12 Trlom Mexico SA DE CV 0.00% 0.03 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% 
13 Esex Forging s.r.l. (under liquidation) 0.00% 0.39% 12.11 0.00% - 0.53% 12.11 
14 Varroc Japan Limited 0.01% 2.12 0.07% 2.15 0.00% - 0.09% 2.15 

Joint Venture 

(Investment as per equity method) 

1 Varroc TYC Corporation, BVI 12.9% 2,842.91 24 .89% 780.40 0.00% 34.33% 780.40 
2 Nueva CTS 5.r.l 0.4% 84.16 0.06% 1.74 0.00% 0.08% 1.74 
3 Varroc Elastomers Private limited 0.0% 0.31% 9.71 0.00% 0.43% 9.71 

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries 0.91% 201.60 0.12% 3.83 ·0.07% 0.64 0.20% 4.47 

Subtotal 160.25% 35,342.72 87.95% 2,757.12 ·98.37% 847.80 158.60% 3,604 .92 

Adjustment arising out of consolidation ·60.25% (13,287.38) 12.05% 377.71 198.37% (1,709.65) -58.60% (1,331.94) 

Total 100.00% 22,0S5.34 100.00% 3,134.83 100.00% (861.85) 100.00% 2,272.98 



Varroc Enalnt~t~r lna Umlted 

Notal to the conaolldatad fln1nclalatataman1 

Nota 49: Related Parw Olacloaura. 

•· Ra'-tad p1rtla1 and their relatlonahlp& 

1 Joint Ventures 

2 Koy Mlnllaomont Pononnol 

3 AclaUvos of Key Manaat!ment Personnel 

with whom transactions have taken place 

4 Enterprises Owned or controlled by koy management personnel 

and/or their relatives with whom transactions have taken place 

b. Transactions with related p1rtles 

Cc5erlpt!an of the nature of transactions 

AI Sale of coods SSIYk C'S 11nd find •nets• 
Endurance Technologies limited 

Varroc T'tC Auto Lamps Co. Limited 

Varroc Elastomers Private Limited 

Nuova CTS S.r.l 

Tarans Jain (refer note below) 

8 ) Purchase of aoods services and fixed assets • 

Varrcc (lastcmers Private Limited 

Nueva CTS S.r.l 

Varroc TYC Auto Lamps Co. Limited, 

C) Royalty recclviCd 

V1moc:TYC Auto Lamps Co, Lim ited. 1 

0] Profeulonalcharaes!·~lf?lt71SI67) 
Mr, Naresh Chandra 

Mr. Gautam Khandelwal(w.e.f. July 20, 2017) 
Mr. Marc Szulewicz(w.e.f. July 20, 2017) 

Mn. Vljaya Sam path (w.e.f. July 20, 2017) 

Mr. Vinish Kathuria (w.e.(. February 06, 2018) 

E) Manuement consultancy fees received 

Varroc Elastomers Private limited. 

F) Interest paid 

Nuova CTS S.r.l 

G) plrteton fees p111d 

Mr. Naresh Chandra 

Mr. Gautam Khandelwal 
Mr. Marc Szulewicz 

Mrs. Vijaya Sam path 

Mr. Vlnish Kathuria (w.e,f. February 06, 2018) 

HI Rd mburesemMt of lnitiill Public Otfet SJ!ipsntts !Receivable) 

Mr. TarangJain 

Oivlde!nd p:~ld 

Mr. Tarang Jain 

Mr. Naresh Chandra 

Mrs. Suman Jain 

Mr.ArjunJain 

Mr. OhruvJain 

TJ Holdings Trust 

Narn h Chandra Holdings Trust 

Sum.an Jain Holdings Trust 

J] MIOI It!riill remunl!!n t ion p 

Mr. TaraneJain 

Mr. Arjun Jain· (until February 6, 2018) 

Mr. Ashwani Maheshwari 

k1 Re:mun•l'illtion It 

Mr. Arjun Jain (w.e.f. February 7, 1018) 

Mrs. Rochana Jain 

L] Lo~n taken/rep.a!d net 

Nueva CTS S.r.l 

MJ Dividend reesfysd 
Varroc Elastomers Private Limited. 

Varroc TYC Auto Lamps Co . Limited. 

Nuova CTS S.r.l 

N'J Re.im bt.ars.emtnt of•xpe!nses- rrufVed! 

Nuova CTS S,r.l, Italy 
Varroc TYC Corpora lion, British VI rain Islands 

Vtrroc TYC Auto limps Co. Ltd., Chin• (Subsidiary of V.arroc TYC Cort~otatlon , DVI) 
V1rroc TYC Auto Lamps Co . Ltd . CQ, China (Subsidiary of Varroc TYC Auto Lamps Co 

Lid China} 
Varroc Elntomors Private LlmUod (w.o.t. Occombor 1, 2014 until March 15, 2017) 

Mr, Tlfana Jain · M anaalna Directo r 

Wholo Time 0/ractort 

Mr. Arjun J•ln (until February OG, 2018) 

Mr. A\hwanl Mlhcshwarl 

Non-uecutlva Directors 

Mr. Narosh Chandra (w.e.f. May 11, l1J88) 

Mr. Gautam l<handolwal (w.o.r. July 20, 2017) 

Mr. P1dman1bh Sinha (w.e.r. March 27, 201.-tJ 

Mr. L.S. Mlnlyar (until July 10, 2017) 

Independent Directors 

Mr. G.autam l<handclwal (w.e.r. July 20, 2017) 

Mr. Marc Szulewlcz (w.e.r. July 20, 2017) 

Mrs. Vljaya Sampath (w.eJ. July 20, 2017) 
Mr. Vlnlsh l<athurl D (w.o.f. Febru1ry 06, 2018) 

Mrs. Suman Jain 

Mrs. RochanaJain 

Mr. Arjun Jain (w.c.f. February07, 2018) 

Mr, Dhruv Jain 

Endurance Technologies Limited 
TarangJ:~In (HUF) 

V-.rroc Tudlna Prlv-.te Limited. (Until October 10, 2016) 

TJ Holdings Trust 

Naresh Chandra Holdings Trust 

Suman Jain Holdings Trust 

(Rs.ln M IUion) 

Volume of tnmnctlons 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

91.35 
45.46 

2.97 

83.00 

142.39 
6,96 

153.63 

0.57 

2.70 

3.70 

2.90 

0.68 

0.21 

0.80 
0,30 

0.60 

0.20 

12.94 

25.40 

16.93 

5.00 

5.00 

76.92 

4.64 

14.74 

0.96 

7.93 

7.42 

243.87 

7.54 

, ........ ) 
63 .92 

34.54 

184.88 

80.03 

2.81 

110.89 

0.57 

15.75 

0.22 

0.21 
0,10 

24.10 

5.40 

4.04 

65.87 

4.80 

13.32 

6.56 

2.66 

199.69 

Asal March 31, 1018 

8.11 
74.12: 

0.23 

70.90 

12.94 

2S.12 
0.48 

2.70 

3.70 

2.90 
0.68 

2.44 

As at March 31,2017 
{Restilted) 

3.75 

62.31 

12.94 

18.02 
4.36 

2.06 

6.86 

...---. • Varrcc TYCAutoLampsCo. Limlted, - 538 • • • • ~ 

\\l.eed/} ··~ co Charterect 
l'\.~,,~~ . .61. &> - . ' .~ ~ --1'c. ~'\J) ~·~ evoDIUC!:Sinclusweoftaxestfany. Cr .- ) \ -4 t.._ '-~ v ... o;. Ou 0 

(.(J ~ unt bottlowroundmgoffnorm adopted by the Company. ..,.s.y V' ·-~ oc;. 
U N .Q.r Ui lY and compensated absences are computed for all the employees m aggregate, the amount relatmg to the key managerial personnel, cannot be lndl\lidualtv 

1 
tn':--Tt'ef 'v ~ I} 

Q No%!!13 pres.tnt sale proceeds of sale of property w1th a book value of Rs 82 69 M11/10n fl "" ~ 
\...- ~ 0 ~It year ended March 31, 2017 the company has tssued 851,359 Senes B CCPS and 1,168,377 Senes C CCPS as bonus shares to key managerral personnel and t r r~a ve ~ S 
"'o""" S ently dunng the current year Senes B CCPS have been converted tnto equ1ty shares based on the terms of the agreement, refer note 18. - .,.. (1"" ,...._0; ,.... 
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Varroc Engineering Limited 

Notes to the consolidated financial statement 

Note SO : Capital and other Commitments 

(a) Capital commitments 

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows: 

(Rs. in Million) 

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 

(Restated) 

Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on 3,717.59 1,457.43 

capital account and not provided for (Net of advances) 

(b) Rental expense relating to operating leases 
(Rs. in Million) 

Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31, 

2018 2017 

(Restated) 

Minimum lease payments 338.33 271.73 

Total rental expense relating to operating leases 338.33 271.73 



Varroc Engineering Limited 

Notes to the consolidated financial statement 
Note 51- Earnings per shares 

Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31, 

2018 2017 
(Restated) 

Earnings per share (EPS) 

Basic 

Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders (Rs. in Million) 4,502.58 3,131.00 
Less: Dividend on compulsory convertible preference shares* . -
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs. in Million) (A) 4,502.58 3,131.00 
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (without considering impact of shares 10,925,028 
split)** 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (after considering impact 134,811,530 109,250,280 
of shares split) (B) Refer note 18 (g) 

Basic EPS (Amount in Rs.) {A/B) 33.40 28.66 

Diluted 

Profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs. in Million) 4,502.58 3,131.00 

Add/( Less): Imputed interest and changes in cash flow estimates on liability portion of CCPS . 41.60 
(Rs. in Million) 

Profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs. in Million) (C) 4,502.58 3,172.60 

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in 134,811,530 109,250,280 
calculating basic earnings per share 

Add: Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of compulsorily . 3,643,700 
convertible preference shares 

Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as the 134,811,530 112,893,980 
denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share (D) 

Diluted EPS (Amount in Rs.) {C/D) 33.40 28.10 

Basic earnings per share (Amount in Rs.) 33.40 28.66 
Diluted earnings per share (Amount in Rs.) 33.40 28.10 

*Amount below round1ng off norm adopted by the Group. 

**Note :During the year, face value per Equity Share and Preference Share have been sub divided from Rs. 10 toRe. 1. Further authorised share 

capital of the Company was reclassified from Rs. 500 Million consisting of Rs. 165 Million (165,000,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/· each) and Rs. 335 
Million (335,000,000 Preference Shares of Re. 1/- each) toRs. 250 Million (250,000,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each) and Rs. 250 Million 

(Consisting of 250,000,000 Preference Shares of Re. 1/- each). 



Varroc Engineering Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 

Note 52 : Contingent liabilities 
(Rs. in Million) 

Contingent liabilities not provided for March 31,2017 
March 31, 2018 

(Restated) 

a) Claim against the group not acknowledged as debt 
Disputed Exr.lsP. nnri Sl?rvlce Tax matt em 160.65 1117.!7 
h1CClllll! Til A lll..tlll:'l~ 124.59 
Sales Tax m~ttllr& 43.11 !:!:l.::lo 

b) Other money for which the Group is contingently liable 30.78 29.86 
c) Others 120.76 88.35 



Varroc Engineering Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 

Note 53 - Assets pledged as security 
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are: 

(Rs. in Million) 
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

Current 
Financial assets 

Investments 0.10 -
Trade receivables 14,027.34 11,086.37 

Cash and bank balances 2,663.07 3,026.43 

Loan 40.07 42.29 

Other financial assets 2,240.60 2,374.83 

Non-financial assets 

Inventories 5,881.81 4,293.97 

Other current assets 1,651.33 1,585.06 

Total current assets pledged as security 26,504.32 22,408.95 

Non-current 

Investments 0.20 -

Loans 56.90 -

Other financial assets 316.27 433.49 

Other non-current assets 1,310.94 287.26 

PPE, CWIP and Intangible Asset 22,031.85 17,338.11 
Total non-currents assets pledged as security 23,716.16 18,058.86 

Total assets pledged as security 50,220.48 40,467.81 



Varroc Engineering Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 

Note 54: Disclosures as required as per lnd AS 17- 'Accounting for Leases' 

The group leases various offices and warehouses under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within two 

to eight years. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of 

the leases are renegotiated. Lease payments in respect of operating leases included in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018 Rs. 338.33 Million (March 31, 2017 Rs. 271.73 Million). 

(Rs. in Million) 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2018 2017 
(Restat ed) 

(A) Non cancellable operating leases : 

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non-

cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: 

Not Later than one year 96.24 86.57 

Later than one year and not later than five years 262.82 166.18 
Later than five years 88.40 -

Total (A ) 447.46 252.75 

(B) Finance leases : The Group has taken certain plant and 

machinery on finance lease. The disclosure as required by lnd AS 
17 is as follows: 

(a) Minimum future Finance lease payments 

Not Later than one year 62.41 53.95 

Later than one year and not later than five years 129.14 158.19 
Later than five years - -

Total (a) 191.55 212.14 

(b) Present value of minimum lease rentals payable 

Not later than one year 58.97 48.01 

Later than one year but not later than five years 122.93 153.19 
Later than five years - -

Total (b) 181.90 201.20 

c) Reconciliation of minimum lease payments and present value 

Minimum lease rentals payable as per (a) above 191.55 212.14 

Less: Finance charges to be recognized in subsequent years. 9.65 10.94 

Present value of minimum lease rentals payable as per (b) 
above. 181.90 201.20 

Apart from the above, some of land and building located in Czech Republic and India is taken on finance lease. 

The total obligation towards the lease payments has been made in advance as on the date of Balance Sheet. 



Varroc Engineering Limited 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 

Note 55 : Interests In joint ventures 

Set out below are the joint ventures of the group as at 31 March 2018 which, In the opinion of the directors, are material to the group. 

(Rs In Million) 

Name of entity Place of business % of ownership Relationship Accounting Carrying Value 

method As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 

(Restated) 

Varroc TYC Corporation, BVI and its China/British SO% Joint Venture Equity Method 3,477.10 2,842.91 

subsidiaries Virgin Islands 

Nueva CTS S.r.l Italy SO% Joint Venture Equity Method 87.86 84.16 

Varroc Elastomers Pvt. Ltd. [refer India 51% Joint Venture Equity Method 

note 56(2)) 

Total 3,564.96 2,927.07 

The joint venture entities are primarily engaged in the business of auto components and services in the automotive industry. 

Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of joint ventures 

(Rs in Million) 

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 

Particulars (Restated) 

Commitments - joint ventures 64.57 82.35 



Varroc Engineering Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 

Note 55 : Interests in joint ventures 

Summarised financial information for joint ventures 

The summarised financial information for joint ventures disclosed below, reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant joint ventures and not Varroc's share of those 
amounts. 

Summarised balance sheet 

Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other assets 

Total current assets 

Total non-current assets 

Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) 

Other liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) 

Other liabilities 

Total non-current liabilities 

Net assets 

(i) Summarised statement of profit and loss 

Revenue 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Interest expense 

Income tax expense 

Profit for the period 

Other comprehensive 

Total comprehensive 

Dividends received 

Varroc TYC Corporation, BVI 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 2017 
2018 (Restated) 

1,204.76 1,563.75 

6,336.32 6,514.53 

7,541.08 8,078.28 

4,372.42 3,679.37 

1,552.88 1,287.36 

3,246.46 4,050.74 

4,799.34 5,338.10 

- 837.19 

222.16 198.01 

222.16 1,035.20 

6,892.00 5,384.35 

Varroc TYC Corporation, BVI 

For the year ended I For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 

(Restated) 

12,286.55 15,338.60 

419.30 378.71 

60.20 120.10 

102.96 291.14 

1,345.81 1,560.80 

410.31 . 
1,756.12 1,560.80 

243.87 199.70 

Nova CTS sri 

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 
(Restated) 

47.09 10.55 

39.94 38.05 
87.03 48.60 

1.76 0.70 

- -
35.26 13.80 

35.26 13.80 

- -

7.16 6.60 

7.16 6.60 

46.37 28.90 

Nova CTS sri 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 

(Restated) 

157.90 91.86 

0.40 0.29 

13.49 1 0.24 

34.73 3.48 

(12.24) 

22.49 I 3.48 

7.54 

(Rs. in Million) 
Varroc Elastomers Private Limited 

[refer note 56(2)] 
As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 

(Restated) 

- -
- -

- -
- -

- -
- -

. . 

- -
- -
- -
- -

(Rs. in Million) 
Varroc Elastomers Private Limited 

[refer note 56(2)] 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2017 

(Restated) 

589.49 

24.36 
5.10 

9.17 

19.09 

19.09 

I 



Varroc Engineering Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 

Note 55 : Interests in joint ventures 
(ii) Reconciliation of carrying amounts 

(Rs. in Million) 
Varroc TYC Corporation, BVI Nova CTS sri 

As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2018 2017 2018 2017 

(Restated) (Restated) 

Closing net assets 6,892.00 5,623.62 46.37 38.97 

Group's share in% SO% SO% SO% SO% 

Group's share in INR 3,446.00 2,811.81 23.19 19.49 

Goodwill 31.10 31.10 64.67 64.67 

Carrying amount 3,477.10 ·- 2,842.91 _ _ _ 87.~-- __ 84.1~ 

! 



Varroc Engineering Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 

Note 56 liquidation and sale of shares in jointly controlled entities: 

1 liquidation of Esex Forging sri: 

One of the foreign step-down subsidiaries of the Company, Esex Forging s.r.l. has been liquidated with effect from 
29th March 2017, as per the communication received from the Chamber of Commerce, Milan. 
The group's shares in total assets, net assets, revenues and in the profit and loss for the year are as under: 

(Rs. in Million) 
Particulars March 31, 2017 

(Restated) 

Total assets -
Net assets -
Profit /(Loss) before tax 12.65 

2 Varroc Elastomers Private limited : 

During the financial year 2016-17 the group has sold 484,500 equity shares held in joint venture (Varroc Elastomers 
Private Limited) for a total consideration of Rs. 115.8 Million. 

Note 57 Construction contracts: 

(a) Consolidated Statement of profit or loss 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018 

Contract revenue 5,907.13 
Contract costs 5,159.51 

(b) Consolidated Balance Sheet 

As at March 31, 2018 

Financial assets 
Trade receivables 892.46 
Other financial assets- current 2,409.12 
Other financial assets- non-current 177.56 

Financial liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 903.44 

(c) Amounts due from I (to) customers under construction contracts 
The net balance sheet position for ongoing construction contracts is as follows: 

• 
March 31, 2018 

Amounts due from customers for contract work 2,586.68 
Amounts due to customers for contract work 903.44 

(Rs. in Million) 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2017 
(Restated) 

6,196.25 
5,133.86 

(Rs. in Million) 
As at March 31, 2017 

(Restated) 

742.50 
2,652.31 

620.55 

384.75 

(Rs. in Million) 
March 31, 2017 

(Restated) 

3,272.86 
384.75 



Note 58~ Business combination 

Summary of acquisition 

Varroc Enslnoorlng llmltod 
Notes to tho consolldutod financial statements 

1) On November 30, 2017, Vilrroc Polymers Prlv;:,to Limited, a wholly owned subsldl•nv of the Company acquired controllfnR lntorcs.t In Team Concepts Private Limited. The entity Is engaged In tile business of 

manufacture and sale of iluto ilcccssorlcs and Is recognized as il premium Jute accessories monufilcturcr amana OEMs and after market. 

Given the recent acquisition, the fair vJiuc of purchilsc consldcriltlon of Rs SS9.GO Million (Including redemption liability of non controlling Interest) hils been illlocatcd to assets and liabilities on il provisional 

bilsls as per lnd 1\S 103, Business combiMlfons. 

The Group expects to flnallle the ralr voluo or tho Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at tho acquisition dato within the measurement period or 12 months. 

(Rs. In Million) 
The assets end liabilities recognised os D result of the acquisition as at tha ocqufsltlon dote ora as follows· 

Team Concept Privata Umltcd 

(TCPL) 
(Fair Volua) 

Non Current Assets 

Property Plant & Equipment 128.08 
Intangible ilsscts 230.31 

Non Current Financial Assets 

Other nnanclal assets 0.82 
Current Asset 

Inventories 29.9~ 

Financial Assets 

Trade receivables 79.30 
Cash and cash equivalents 1~.3~ 

Other current as.sets 10.15 
Tot·al Asset 492.94 

Non-current liabl l itl~s 

Other financial liabilities 
Provisions 1.15 

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 77.33 
Current liabilities 

Financial Uabmtles 

Trade payables 18.04 
Provisions 3.32 
Current tax llabflltles (Net) 9.57 
Other cu rrent llilbil lt jes 7.83 
Totalllabllltles 117.24 

Net Identifiable asset acquired 375.70 

Calculation of pro'lislonal goodwtfl 

hir value of consideration ( Including cash paid and redemption liability) 559.60 
Less: Net identifiable assets acquired (375.70) 
Provisional Goodwill 183.90 

The provisional goodwill recognized in connection with the acquisition is primarily attributable to anticipated synergies from future growth. 

The revenue and profit after tax of tile entity, for the period of four months ended Marcil 31, 2018, Consolidated in the financial statements is as follows: 

Revenue: Rs. 93.00 million, Profit for the period: Rs. 24.29 million. 

2) Our Subsidiary, VarrocCorp Holding B.V., has entered into a Share Purchase Agreement dated May 30, 2018 for acquiring 100% shareholding in a company engaged in the manufacture and sale of exterior 

automotive lighting components used In four wheelers based in Turkey for a consideration of Euro 43 million, subject to adjustment as per the terms of the said Agreement. The completion of the transaction 

Is subject to fulfilment of the closing conditions as specified in the said Aereement including receiving approval from the Turkish competition authority which is currently pending with the authority. 



Note 59: Disclosure on speclffed bank notes (SBNs) 

Curing the previous year, the Group had specified b;mk notes or other denomlniJtiDn note ilS defined In the MCA notification G.S.R. 30S(E) doted March 31, 2017 on tho details of Specified Bank Notes (SON) 
held 01nd tr;:msacted during the period from November 8, 2016 to Oetember, 30 2016, the dcnomlniJtlon wise SBNs and other notes as per the notlrlc:~tlon Is given below: 

Amount In Indian Rupees 
Particulars SON$• Other denomln;~tfon currency Total 
Closing cash ln h11nd as on November 8, 2016 2,224,820 230,706 2,455,S2G 
(+)Permitted receipts 2,531,214 2,531,214 
(·)Permitted payments 1,683,323 1,683,323 
I·) Non Permitted payments 
(·)Amount deposited in Banks 2,224,820 61 ,350 2,2a6,170 
Closing cash In h1u1d as on December- 30, 2016 1,017,247 1,017, 247 

• For the purposes of this clause, the term 'Specified Bank Notes' shall have the same meaning provided In the notification of the Government of India, In the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic 
Affo:~irs number S.O. 3407(E), dated the November 8, 2016. ' 

The notes are an lnteer-:JI pillrt of tht-u~ financial statements 
As per our report of even date 

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP 
Cht~,tcred Accountants 

firm Registration No: 304026E/E·300009 

AMITBORKAR 
Partnor 
Membe.-s.hfp No : 109846 

Pbce: P~ 
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BOARD'S REPORT 

Dear Shareholders, 

The Directors of your Company take pleasure in presenting the Thirtieth Annual Report on the business 
and operations of the Company together with financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 
2018. 

1. Financial results & appropriations 

a. Financial results 
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Revenue from operations 20,954.75 18,120.53 1,03,784.57 96,085.40 

Total Income 21,242.46 18,445.04 1,04,170.67 97,022.69 

Profit before finance cost, depreciation, 
exceptional items and extraordinary 2,469.21 1,931.46 9,161.76 6,754.84 
expenses {EBITDA) 

Depreciation and amortization (-) 1,016.11 962.82 3,864.65 3,370.83 

Finance cost(-) 401.50 468.50 861.70 903.96 

Share of Net Profit of Investment - - 690.27 791.88 
accounted for using the equity Method 
(+} 
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,051.60 500.14 5,125.68 3,271.93 

Current tax expense (-) 232.97 110.99 1161.10 473.42 

Deferred tax (-) 120.33 -30.89 -543.19 -336.32 

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 698.30 420.04 4,507.77 3,134.83 

Less: Profit attributable to Non- - - 5.19 3.83 
controlling interest 

Profit attributable to owners of the 698.30 420.04 4,502.58 3,131.00 

Company 
Add: Profit brought forward from last 1,182.23 1,015.09 5,135.42 2,275.61 

_year 
Add: Re-measurements of defined 10.82 -8.04 -4.89 -25.28 
benefit plans, net of tax 

Less: Transfer to Debenture - -200 -125 -200 
Redemption Reserve (ORR) 

Add: On Account of Capital Reduction - - -205.95 -
Appropriation: Dividend on Equity -61.56 -40.25 -61.56 -40.25 
SharcG 
Tax on Dividend -11.19 -4.61 -11.19 -4.61 

Balance carried forward in Balance 1,818.60 1,182.23 9,639.98 5,135.42 
Sheet 



b. Company's Performance 

During the financial year 2017-18, on a consolidated basis Varroc Group achieved revenue of~ 103,784.6 
million as compared to ~ 96,085.4 million in the previous year- a growth of 8 %. Profit after tax of the 
group for the year stood at~ 4,507.8 million as against~ 3,134.8 million in the previous year- a growth 
of43.8%. 

Revenue from operations on standalone basis increased to ~ 20,954.8 million as against ~ 18,120.5 
million in the previous year- a growth of 15.6%. The profit after tax for the current year is~ 698.3 million 
as against~ 420.0 million in the previous year- a growth of 66.2%. 

c. Dividend and transfer to reserve 

The Board of Directors vide its circular resolution dated March 08, 2018 declared and paid Interim 
Dividend@ SO% (50 paise per share) on equity shares of~ 1 for the Financial Year 2017-18. 

The Board of Directors vide its resolution dated April 20, 2018 declared and paid Interim Dividend on 
0.0001% Series C Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (Series C CCPS) on fully diluted basis along 
with equity shares. 

The total cash outflow on account of interim dividend on Equity and Preference shares was~ 67.4 million. 
The Board recommends that the interim dividend, which was already declared and paid, be considered as 
the final dividend for the Financial Year 2017-18. The Board of Directors has considered it appropriate 
not to transfer any amount to the General Reserve before declaration of Dividend. 

d. Credit Rating 

D.uring the year under review the credit rating of the Company's short term and long-term debt was 
maintained by ICRA at 'ICRA AA-(Stable)' for long term loan and 'ICRA A1 +'for short term loan. 

In May, 2018 ICRA upgraded the outlook on the ratings for the Company's long term borrowing to 'AA­
(Positive)' and maintained ratings for short term borrowings at 'ICRA A1+'. 

e. Details of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial 
Statements 

Adequate internal control systems commensurate with the nature of the Company's business and size 
and complexity of its operations have been developed with the help of independent expert agency and 
the same are operating satisfactorily. Internal control systems consisting of policies and procedures are 
designed to ensure accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, timely feedback on achievement of operational and strategic goals, 
compliance with policies, procedure, applicable laws and regulations and that all assets and resources are 
acquired economically, used efficiently and adequately protected. 

The internal financial control with reference to the financial statements were adequate and operating 
effectively as endorsed by statutory auditors in their report. 



f. Details in respect of frauds reported by Auditors 

During the year under review, there have not been any instances of fraud and accordingly, the Statutory 
Auditors have not reported any frauds either to the Audit Committee or to the Board under Section 
143(12) of the Act. 

2. Industry Outlook and Business Overview 

Details on economic outlook, industrial outlook, business overview and SWOT analysis of the company is 
covered in the Management Discussion and Analysis report. 

3. Financial Information and Disclosures 

a. Report on Performance of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture 
Companies 

Your Company has 22 subsidiaries and 4 joint ventures companies as on March 31, 2018. During the year, 
the Board of Directors (the Board) reviewed the affairs of material subsidiaries. In accordance with 
Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has prepared consolidated financial statements 
ofthe Company and all its subsidiaries, which forms part of the Annual Report. Further, the report on the 
performance and financial position of each of the subsidiary and joint venture and salient features of the 
financial statements are provided in the prescribed Form AOC-1 and it forms part of the Financial 
Statements of the Company. 

During the year under review, Varroc Lighting Systems SA, Morocco and Varroc Lighting Systems 
S.p.z.o.o., Poland were incorporated as stepdown subsidiary companies under VarrocCorp Holding B.V., 
Nehterland, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company with a purpose of setting up of new 
manufacturing facilities for automotive lighting and to provide technical support through research and 
development activities and engineering services. 

During the year under review, the overseas wholly Owned Subsidiary VarrocCorp Holding B.V. has 
acquired a bare shell company "Lang MEKRA Engenharia Avancada Ltda" (renamed as Varroc Do Brasil 
Comercio, lmporta!;ao E Exporta!;ao De Maquinas, Equipamento E Pe!;as LTDA.) for setting up of 
manufacturing facility in Brazil for automotive lighting business to cater north American markets. 

Further, the Company through its wholly owned subsidiary Varroc Polymers Pvt. Ltd. has acquired 90% 
stake in Bangalore based Company Team Concepts Pvt. Ltd. engaged in the business of manufacturing 
and supply of automotive accessories and components for 4 wheelers. 

Further, the Company has partnered with Deii'Orto S.p.A., Italy for equal co-ownership of IP rights of 
electronic fuel injection system and signed a Joint Venture Agreement for setting up 50:50 joint venture 
company for manufacturing and sale of electronic fuel injection system mainly for two wheelers in India. 
In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial statements, including 
the consolidated financial statements and related information of the Company and audited financial 
statements of each of the subsidiary will be available on website www.varrocgroup.com. These 
documents will also be available for inspection during business hours at the registered office of the 
Company. Copy of these financial statements shall be made available to any Member of the Company, on 
request. 



Details of subsidiaries and joint ventures of the Company and their performance are covered In 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming part of this Annual Report. 

b. Conversion of Company to Public Limited Company 

Your Company was converted from private limited to public limited as per the resolution passed by the 
members of the Company, at their Extra-ordinary General Meeting ("EoGM") held on January 25, 2018 
and a fresh certificate of incorporate was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai on 
February OS, 2018. Subsequently, under the Offer for Sale through Initial Public Offer, the shares of 
Company were admitted for listing and trading on the National Stock Exchange of India and The BSE 
Limited. 

Consequently, the status of the Company has changed to listed company. 

c. Share Capital 

During the year under review, following corporate actions were executed resulting in change in 
authorised and paid-up share capital of the Company. 

i) Scheme of Capital Reduction 

As per the order passed by the National Company Law Board Tribunal ("NCLT") on November 9, 2017 
approving the scheme of capital reduction under erstwhile section 100 to 104 of the Companies 
Act,1956 (Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013) the issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the 
Company was reduced by cancellation of 852,349 equity shares of ~10 each, held by Varroc Polymers 
Pvt. Ltd., without any payment. The said order of NCLT filed with the Registrar of Companies, 
Maharashtra, Mumbai was approved on January 15, 2018. 

(ii) Conversion of Preference Shares 

As per the terms of issue of Series Band Series C 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 
8,52,349 equity share of ~10 each and 1,16,83,770 equity shares of ~ 1 each were allotted to 
Mr.Tarang Jain on February 06, 2018 and May 31, 2018 respectively. 

(iii) Restructuring of Share Capital 

During the year under review, the share capital of the Company was sub-divided from equity shares 
and preference shares of ~10 each into equity shares and preference shares of '1 each with effect 
from January 25, 2018. Simultaneously, the authorised share capital of the Company was reclassified 
from ~50,00,00,000 comprising of 16,50,00,000 Equity Shares and 33,50,00,000 Preference Shares to 
~ 50,00,00,000 comprising of~ 25,00,00,000 divided into 25,00,00,000 Equity Shares of~ 1 each and 
Rs. 25,00,00,000 divided into 25,00,00,000 Preference Shares of Rel each. The paid-up equity share 
capital of the Company as on March 31, 7018 was~ 13,48,11,530. 

d. Fixed Deposits 

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. 



e. Disclosures under Section 134(3)(1) of the Companies act, 2013- Material 
Changes and Commitment 

As per share purchase agreement signed on May 30, 2018 VarrocCorp Holdings BV, wholly owned 
subsidiary has acquired SA-BA Endiistriyel Orunler imalat ve Ticaret Anonim irketi, a Turkey based 
company engaged in the business of manufacturing and supply of automotive lighting for four 
wheelers along with its wholly owned subsidiary company in Bulgaria at an aggregate consideration of 
Euro 43 million. The acquisition was partly funded by borrowed funds and partly by internal accruals. 
The closing conditions, including approval of competition commission were completed on June 30, 
2018. No other material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 
occurred between the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate and on the 
date of this report. 

f. Disclosure regarding significant and material orders passed by regulators or 
Courts or Tribunal 

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or 
courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future. 

g. Particulars of contracts or arrangements made with Related Parties 

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm's length 
basis and in the ordinary course of the business. There are no materially significant related party 
transactions made by the company with Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated 
persons which may have potential conflict with interest of the company at large. 

h. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments 

Particulars of loans, guarantees, investments and securities provided during the financial year under 
review along with the purposes of such loans, guarantees and securities is given in Annexure Ill to this 
report. 

i. Disclosure under Section 43{a)(ii) of The Companies Act, 2013 

The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no information as per 
provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debenture) Rules, 2014 is required to be furnished. 

j. Disclosure under Section 54(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013 

The Company has not issued ilny sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no 
information as per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies 
(Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is required to be furnished. 



k. Disclosure under Section 62(1}(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 

The Company has not issued any equity shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme during the year 
under review and hence no information as per provisions of Section 62{1)(b) of the Act read with Rule 
12{9) ofthe Companies {Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is required to be furnished. 

I. Disclosure under Section 67(3) of The Companies Act, 2013 

During the year under review, there were no instances of non-exercising of voting rights in respect of 
shares purchased directly by employees under a scheme pursuant to Section 67{3} ofthe Act read with 
Rule 16{4} of Companies {Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014. 

4. Disclosures related to Board, Committees, Remuneration and Policies 

a. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

Mr. Tarang Jain retires by rotation and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment. Information in 
respect of Mr. Tarang Jain is provided in the notice of the Annual General Meeting. On conversion of 
the Company from private limited to public limited, Mr. Tarang Jain and Mr. Ashwani Maheshwari were 
re-appointed as Managing Director and Whole-time director respectively and Mr. Vinish Kathuria was 
appointed as Additional Director/Independent Director w.e.f. February 06,2018 and their terms of 
appointment, including remuneration, were subsequently approved by special resolutions passed at the 
extra ordinary general meeting of the Company held on February 13, 2018. In addition, Mr. Vinish 
Kathuria was appointed as Additional Director/Independent Director w.e.f. February 06, 2018 by the 
Board of Director on February 06,2018 and later on his appointment as independent director for a term 
of 3 years was ratified by the members of the Company on February 13, 2018. 

Appointment of Mr. T. R. Srinivasan, Group CFO and Mr. Rakesh Darji, Company Secretary as key 
managerial personnel of the Company as required under Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 was 
confirmed at the Board meeting held on February 06, 2018. Mr. Tarang Jain, Mr. Ashwani Maheshwari 
and Mr. Arjun Jain by virtue of their position will also be considered as key management personnel. 

Mr. Arjun Jain had stepped down as director of the Company on February 06, 2018. He has been re­
inducted to the Board as Additional Director/Whole-time Director by the Board on August 08, 2018. The 
Company has sought approval of the members by way of special resolution for his appointment as 
Whole-time Director and terms and conditions of remuneration payable to him. Mr. Padmanabh Sinha 
{DIN 00101379), Investor Nominee Director has resigned w.e.f. May 28, 2018. The Board places on 
record its sincere appreciation for the services rendered and guidance provided to the management of 
the Company during his tenure. 

In accordance with the amended requirement of Regulation 17{1A) of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India {Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 which shall come into 
force with effect from April1, 2019, Mr. Naresh Chandra {DIN 00027696) who has attained the age of 
eighty-three years consent of the members of the Company by way of special resolution is sought at the 
ensuing annual general meeting for Mr. Naresh Chandra to continue after April 1, 2019 as Non­
Executive Director and Chairman ofthe Company. 

Details of Board Meetings and Committee meetings held during the year under review attendance at 
the meetings are provided in Corporate Governance Report. 



b. Declaration by Independent Directors 

In terms of Section 149(7) of the Act, the Independent Directors have submitted their declaration 
confirming compliance with the criteria of independence as stipulated under Section 149(6) of the Act. 

c. Information on Board Meeting procedure and attendance during the Financial Year 2017-18 

The Board meetings of the Company are conducted as per the provisions of the Companies Act,2013 
and applicable Secretarial Standards. Information as mentioned in the Act and all other material 
information, as may be decided by the management, are placed for consideration of the Board. Details 
on the matters to be discussed along with relevant supporting documents, data and other information 
is also furnished in the form of detailed agenda to the Board and the Committees concerned, to enable 
directors take critical decisions and accordingly advise the management. 

Details regarding information furnished to the Board members, number of Committee and Board 
meetings held during the year along with attendance record of each director has been disclosed in the 
Corporate Governance Report of the Company. 

d. Director's Remuneration Policy and Criteria for Matters under Section 178 and Payment of 
Commission 

As stipulated under Section 178 of the Act, the Board has approved a Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy of the Company. 

The Policy documents the mechanism for appointment, cessation, evaluation and remuneration of the 
Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel and Senior Management ofthe Company. Information on the Policy and details ofthe criteria 
for determining qualifications, positive attributes and other matters in terms of Section 178 of the Act 
are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. 

The Company has not paid any Commission to Managerial Personnel during the financial year under 
review. The Company has paid in aggregate profit related commission of~ 1.05 crore to non-executive 
directors for the financial year 2017-18 which is within 1% of profit approved by the shareholders and 
details of the same are provided in Corporate Governance Report. 

e. Formal annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees 
and Directors 

This being the first financial year after Company becoming public and listed company, formal annual 
evaluation of performance of the board and its committees and directors will be conducted at the end 
offinancial year 2018-19. 

f. Directors' Responsibility Statement 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Directors, based on the representation received from the 
management, confirm that: 



(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2018, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures; 

(ii) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year 2017-18 and of the profit and loss of 
the Company for that period; 

(iii) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; (iv) the directors have prepared the 
annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

(v) the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such 
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and 

(vi) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

g. Corporate Governance 

Corporate Governance Report along with General Shareholder Information and Management Discussion 
and Analysis are included in this Annual Report 

The Managing Director and the Director and Group Chief Financial Officer have certified to the Board 
with regard to financial statements and other matters as required under Regulation 17(8} read with 
Schedule II to the Listing Regulations. 

h. Corporate Social Responsibility and CSR Policy 

Corporate Social Responsibility is an integral part of the Company's ethos and policy and it has been 
pursuing this on a sustained basis. In this endeavor, the Company has contributed funds for the CSR 
activities/project related to promoting rural and nationally recognized sports, promotion of education 
and employment enhancing vocational skills, environment sustainability and promoting art and culture. 
During the year under review the Company was required to spent ~ 9 million towards CSR activities 
agaisnt which, the Company has spent~ 18.6 million. The Annual Report on CSR activities as required to 
be given under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 has been provided in an Annexure- I to this Report. 

i. Enterprise Risk Management Policy 

The Board of Directors has approved and adopted comprehensive Enterprise Risk Management Policy 
(ERM) for the Company. 

The Enterprise Risk Management Policy is designed to manage risk within the risk threshold established 
by the Board and provide reasonable assurance over the achievement of strategic and operational 
objectives. The policy document covers the enterprise wide risk management aspects of all Business 
Units/Plants of the Company. The Policy will help in risk identification, risk measurement, define risk 
appetite and threshold limits and suggesting risk mitigation measures. The Company has with the 
professional help implemented ERM Policy by carrying out detailed risk identification, assessment and 
ranking in consultation with senior management of the Company. The process is ongoing and require 



continuous exerCise across all locations and functions of the Company. As a part of risk mitigation 
measure, the Company has implemented Compliance Management Tool across all business units and 
functions to monitor compliance of all applicable laws in India. The Audit Committee will do the periodic 
review of implementation, assessment and mitigation measures under ERM. The Chief Internal Auditor 
has been appointed as Chief Risk Officer to monitor on-going basis risk and to suggest mitigation 
measures. 

5 Auditors 

a. Statutory Auditor 

M/s. Price Waterhouse & Co., Chartered Accountants, LLP, (Firm's Registration No.304026E/E-300009) 
("PWC"), hold office up to the conclusion of the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting ('AGM'). 

PWC were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of twentieth annual 
general meeting (AGM) i.e. from 29th September, 2008 and thereafter they have been re-appointed 
every year. In terms of Section 139 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, the term of appointment of PWC as Statutory Auditors of the Company expires at the 
ensuing AGM and rotation of statutory auditor is due at AGM. 

In view of the foregoing, the Board has recommended for approval of the shareholders appointment and 
fix remuneration of M/s. S R B C & CO. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No: 324982E/ 
E300003), as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five years, from the conclusion of thirtieth 
AGM till the conclusion of thirty fifth AGM. 

The Auditor's report for the financial year 2017-18 does not contain any qualifications, reservations or 
adversary mark. The auditor's report is enclosed with the financial statements. 

b. Cost Auditor 

As per the provisions of Section 148 of the Act and Rule 3 of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 
Rules, 2014 ("the Rules"), the Company is required to maintain cost records with respect to certain 
products of the Company and get the same audited. 

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board, at its meeting held on August 07, 
2018, has appointed M/s S. R. Bhargave & Co., Cost Accountants as Cost Auditor of the Company for the 
financial year 2018-19 at a remuneration of~ 3,00,000 (Three Lakhs only). The said fee is exclusive of 
applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, which shall be payable at actuals. A 
proposal for ratification of the cost audit fee for the audit of cost records for the financial year 2018-19 
has been proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The Cost Audit Report for the financial 
year 2017-18 will be filed within the stipulated period of 30 days after it is submitted by the Cost 
Auditors. 

c. Secretarial Auditor 

In terms of the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s Uma Lodha & Co. (C.P. No.2593), Company Secretary in 
Practice, Mumbai was appointed by the Board as Secretarial Auditor to undertake the Secretarial Audit 
for the financial year 2017-18. 



The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2017-18 is annexed herewith as Annexure- II to 
this report. The report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 

6. Initial Public Offer 

The Company came out with its maiden Initial Public Offer ("I PO"} by way of Offer for Sale ("OFS"} under 
which 2,02,11,730 equity shares of~ 1 were offered to the public for subscription by promoter Mr.Tarang 
Jain (1,752,560 equity shares} and private equity investor Omega TC holdings Pte. Ltd. (16,917,130 equity 
shares} and Tata Capital Financial Services Limited (1,552,040 equity shares} at a price band of ~965 to 
~967. The IPO of the Company was subscribed 3.6 times and the equity shares of the Company were 
listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited on 06th July 2018. Post IPO, 15 % of 
the shareholding is held by public and balance 85% is held by the Promoter and Promoter group. 

As the Company's IPO was by way of OFS by shareholders, the Company did not receive any proceeds 
from the IPO and entire IPO proceeds were paid to the selling shareholders. 

7. Other Disclosures and Statutory Information 

a. Adoption of new set of Articles of Association 

Consequent upon conversion of status of the Company to 'public company' and in order to fulfil the 
listing requirements, the Company has adopted new set of Articles of Association of the Company with 
effect from March 25, 2018 

b. Policies and code adopted by the Company 

The Board of Directors has from time to time framed and approved policies as required by the Listing 
Regulations as well as under the Companies Act, 2013. These policies will be reviewed by the Board at 
periodic intervals. Some of the key policies that have been adopted are as follows: 

(i} Nomination and Remuneration Policy; (ii} Material Subsidiary Policy (iii} Policy for determination of 
materiality threshold (iv} Code for Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (v} Code of 
Conduct for Insider Trading (vi} Policy on Preservation of Information and Archival of documents (vii} 
Policy on Related Party Transactions (viii} Code of Conduct for Directors (ix} Enterprise 
Risk Management Policy (x} Whistle Blower Policy. 

The above policies are available on the Company's website on the link www.varrocgroup.com/ investor/ 
investor-relations. 

c. Disclosure under code of conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and Fair 
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information 

In terms of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading} Regulations, 2015, the Company has adopted a 'Code 
of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading' ("PIT Code"}. Further, the Company has also adopted a 
'Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information' ("UPSI 
Code"}. The required details have been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report of the Company. 



d. Particulars of employees and related disclosures 

Disclosure of remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are 

annexed herewith as Annexure-Ill. 

A statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with 
Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 is provided as separate annexure forming part of this Report. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the 
Annual Report and financial statements are being sent to the Members excluding the aforesaid annexure. 
The said annexure is available for inspection at the registered and corporate office of the Company 
during business hours and will be made available to any shareholder, on request. 

e. Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption, Foreign exchange earnings 
and Outgo 

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings 
and outgo as required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided in Annexure - IV to this report. 

f. Extract of Annual Return 

As required under section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) 

Rules, 2014 (as amended), an extract of annual return in Form MGT- 9 is available on company's website 
on the link www. varrocgroup.com/ investors/ investor-relations/annual return. 

g. Occupational Health & Safety 

The organization believes in 'Zero Harm'. The aim is to improve health and safety standards of people 
who are working with the organization in their capacity as employees, contractors or in any other role. 
Efforts are taken to minimize activities which may affect the health and safety in working place. Steps are 
taken for optimum utilization of plants, with least disposal of harmful gases in environment. 

h. Disclosure as required under sexual harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 2013 

Your Company is committed towards providing a healthy environment and thus does not tolerate any 
discrimination and/or harassment in any form. The Company has in place an Internal Complaints 
Committee to int~r-rllia Prevent sexual harassment at the workplace and Redress the compluints in this 
regard. During the year under review, the Company has not received any complaint. 

--, 
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ANNXURE-I to Board's Report 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 
ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2017-18 

1. The Board of Directors at their meeting held on July 28, 2014 has approved policy for 

Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) with a vision to actively contribute to the social 

and economic development of the communities in which Company operates. The said 

policy was later on amended based on the recommendation of the CSR Committee 

and amended CSR policy was adopted at the Board meeting held on July 15, 2015. 

The Policy is aimed at socio-economic welfare, uplifting quality of life of the people, 

maintain environment, promoting youth and young talents, providing opportunities to 

underprivileged and bright student, imparting vocational education etc. in line with 

the broad framework of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The Policy can be 

referred in detail on the Company's website www.varrocgroup.com. 

2. Composition of the CSR Committee: The CSR Committee comprises of three Directors 

- Mr. Tarang Jain, Mr. Gautam Khandelwal and Mr. Ashwani Maheshwari. Mr. Tarang 

Jain chairs the Committee. 

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: ~ 450 million 

4. Prescribed CSR expenditure 

(Two percent of the amount mentioned in item 2 above) 

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year: 

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year 

(b) Total amount spent during the financial year 

(c) Amount unspent, if any 

~ 9.0 million 

~ 9.0 million 

~ 18.6 million 

NIL 

(d) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year: Refer Annexure-I 

6. Reason for not spending the amount of 2% as provided 
In clause {3) above 

7. Responsibility Statement 

NOT APPLICABLE 

We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy is in 
compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company. 

Tarang Jain 
(DIN: 00027505) 
Managing Director & Chairman CSR Committee 
Varroc Engineering Limited 

Date: August 07, 2018 



ANNEXURE-I to Board's Repot 

Sr. CSR project Sector In which the Project of Program Amount Amount Cumulative Amount Spent 
No. or Activity project Is covered (1) Local Area or Outlay spent on Expenditure Direct or through 

Identified (clause of Other (2) Specify (Budget) 
the upto the Implementing no. Projects 

Schedule VII to the the State and Project or 
reporting Agency 

Companies Act, district where or Progr~ms 
period I.e. 
FY 2017-18 

2013, as amended) projects or Program during 
(~In the year 

programs was wise 2017·18 million) 
undertaken ('(in ('(In 

million) million 
1 Skill Cl . (ii) promoting 1. Local Area: 

Development education, including Aurangabad, Pune 

special education and 2. Others: Maharashtra-

employment Jalgaon, Dhule, Nashik, 
Ahmednagar, Thane, 

enhancing vocation Raigarh, Sola pur, 
skills especially among Osmanabad, Latur, 
children, women, Beed, Jalna, Parbhani, 

9.40 13.23 18.49 
Direct/NITF/ 

elderly, and the Buldhana, Akola, DMCFS* 
differently abled and Amarawati, Wardha, 
livelihood Yavatmal, Nanded, 

enhancement Sangli; 

projects; Madhya Pradesh -
Chhindwara, 
Gujarat- Vadodara, 
Orissa- Bargash 

2 Promoting Cl. (vii) training to 1. Local Area: 
Young Sports promote rural sports, Aurangabad, Pune 

Talent nationally recognized 2. Others: Implementing 
enabling them sports, Paralympic Maharashtra - 4.80 1.16 1.16 Partner- Varroc to compete at 

sports and Olympic Mumbai, Thane, Navi Foundation** national and 
international sports; Mumbai, Pune 

level 
3 Kham River Cl. (iv) ensuring Local Area: 

Restoration environmental Aurangabad 
Project sustainability, 

ecological balance, 
protection of flora and 

Direct/Varroc 
fauna, animal welfare, 3.00 0.00 0.00 Foundation ** 
agroforestry, 
conservation of 
natural resources and 
maintaining quality of 
soil, air and water; 

4 Promoting Cl. (v) protection of Local Area: 
Art and national heritage, art and Aurangabad, Ajanta, 
Culture culture including Ell ora 

restoration of buildings 
and sites of historical Direct/ importance and works of 0.00 0.00 0.00 
art; setting up public Violin Academy*** 

libraries; promotion and 
development of 
traditional and 
handicrafts: 

5 Promoting Cl. (iv) ensuring Local Area: 
Environment environmental Aurangabad 
sustainability sustainability, Direct/ 

ecological balance, --- 0.00 0.00 Varroc 
protection of flora and Foundation** 
fauna, animal welfare, 
agroforestry, 



conservation of 
natural resources and 
maintaining quality of 
soil, air and water; 

6 promoting Cl. (i) Eradicating 1. Maharashtra -
health care hunger, poverty and Mumbai, Thane, Navi 
including malnutrition, Mumbai, Pune 0 4.20 4.20 

preventive 2(" promoting health 
health care"] care including 

and preventive health 
sanitation care"] and sanitation 

Direct/implementing 
4[including 

Partner I love 
contribution to the 

Mumbai Foundation 
Swach Bharat Kosh 
set-up by the Central 
Government for the 
promotion of 
sanitation] and 
making available safe 
drinking water. 

Total . Direct 
18.59 23.85 

Expenses 
17.20 

Total - Indirect -Expenses 

Grand Total 17.20 18.59 23.85 

* NETIUR TECHNICAL TRAINING FOUNDATION (NTIF) is a reputed non-profit organization having an 
established track record of more than 3 yea rs in undertaking similar kind of projects and programs a cross 
the country. 

* Deccan Management Consultants Finishing School (DMCFS) is a non-profitable organization having an 
established track record of more than 3 years in undertaking such kind of projects and programmes 

** Varroc Foundation (VF) is a Trust registered under Indian Trust Act, 1982 and has an established track 
record of more than 3 years in undertaking similar kind of projects and programs with an overall aim to 
create and support a stronger and inclusive India. 

* **Violin Academy is a reputed non-profit organization having an established track record of more than 3 
years in undertaking similar kind of projects and programs. 
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ANNEXURE-II 

Form MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the 
CompnniP.s (AppnintmPnt nnrl RPmllnPrntinn PPrc;nnnPI) RIIIPc;, ?n14] 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 sr MARCH 2018 

The Members of 
Varroc Engineering Limited 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable 
statutory provision and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/S. 
VARROC ENGINEERING LIMITED (CIN: U28920MH1988PLC047335) (hereinafter 
called "the Company") . Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided me a reasonable basis tor evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on our verifica'tion of the M/S. VARROC ENGINEERING LIMITED books, 
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
ogents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit. 
we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended 31st March, 2018 complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board­
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined tile books, papers, minutes' books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by M/S VARROC ENGINEERING LIMITED for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2018 according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under: 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules 
made there under; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations any Bye-laws framed 
there under; 
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regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings; 

(v) The following laws are specifically applicable to the Cornpany: 

• Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 and Central Motor Vehicles Rules. 1989 
• The Explosive Act, 1884 
• The Petroleum Act. 1934 
o The Environment (Protection) Act. 1986 
• The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Cess Act, 197 4 and Water 

(Prevention and Control of Pollution) Cess Rules. 1978 
• The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act. 1981 
o Central Excise Act, 1944 and as applicable rules 
• Customs Act, 1962 with as applicable guidelines & rules 
• Central Ground water Authority (Constituted under section 3 (3) of the 

Environment (Protection) Act. 1986 with as applicable guidelines & rules 
• Collection of Statistic Act, 2008 and Collection of Statistics Rule 2011 
• Electricity Act, 2003 with as applicable guidelines & rules 
• Food Safety & Standards Act, 2006 & Food Safety and Standards (Licensing 

and Registration of Food Businesses) Regulations, '2011 
• Foreign Trade (Development & Regulation) Act, 1992 with as applicable 

guidelines & rules 
• Information Technology Act, 2000 with as applicable guidelines & rules 
• Legal Metrology Act 2009 with as applicable guidelines & rules 
• Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991 and Public Liability Insurance Rules, 1991 
• Rajasthan Electricity (Duty) Act 1962 and Rajasthan Electricity (Duty) Rules. 

1970 

• Research And Development Cess Act. 1986 and Research And 
Development Cess Rules, 1996 

• Other state or local laws where company is having manufacturing facilities, 
offices or p laces from where it operates its business 

Specific labour laws: 
• Factories Act, 1948 
e Industrial Dispute Act, 1947 
o The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 
• The Minimu.m Wages Act, 1948 
• Employee's State insurance Act, 1948 
• The Employees Provident Fund and Misc. Provision Act. 1952 
• The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 



UMA LODHA & CO. Suit~ No :·,o;, 5th. Flour, I il9i>way ComlllcrciJI Ccnlfl•, 
I, 0 P.>!ld Ro.HI, Goreq;um (f;JSt). Mumhal - 400063 
1••1.: ~'1- n 401:11otll /0} Mobde > 91 082124/lll 
Email! urna;{i'urn,tlodhit uJnl ! 1nfutillUmJ!ot.Jhil ,CUI11 

• <fh~Pblyh,~nttJdf dr~tSftf J-eT '1\r'H E S W•bsite:www um.>lo<lhwm• 

• The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act. 1970 
• The Maternity Benefit Act. 1961 
• The Child Labour Prohibition and Regulation Act. 1986 
• The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act. 1946 
• The Employees Compensation Act. 1923 
• The Apprentices Aci. 1961 and Apprenticeship Rules. 1992 
• The Equal Remuneration Act, 197 6 
• The Employment Exchange (Compulsory Notifications of Vacancies) Act. 

1959 
• The Competition Act. 2002 
• Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention. Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act. 2013 and Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention. Prohibition and Redressal) Rules, 2013 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following : 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of 
the Act. Rules. Regulations. Guidelines. Standards. etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that: 

As per the explanation given by the Company. all the existing related party 
transactions of the Company with its related parties ore in the ordinary course of 
business and on arm's length basis or as per the contracts existing on the 
commencement of the Act. 2013 and have been approved by the Audit 
Committee. where applicable. 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors & Key Managerial Personnel (KMP}. Non-Executive Directors 
and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. agenda 
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a 
system exists for seeking and obtaining furl her information and clarification on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting. 
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commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and 
ensure compliance with applicable laws. rules. regulations and guidelines. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of 
the Act, Rules. Regulations. Guidelines. Standards. etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that during the audit period there were no major events which 
had bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, 
rules. regulations, guidelines. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 31st May 2018 

v 
For Uma lodha & Co. 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

Prop~ 
ACS/FCS No.: 5363 
C.P. No.2593 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 
'ANNEXURE B(i)' and forms an integral part of this report. 



UMA LODHA & CO. 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

ANNEXURE B(i)' 
To 

Swte Nu SOl. Sth. floo r, I hqhw.ly (onun•:-rcial C efitrt.'. 
I. B Patel I!Md, r;rm••J·" '". (bi l l), MumtJJI 400063 
Td : '.ll · :u- 4013100 1 /0 :~ Mohilo• • •>1 qo212471n 
Email: um~tfw urnal odii!M om I info ~~~Umi)lodha .cum 
W~bsit11 : www urn.Jiorl h.i r.om 

The Members 
M/S. VARROC ENGINEERING LIMITED 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

• Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management 
of the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
secretarial records based on our audit. 

• We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate 
to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of 
tile Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure 
that correct facls are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the 
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

• We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial 
records and Books of Accounls of the company. 

• Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation 
about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of 
events etc. 

• The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, 
rules. regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our 
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

• The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability 
of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 31st May 2018 For Uma Lodha & Co. 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

~ P.J. rietor 
ACS/FCS No.: 5363 
C.P. No.2593 



ANNEXURE-III to Board Report 

Disclosure of remuneration and other details as required under Section 197{12) of the Act read with 
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

A. Ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company 
for the FY 2017-18 as well as the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial 
officer, Company Secretary is as under: 

Name of Director/ KMP Designation Remuneration Ratio to %change in 
(~ in million) Median Remuneration 

Remuneration over pre\lious 
year 

Mr. Naresh Chandra Chairman 0.67 N.A. 6.70% 
Mr. Tarang Jain Managing Director 47.52 16911% 20% 
Mr. Arjun Jain* Whole-time Director 4.64 1651% 20% 

(for part of the year) 
Mr. Gautam Khandelwal Independent Director 3.50 N.A. # 
Mr. Marc Szulewicz Independent Director 5.00 N.A. $ 
Mrs. Vijaya Sampath Independent Director 3.50 N.A. $ 
Mr. Vinish Kathuria Independent Director 0.88 N.A. $ 
Mr. Ashwani Maheshwari Whole-time Director 14.74 5246% 11.92% 

* for part of the year# This is the first year company has paid commission. $This is the first year of their 
appointment and therefore this is not applicable. 

Note: For above calculation, remuneration includes siting fee and commission. Commission relates to the 
financial year ended 3Pt March 2018, which will be paid during FY 2018-19. 

The Percentage increase in remuneration of Mr. Rakesh Darji, Company Secretary is 7%. Mr. T R 
Srinivasan, Group CFO has joined during the year 2017-18 and therefor percentage increase is not 
applicable. 

Percentage increase in median remuneration in the FY 2017-18: 4.27% 4.27% 

Number of Permanent employees on the roll ofthe company as on 31st March 5034 
2018 
Comparison of average percentile increase in salary of employees other than the 
managerial personnel and the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration 9.64% 
%change in remuneration Average percentile increase in Salary of employees other 
than managerial personnel 

Average percentile increase in remuneration of managerial personnel 11.4% 

F. Affirmation : 

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 
employees is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

G. Justification for Average increase in Salary 

The average increase in Salary is in line with average industry standards and comparable to the 
prevalent mark 
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ANNEXURE -IV 

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 134 (3){m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013 READ WITH RULE 8(3) OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 
2014 AND FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 315T MARCH 2018 

A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

During the year under review, the wind mills installed by the Company at Satara and 
Supa in Maharashtra State and Badabaugh in Rajasthan State, generated 75,83,756 
units of electricity (including 6085189 units of captive consumption). The Company 
earned an income of ~ 51.26 million (including captive consumption ~ 42.70 million) 
from generation of wind power. 

Further, Solar Plant installed by the Company at Shivaji Nagar, Distt. Dhule, 
Maharashtra State generated 6,703,123 units of electricity. The said units were 
captively consumed by the Company. The total amount of captive consumption is 
~44.42 Million. 

The Company ensures that the manufacturing operations are conducted in the manner 
whereby optimum utilization and maximum possible savings of energy is achieved. 

i) THE STEPS TAKEN OR IMPACT ON CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 

• Capacitors provided to maintain power factor to unity 
• Provided VFD for dust collector 
• Compressed Air line leakages identification and rectification 
• Modification of hydraulic power pack circuit 
• Energy efficient LED lamp- Replacement of 216 watt tube sets with 120 watt LED Lamp sets 

in Press Shop, Heat treatment, Tool Room 
• Centralized cooling system - Installation of Evaporative air cooling systems to replace 5 nos. 

exhaust fans and 2 stand fans 
• IBH coil modification for energy consumption reduction from 4000 KW coil to 3400 KW coil 
• Stop Idle run of hyd. Motor- Hyd. power pack idle run stop by modification of logic 
• Introduce variable speed drive for 15-ton crane - VFD installation for 15-ton crane raw 

material yard, VFD installation for IBH pusher motor & Cooling tower. 
• Centrlized cooling system for press shop office- Installation of Evaporative air cooling 

systems to replace 3 nos. of AC 
• Plate Type Heat Exchanger in place of Chillers 
• Kaeser DSD 238 Screw Replacement 
• VFD to Air Compressor DSD 238 
• VFD to Hydraulic power packs 
• Air booster to be fitted on SQF furnace in Heat Treatment 1.2 lacks 
• Air supply to be controlled by timer to save air and energy at Machine Shop. 
• Submersible pumps to be provide at Cooling Towers. 
• At Shot Blasting VFD to be installed for blast wheel. 
• At machine shop Energy saver valve to be installed before air gun to control air pressure to 

reduce air and energy consumption 



• Harmonic Filter to be installed to control; harmonic. 
• New APFC capacitor panel installed to optimize power factor & to reduce losses. 
• Gravity Chute Installed & Conveyors removed 
• Provided interlock to hydraulic motors of CNC Machine 
• Hydraulic interlock provided for idle running of machines 
• Interlock adds for Centerless Grinding machines for programming modification done for idle 

running 
• 11W CFL Inspection lights replaced with 8W LED 
• Street Light Sodium vapor lamps replaced with LED-45W 
• Water Cooler installed instead of AC for Electrical Panel 
• Auto ON & OFF control system provided at New STP Plant 
• Auto ON & OFF control system provided at New ETP I ZLD Plant 
• Use of LED Indication lamps on Machine & Control Panels 
• LED fittings install at Transformer Area I DG- LT Room 
• Modified Air Line main header installed to reduce load on compressors 
• Continuous monitoring of power usage throughout the year. 

The adoption of the above energy conservation measures has helped to curtail the power 
requirement. This has made it possible to maintain cost of production at optimum level. The impact 
of measures taken above for conservation and optimum utilization of energy are not quantitative, its 
impact on cost is not ascertained accurately. 

ii} THE STEPS TAKEN BY THE COMPANY FOR UTILIZING ALTERNATE SOURCE OF ENERGY 

• The Company has initiated the roof top solar mechanism for alternate source of energy 
• The Company is exploring the use of green source power like solar and/ or wind in plants as 

an alternative source to thermal power. 

(iii} THE CAPITAL INVESTMENT ON ENERGY CONSERVATION EQUIPMENT$ 

• An amount of ~1.50 Crore is proposed to be spent in FY 2018-19 for energy conservation 
equipment. 

• The proposed capital investment on energy conservation equipment for Solar during 2018-19 
would be~ 6.31 crore approx. 

B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

(i) Efforts made towards technology absorption: 

The Company's products are manufactured by using in-house know how and no 
outside technology is being used for manufacturing activities. Therefore, no 
technology absorption is required. 

(ii) The benefits derived like product development, cost reduction or import substitution: 

The products manufactured by the Company have been well received and accepted 
by customers. 

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from 
the beginning of the Financial Year) : Not applicable 



(iv) Expenditure on R & D: 
(~in Mio) 

Particulars 2017-18 

Capital 55.5 
Recurring 385.9 
Total 441.4 
Total R&D expenditure as a Percentage of total 2.11% 
turnover 

C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO 

Actual Foreign Exchange used and earned: 

Sl. No Item 

A Used for: 
1 Capital Goods 
2 Raw Materials 
3 Components Stores & Spares 
4 Foreiqn Travels 
5 Consultancy Charges 
6 Interest on Term Loans 
7 Royalty 
7 Others 

TOTAL 
B Earned: 

1 ExR_orts 
2 Others 

TOTAL 

Place : Mumbai 

Date: August 07, 2018 

Amount 
(~in Mio) 

220.43 
1054.72 

32.19 
8.31 

33.34 
42.19 

0.63 
73.27 

1465.08 

1747.09 
114.49 

1861.58 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

VARROC ENGINEERING LIMITED 

/v'-.~ ~ 
NARESH CHANDRA 

CHAIRMAN 

DIN : 00027696 
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1. ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

Global economic overview

Global economic growth for 2017 is at 3.8% and is projected to be 3.9% in both 2018 and 2019. The pickup in growth has been broad-
based, with notable upside in Europe and Asia. The GDP growth reflects positive contributions from personal consumption expenditures, 
fixed investments, and state and government spending. In the near term, activity in both advanced economies and emerging economies is 
expected to accelerate. Along with China, several other emerging market and developing economies will also do better this year-that group 
includes Brazil, Mexico, and emerging Europe, according to IMF.

On the downside, the early February 2018 market turbulence and the equity market correction in March following the US tariff announcement 
on steel and aluminum and a range of Chinese products, as well as the announcement by China of retaliatory tariffs on imports from the 
US, serve as a cautionary reminder that asset prices can correct rapidly. Aging populations and lower projected advances in total factor 
productivity may challenge the future growth prospectus of advanced economies.

(Source: World Economic Outlook - April 2018, IMF)

Global GDP Growth (%)

India economic overview

India’s GDP increased 6.7 per cent in 2017-18 and is expected to grow 7.3 per cent in 2018-19. The acceleration of structural reforms, the 
move towards a rule-based policy framework and low commodity prices had provided strong growth impetus over the past couple of years. 
Recent deregulation measures and efforts to improve the ease of doing business have boosted foreign investment. India is expected to be 
one of the top four economic powers of the world over the next decade or so.

India’s GDP (%)

In the medium term, CRISIL expects the pace of economic growth is likely to pick up, as structural reforms – such as the GST and the 
Bankruptcy Code, aimed at de-clogging the economy and raising the trend rate of growth – begin to impact the economy.  Assuming that 

Source: World Economic Outlook - April 2018, IMF
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the monetary and fiscal policies remain prudent, these reforms would lead to efficiency gains and improve the prospects for sustainable high 
growth in the years to come. An improving macroeconomic environment (softer interest rate and stable inflation), urbanization, a rising middle 
class and business-friendly government reforms will drive growth in the long term.

The major factors which could impact the progress that the Indian economy is making are the direction in which oil prices move, the political 
outcome in the upcoming elections later this year, poor monsoon and the exchange rates. 

2. INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

Our business is directly related to our customers’ vehicle sales levels across various segments. Automotive sales are highly cyclical and 
depend on general economic conditions and other factors, including consumer spending and preferences, as well as changes in interest 
rate levels, consumer confidence and fuel costs.

We have two primary business lines, namely (i) the design, manufacture and supply of exterior lighting systems to passenger cars OEMs 
worldwide (our “Global Lighting Business”), which we undertake through our subsidiaries forming part of the VLS group and (ii) the design, 
manufacture and supply of a wide range of auto components in India (our “India Business”), primarily to two-wheeler and three-wheeler 
OEMs, Our India Business offers a diversified set of products across three product lines, namely Polymers/Plastics, Electrical/Electronics 
and metallic components. In addition, we have Other Businesses, which include the design, manufacture and supply of two-wheeler lighting 
to global OEMs (TRIOM) and under carriage forged machine components for OHVs and drill bits for the oil and gas sector (IMES).

i) Global Lighting Business

Global passenger cars (“PC”) and light commercial vehicles (“LCV”), markets
	 During the 2016-2021 period, mature markets such as North America and Europe are expected to grow steadily at a CAGR of 1.6% to  

2.0%  as per Yole. It also expects that, the Japanese market will continue to decline with the development of megacities and the 
reduced need to have a personal car. South American and African markets will also keep declining until 2021-2022, by when a new 
growth cycle is expected to start. The growth in China will slow down with a CAGR of 3.4%, while India, Korea and the rest of Asia 
are expected to grow at a CAGR of 5.3%, 2.4% and 2.5% respectively.

	 Regarding future trends, global PC and LCV sales are expected to reach 99 million units in 2021 at a CAGR of 2.0% during the 
period 2016-2021. The growth will be driven by emerging markets where GDP growth per capita will enable more households to 
purchase their first car.(Source-Yole)

Global Automotive Exterior Lighting market
	 The global automotive exterior lighting market generated USD 17.8 billion in terms of revenue in 2016 and grew at a CAGR of 4.5% 

during the period 2011-2016. It is expect to grow at a CAGR of 4.3% during the period 2016-2021, which represents a higher 
CAGR than global passenger vehicle and light commercial vehicle sales, which grew at a CAGR of 3.8% during the period 2011-
2016 and is expected to grow at a CAGR of 2.0% during the period 2016-2021.

	
	 The higher growth is mainly driven by increase lighting content per vehical due to increased penetration of new technology like light-

emitting diodes (“LEDs”) that will increase the value of lighting systems compared to existing technologies and increased importance 
of lights as a selling point. 

Key Industry trends
	 The following key trends in the industry will have an impact on automotive exterior lighting:
	 •	 advanced driver assistance system (“ADAS”) (and autonomous vehicles);
	 •	 increased connectivity;
	 •	 CO2 emission reduction;
	 •	 vehicle electrification; and
	 •	 shared mobility.
	
	 The key priorities for vehicle manufacturers is the consumer-driven demand for style, safety, reliability, and energy efficiency, as well 

as increasingly demanding regulatory standards. This translates into a constant focus on core competencies, such as powertrain (i.e. 
main components that generate power and deliver it to the road surface) and structure of the vehicle. OEMs will now have to develop 
and implement increasingly complex electronic, optoelectronic, software, and communication systems, and will need to collaborate 
with new suppliers and industries in order to do so. Upcoming technologies such as LED, 3D Lighting, AFS, Matrix and Laser will 
also lead to high-growth, high-margin products that further bolster the growth of the industry.

ii) India business

Indian Two Wheeler Sector
	 According to CRISIL Research, India is the second largest two-wheeler market in the world.	The production of two-wheelers in 

India grew at a 5% CAGR between FY2012 and FY2017. While domestic sales grew at a faster 6% CAGR, the export demand 
was subdued at a 4% CAGR.Overall domestic two-wheeler production is estimated to grow at a robust pace of 8-10% CAGR in the 
next three years to reach around 26.3 million units by FY2020. Domestic sales, which forms approximately 85% of total production, 
is also estimated to grow at a similar pace of 8-10% during the period. On the other hand, it estimates exports to grow at a faster 
pace of 9-11% from the low base of FY2017.

	 Higher GDP growth and lower inflation will lead to better affordability, measured by an increase in disposable incomes. CRISIL 
Research expects affordability to improve, especially in rural areas, as a result of better crop output due to a better monsoon. Muted 
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interest rates will further aid demand. Moreover, it expects the cost of ownership to rise moderately on account of vehicle price hikes, 
offset by a decline in prices post GST imposition.

Indian Three Wheeler Sector
	 India is one of the largest exporters of three-wheelers, and major players are continuously expanding their distribution reach in 

other countries to boost exports growth. Major export markets include emerging markets like Africa, South East Asia and Latin 
America.Issuance of fresh permits, availability of funding, replacement demand, favorable CNG economics and demand from cab 
aggregators for three wheelers are driving the domestic growth for the three wheelers. Strong demand for Three Wheelers is seen 
from international markets, due to the rising demand for last-mile connectivity because of the lack of well-developed public transport 
systems. 

 
	 Between FY2017 and FY2020, the three-wheeler sales to increase at a 13-15% CAGR, because of moderate domestic growth of 

8-10% CAGR and a healthy exports growth of 20-22% CAGR.

	 iii) Opportunities for Varroc
	 The increases the lighting value and lighting content per car as a result of technological improvement and upgradation presents a big 

opportunity for our lighting business. Going forward we will continue to focus on high growth markets and customers where we can 
increase customer revenue and on improving operational efficiency across our businesses. We will continue to invest in our R&D, 
design, engineering and software capabilities in order to capitalize on future trends. 

	 The Indian two and three-wheeler industry is expected to grow at a promising rate in the near term supported by a buoyant economy 
with rising rural income. In addition, There are significant opportunities created by the future safety and emission norms for our 
Electrical and Lighting divisions.  All of these factors are likely to support our growth going forward.

3. OUR STRATEGIES

a) 	Focus on high growth markets for our Global Lighting Business

	 The global exterior automotive lighting market is expected to grow at a CAGR of 4.3% between 2016 and 2021 (Source: Yole). Such 
growth is driven by the trend towards autonomous driving and connectivity between cars, with lighting becoming an increasingly 
prominent design and aesthetic feature, as well as playing a critical role in safety requirements and lighting technologies playing 
a greater role in energy efficiency and design flexibility. As such, we are looking to expand our market share in the global exterior 
automotive lighting market, including projection systems, signalling functions and electronics. 

	 Historically, while part of Visteon, our Global Lighting Business had relationships with customers such as Jaguar Land Rover and a 
central European car manufacturer. Since our acquisition of Visteon’s lighting business in 2012, we have grown our relationships with 
existing customers and expanded our customer base to include new OEMs such as the VW Group, Renault-Nissan-Mitsubishi and 
Volvo Truck. With our cost efficient and global manufacturing footprint, we are well-positioned to continue to serve our customers’ 
needs across different car models and geographies. Through our China JV, we currently have two plants and two R&D centers in 
China. We target global platforms with global OEMs, as well as the local SUV and the growing electric car segments.

b) 	Focus on increasing customer revenue for our India Business

	 India is the second largest two-wheeler manufacturer in the world (after China), growing at a 7% CAGR during calendar years 2013 
to 2016, with domestic sales of 17.7 million units in 2016, whilst China’s sales fell at a 10% CAGR during the same period. Overall 
domestic two-wheeler production is expected to grow at a robust pace of 8-10% CAGR in the next three years to reach around 26.3 
million units by FY2020. (Source: SIAM and CRISIL Research).  The primary demand drivers for the Indian domestic two-wheeler 
industry are improving affordability and lower cost of ownership, whilst the key growth drivers for two-wheeler industry exports are 
rising crude oil prices and a focus on other markets. Given the high exposure of two-wheelers in rural areas, they depend, in turn, on 
trends in rural incomes and infrastructure. 

	 In addition to benefiting from the overall growth in the Indian two-wheeler and three-wheeler markets, we also intend to increase 
our revenue with our existing customers by expanding the array of our existing products that we supply to them and by continuing to 
develop technology solutions aligned with their needs. Our pan-India manufacturing footprint provides us with the ability to be close 
to our customers across key automotive manufacturing hubs in India, and we seek to foster customer loyalty by being closely attuned 
to each of their needs. For example, knowing that just-in-time delivery is especially important for polymer products, all our polymer 
plants are located very close to our customers in order to best service their needs.

c) 	 Continue to invest in our R&D, design, engineering and software capabilities in order to capitalize on future trends

	 We plan to continue expanding our R&D, engineering and software development capabilities in order to capture future growth 
trends. We seek to expand our capabilities in a cost efficient manner, by focusing on low-cost geographies nearby major automotive 
markets, in order to expand our capabilities in a cost-efficient manner. For example, in India we established a R&D facility specifically 
catering to VLS, which provides support to our core R&D facility in the Czech Republic. Moreover, we established a new R&D facility 
in Poland which started operations in 2018. 

d) 	Pursue strategic joint ventures and inorganic growth opportunities

	 We intend to actively pursue acquisitive opportunities and strategic alliances with targets that are complementary to our business. We 
are mainly focused on growing existing product lines, such as automotive lighting and electronics for the global exterior automotive 
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lighting market, in key markets including North America. While we will continue to focus on the polymer, electrical and metallic 
businesses within India, we will also continue to be disciplined in evaluating complementary businesses in India to increase our focus 
on other segments if necessary. In particular, we will seek to make acquisitions that provide us with access to new technologies, or 
new customers, or new geographies. For example, we have recently acquired Team Concepts, a manufacturer of auto accessories 
in Bangalore with Japanese OEMs as key customers, and an exterior automotive lighting company based in Turkey. 

	 We have historically entered into joint ventures and agreements with a number of partners in order to ensure we gain access to 
new technologies, advanced manufacturing know-how, and access to new customers and geographies. For example: (i) with the 
acquisition of Visteon, we acquired a substantial portion of assets comprising of the lighting business of Visteon Corporation and 
we subsequently acquired Vieston’s 50% shareholding in a joint venture with TYC, established for the manufacture and sale of the 
automotive and motorcycle lighting systems and components in China; (ii) we entered into a joint venture with Dell’Orto S.p.A. in 
India, in which we have 50% shareholding, for the production, marketing and sale of electronic fuel injection control systems globally, 
with the exception of Europe and China. (iii) we entered into a tripartite technical and marketing support agreement, through which 
we receive support in Europe regarding the development, sales, marketing, logistical support and engineering of engine valves and 
other vehicle components; and (iv) in January 2018 we signed a letter of intent regarding the development of catalytic converter 
technology for use in India that would comply with the BS-VI emission standards and future legislation.

e) 	Focus on operational efficiency

	 We also focus on operational efficiency in order to improve returns in a rapidly changing technological environment. Within each 
production facility in India and internationally, we have sought to improve efficiencies, streamline our capacity and asset utilisation 
and manage our capital expenditure.  

	 We apply a lean manufacturing standard in the Global Lighting Business, which we refer to as the Varroc Excellence System (“VES”). 
VES is structured to boost industrial efficiencies and increase profits and operating cash flows by reducing costs and eliminating 
waste in excessive stocks, workforce and processes. Through the VES, VLS aims to achieve operational excellence by meeting 
our key goals of “Superior Quality”, “Lowest Cost”, “Timely Delivery” and “Highest Motivation”, which we pursue through the three 
pillars of flow management, people development and quality enhancement. By focusing on these elements, we seek to achieve: (i) 
zero defects, by implementing scheduled maintenance and monitoring in order to detect and remove the causes of such defects; (ii) 
zero waste, by reviewing manufacturing methods to manage and minimize excess produce; (iii) zero lead time, by managing product 
processes and delivery times; and (iv) zero accidents, by focusing on training and safety. 

	 For our India Business, we have implemented total preventive maintenance (“TPM”) in order to help ensure high quality, low costs 
and on-time delivery for our customers. Our TPM initiatives focus on improving the efficiency of production and support functions 
by identifying and eliminating losses. For example, on the shop floor, we conduct activities to eliminate major losses that affect 
equipment and achieve higher OEE, production per hour, production per headcount and lower costs. We have also received TPM 
Awards for our 12 plants from our largest customer, Bajaj, during 2008-2014. The practices which we have put in place at our 
manufacturing plants, Business Units and at group level are, among others, (i) the development of the periodic TPM audit system in 
2011 to ensure the effective implementation and improvement of the TPM system, (ii) the development of TPM knowledge through 
the preparation of a methodology manual and (iii) the TPM pillars awareness book in 2014.

4. PERFORMANCE REVIEW

i) Highlights of Consolidated results

The analysis of the performance of the Consolidated financial of the company on key financial parameters is summarised below: 

Profit and loss account

Revenue from operations

Our revenue from operations increased by 8.0% to 103,785 million in FY2018 from ` 96,085 million in FY2017, primarily as a result of an 
increase in sales across all businesses.Contributing to our increased revenue from overseas operations was a 2.5% appreciation in the Euro 
and 3.9% depreciation in the US Dollar for the purposes of consolidating our offshore revenues.  

Other Income
Other income decreased by 58.8% to ` 386 million in FY2018 from ` 937 million in FY2017, primarily because of an exchange loss of ` 
254 million in FY2018, in contrast to an exchange gain of ` 265 million in FY2017. 

Expenses

Raw Materials Costs 
	 The raw materials costs increased by 5.7% to ` 63,827 million in FY2018 from ` 60,368 million in FY2017, which was mostly in line 

with an increase in our revenue of approximately 8%. 

Excise Duty
	 The excise duty of ` 996 million in FY2018 was not comparable with excise duty of ` 3,098 million in FY2017, on account of the 

introduction of the Goods and Service Tax, which took effect from July 1, 2017 and consequent abolishment of Excise Duty.

Employee Benefits Expense
	 The employee benefits expense increased by 9.1% to ` 13,135 million in FY2018 from ` 12,037 million in FY2017, primarily due to 
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an increase in the number of employees (which resulted from a need to manage the increase in volume of operations) and the impact 
of annual salary increments.

	 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 
	 The depreciation and amortisation expense increased by 14.6% to ` 3,865 million in FY2018 from ` 3,371 million in FY2017, 

primarily as a result of capital expenditure at VLS and across our manufacturing facilities located in India. 
	
	 Finance cost other than imputed interest cost on CCPS 
	 The finance costs other than imputed interest costs on CCPS remined at same level in spite of higher revenue, primarily as a result 

of improved cash generation on account of an increase in revenue, albeit this increase was mitigated somewhat by finance costs 
attributable to capital expenditures. 

	 The imputed interest cost on CCPS was nil in FY2018 due to conversion of CCPS into equity shares in March 2017.

	 Other Expenses
	 The other expenses increased by 15.5% to ` 17,051 million in FY2018 from ` 14,765 million in FY2017, which was partially in line 

with our increased sales of approximately 8%. This increase also reflected an increase in R&D costs for VLS and an exchange loss 
of ` 254 million in FY2018 (as compared to an exchange gain of ` 265 million in FY2017). 

	
	 Tax Expense
	 The total tax expenses increased to ` 618 million in FY2018 from ` 238 million in FY2017. Our total tax expenses increased mainly 

on account of an increase in profit before tax, reduction in weighted deduction of R&D expenses in india from 200% to 150% and 
reduction in tax benefits in Czech Republic in FY2017 for capital expenditure.

	 Profit for the Year
	 Primarily for the reasons stated above, our profit for the year increased by 48.6% to ` 4,508 million in FY2018 as compared to ` 

3,034 million in FY2017.

Balance Sheet

	 Net Worth
	 Net Worth increased to 28,488 million from 22,055 million in FY2017.    

	 Net Asset Value per share
	 The Net Asset Value per share has increased to ` 211 per share at the end of FY2018 share from ` 164 per share at the end of 

FY2017

	 Borrowings
	 Gross borrowings decreased to ` 11,990 million from ` 15,130 million at the end of FY2017. The net debt as at the end of FY2018 

was at ` 8,701 million as against ` 11,590 million at the end of FY2017. the reduction in Borrowings was due to incremental Free 
Cash Flows.

	 Debt-to- Equity Ratio
	 Net Debt to Equity Ratio for the company is at 0.3x as at the end of FY2018 as compared to 0.5x in FY2017.

ii) Highlights of Standalone results

•	 Standalone Revenue from operations rose 15.6% to 20,955 million, up from 18,121 million in FY 2017

•	 EBITDA for the standalone business grew by 27.9% to 2,469 million while EBITDA margin is at 11.8%

•	 Profit After Tax for the Standalone entity was at ` 698 million, an increase of 66.2% over FY2017

•	 Net worth at the year end increased to ` 10,115 million from ` 9,472 million as at the end of FY2017

iii) Highlights of results of VarrocCorp Holding B.V., The Netherlands (VCHBV)

VCHBV is the holding company for our lighting business outside India. Results of  Varroc TYC Corporation BVI, are not consolidated line-by-
line and only net results, at PAT level, are included in the analysis below. The Consolidated performance of VCHBV is as follows :

•	 VCHBV Revenue from operations rose  2.6% to  61,682  million, up from 60,096 million in FY 2017

•	 EBITDA for the entity grew by 36.2% to 4,787 million while EBITDA margin is at 7.7%

•	 Profit After Tax for the year was at ` 3,266 million, an increase of 32.1% over FY2017
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The current economic environment, in combination with significant growth ambitions of the Company, carried with it an evolving set of risks. 
It counters the impact of unfavourable internal and external events and attempts to ensure business continuity across different stages of the 
economic cycle. The Company’s risk management processes ensure that the Company accepts risks as per the boundary conditions based 
on its risk appetite. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing auto components relating to automobiles sector 
which is a cyclical industry where global liquidity, government policies, government spending, competition and corporate sentiments have 
a huge bearing on the industry’s prospects, and the long-term success of the Company depends mainly on the existence of a robust risk 
identification and mitigation process. The Company recognises that these risks need to be managed to protect its customers, employees, 
shareholders and stakeholders, to achieve its business objectives and enable sustainable growth. Our risk management framework reduces 
the volatility due to unfavorable internal and external events, facilitates risk assessment and mitigation procedures, lays down reporting 
procedures and enables timely reviews by the management. The Audit Committee of the Board oversees implementation and effectiveness 
of the risk management processes. Business level risks and their mitigation plans for each business unit are reviewed periodically by the risk 
management committee. This section provides an overview of the key risks and control framework and its approach to risk management. 

The following section discusses some of these risks :

Risk type Description and mitigation

Pricing pressure from customers Pricing pressure from customers may adversely affect our gross margin, profitability and ability to 
increase our prices, which in turn may materially adversely affect our business, results of operations 
and financial condition. Our customers generally negotiate for larger discounts in price as the volume 
of their orders increase. In addition, substantially all our products are customised to specific customer 
requirements, which requires us to incur significant costs in setting up our capabilities to manufacture 
these products.

We believe that we have high pricing power given the following factors: a concentrated market 
with few number of players, low lighting cost (as a percentage of car cost) and the importance of 
technology and design which prevents entry of new players. Additionally, we are continuously working 
towards achieving sufficient production cost savings to offset price reductions by the customers. 
These reductions are through improved operating efficiencies, new manufacturing processes, 
sourcing alternatives and other cost reduction initiatives etc.

Market Risk Market risk is the risk of loss related to adverse changes in market prices, including commodity risk 
and interest rate risk. We are exposed to interest rate risk, commodity risk, foreign exchange risk and 
inflation risk in the normal course of our business.

We follow established risk management policies to mitigate these risks. 

We are exposed to risks in respect of price and availability of certain commodities that we use in 
the process of manufacturing our products. This risk is mitigated to some extend as we primarily 
purchase raw materials back-to-back and in line with the terms and prices that are agreed with our 
customers for our India business. For our international business, we typically agree a fixed per-unit 
price for raw materials for each purchase order, and thus bear the raw material price risk for such 
purchase order. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. Our exposure to the risk of changes in market interest 
rates relates primarily to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rates relating to our long-term 
debt obligations with floating rates. We continuously monitor our borrowing levels and the cost of 
funding these loans. We have also been able to lower our borrowing costs for a variety of reasons, 
including, in particular, the improvement of our credit rating in India as our financial strength has 
improved, which has allowed us to access cheaper sources of credit, commercial paper in particular. 
Additionally, decreasing interest rates have allowed us to refinance loans as they come due with 
cheaper sources of funding

Changes in currency exchange rates influence our results of operations. We have designated certain 
derivative instruments as cash flow hedges to mitigate the foreign exchange exposure of forecasted 
highly probable cash flows. For our Indian operations, we enter into forward contracts, in order to 
cover our foreign currency exposure, especially in the case of exports.

Credit Risk Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument 
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. We are exposed to credit risk from our operating 
activities, primarily from trade receivables. We typically have credit terms of 45 to 60 days with 
customers of our Global Lighting Business and of 15 to 60 days with customers of our India Business, 
save that our exports from India typically give customers 90 to 170 days credit terms. Most of our 
largest customers have high credit ratings, which helps to mitigate credit risk.

Customer credit risk is also managed by the group’s established policies, procedures and control 
relating to customer credit risk management. Further, our customers include marquee OEMs and tier 
one companies, which have long standing relationship with us. Outstanding customer receivables are 
regularly monitored and reconciled.
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Risk type Description and mitigation

Loss of major customers Our business is dependent on certain major customers, with whom we do not have firm commitment 
agreements. Significant reduction in purchases by any of our major customers, or a lack of commercial 
success of a particular vehicle model or lack of commercial success of such model, of which we are a 
significant supplier could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

At Varroc, we strive to meet our customer requirements with our QCD program. We always strive 
to remain competitive through our R&D efforts and with respect to technology, design and quality. 
In addition, our success in expanding our business also depend on significant investments in our 
R&D capabilities, in order to support our growth and business strategy. We have been continuously 
investing in our R&D capabilities. 

Safety Risk/ Cyber Risk The Company is committed to conduct all its activities in such a manner so as to avoid harm to 
employees and the community.

At Varroc, the use of information and telecommunication technologies are increasing, resulting in 
greater security threats to its digital infrastructure. These impacts may include the loss of sensitive 
data or information, legal and regulatory breaches and reputational damage.

The Company continues to strengthen its cyber security policies, standards, technical safeguard, 
ongoing monitoring of new and existing threats and IT security awareness initiatives which include IT 
disaster recovery, emergency response and business continuity management capabilities to enable 
reduction of impact of any cyber-security event.

Regulatory 
Compliance 
Risk

The Company recognises that timely compliance with the ongoing frequently changing regulatory 
requirements can at times be challenging, and therefore will:

• Strive to understand the changing regulatory standards, so as to strengthen its decision-making       
   processes and integrate these in the business strategy of each of the segments in which it opeates

• Drive business performance through the convergence of risk, compliance processes and control  
   mechanisms to ensure continued operational efficiency and effectiveness 

Political Risk Social / Civil unrest, act of terrorism within India or internationally can have an impact on the 
Company’s operations. Political and civil unrest and tensions globally may have an impact on the safe 
and timely execution of projects, which may have financial implications. 

We review the our risk management practices and activities on a quarterly basis. This included a 
review of risks to the achievement of key business objectives covering growth, profitability, talent 
aspects, operational excellence and actions taken to address these risks.

 
6. INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Company has an adequate system of internal controls implemented by the management towards achieving efficiency in operation, 
optimum utilisation of the Company’s resources and effective monitoring thereof and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company’s internal audit department conducts regular audits to ensure adequacy of internal control systems, adherence to management 
instructions and compliance with laws and regulations of the country, as well as to suggest improvements. The Internal Audit Function 
provides assurance to the Board and Senior Management in the various Businesses and Functions that the system of internal control 
deployed is appropriately designed to manage the key business risks and is operating effectively. Audit plans, internal auditor’s observations 
and recommendations, significant risk areas assessments and adequacy of internal controls are also periodically reviewed by the Audit 
Committee. The Company has an ERP system - SAP, to have better internal control systems and flow of information. Further, the Company 
adheres to rules and regulations of ISO. 

7. ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY

Health, employee safety and the environment is among our top priorities and is seen as both a right and a responsibility for all our employees. 
We take initiatives to reduce the risk of accidents and prevent environmental pollution through implementing a five-pronged environment, 
occupational health and safety (“EOHS”) plan which is based on the requirements of ISO 14001 on OHSAS 18000. First, we seek to 
eliminate exposure to serious accidents by identifying hazards and reducing the total number of accidents. Second, we work towards 
preserving our industrial assets by achieving compliance with all applicable legal norms. Third, through a systematic approach towards 
training and development, we hope to enhance our managers’ skills such that these concerns will be efficiently managed. Fourth, we remain 
conscious of the impact our industrial activities have on our environment, and actively monitor and minimize the environmental impact of 
our operations. Fifth, we seek to prevent occupational disease and maintain employee health and safety by maintaining industrial hygiene at 
work places. We also maintain public liability act insurance for some of our plants and also have a commercial general liability policy for all 
our locations in India.

The EOHS plan is implemented on a group level and we are committed to measuring, evaluating and continually improving our EOHS 
performance by establishing goals and objectives through regular periodic management reviews and guidance. EOHS performance is 
reviewed periodically in order to monitor the EOHS performance of our plants and EOHS strategies are developed to achieve our EOHS 
objectives, which include:
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•   	 reduce the dependability of conventional energy sources through the use of renewable energy sources; 
•   	 having all our plants in India certified for environmental management systems, in accordance with the requirements of ISO 14001 

and OHSAS 18001; 
•   	 proactively enriching the EOHS culture within key parts of our organisation; 
•	 having a strong focus on the sustainability of our EOHS system and compliance with the system;
•	 developing EOHS competency in our organisation; 
•	 having a proactive focus on upcoming legal requirements and internal mechanism of audits; and
•	 driving sustainability through various initiatives.

a) 	Health and employee safety

	 We are committed to maintaining high standards of workplace health and safety and we regard the safeguarding of such interests as 
one of our most fundamental responsibilities as an employer. We see safety as both a right and a responsibility for all employees and 
we aim to become a zero-accident organisation. Any mishaps or accidents at our facilities or any emission or leakage from our factory 
could lead to personal injury, property damage, production loss, adverse publicity and legal claims. It is therefore important that we 
maintain the Occupational Health and Safety certification in relation to our management of the safety of our people and property.

	 As of March 31, 2018, 17 of our plants in India have been certified for environmental management systems, in accordance with the 
requirements of ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001.

b) 	Environment

	 In addition to creating initiatives to improve workplace employee safety, we also implement initiatives to reduce the environmental 
impact of our operations. 

	 As at March 31, 2018, we have obtained, or are in the process of renewing, all material environmental consents and licenses from 
the relevant governmental agencies that are necessary for us to carry on our business. Our activities are subject to environmental 
laws and regulations, which govern, among other things, air emissions, wastewater discharges, the handling, storage and disposal 
of hazardous substances and wastes, the remediation of contaminated sites and natural resource damages. We have an automated 
internal system to track laws applicable to us.

	 As part of our commitment to the environment, we have set up three wind power plants, totalling 12 windmills with an aggregate 
power generation capacity of 8.35 MW. These windmills are located at three different locations, with four windmills at Supa, 
Maharashtra with power generation capacity of 1 MW each, six windmills at Satara, Maharashtra with power generation capacity of 
0.35 MW each and two windmills at Jaisalmer, Rajasthan with power generation capacities of 1 MW and 1.25 MW each. The power 
generated at Supa and Satara is consumed by our plants located at Waluj and Aurangabad and the power generated at Jaisalmer is 
sold to Rajasthan Vidyut Board as per the Power Purchase Agreement executed with the Rajasthan and Jodhpur Vidyut Nigams. 

	 We have also set up a solar plant at Shiwaji Nagar Sakri Dist Dhule, which has a power generation capacity of 5 MW. The power 
generated by the solar plant is used by our forging plant in Aurangabad. 

	 Further, we have initiated the setup of solar panels at eight of our plants that have sufficient roof space for the installations, with total 
power generation capacity of 4.2 MW.

8. HUMAN RESOURCES

We have seen significant enhancement in employee engagement driven by a focused agenda, rewards and recognitions. Our policies and 
benefits continue to help us in attracting and retaining best resources.

As of March 31, 2018 we employed 14,209 full-time employees across the globe (excluding those employed at our China JV).

A large number of our employees are members of labour unions. We have in the past entered into labour union agreements, for the mutual 
benefit of our employees and our business, as we recognise that employee satisfaction impacts upon productivity, quality of product, 
employee engagement and employee discipline. Such agreements have involved, inter alia, agreeing revised wage structures, ex-gratia 
payments, attendance bonuses and the provision of or enhancement of insurance policies as a quid pro quo for employee agreement to 
adhere to specified disciplinary rules, codes of conduct, rules on absenteeism, productivity and quality standards and other miscellaneous 
terms and conditions.

9. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has engaged in CSR activities for more than two decades and has contributed in the areas like healthcare, education, safe 
drinking water, food distribution, women empowerment. etc. We were always been at the forefront of voluntary CSR. Details regarding CSR 
initiatives taken by the Company during the year under review is available in the Annexure-I to the Board’s Report.


